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BOARD’S REPORT 
 
To the Members of    
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
 
The Directors hereby present their 26th Annual Report on the business, operations and the 
state of affairs of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended March 31, 2023:    
 
Financial Highlights                                                                                              

        (₹ in millions) 
Particulars 2022 – 23 2021 – 22 

Total Income 1297.21 1,773.80 

Total Expenditure 926.20 1,519.78 

Profit before tax 371.01 254.01 
Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax)            93.15         69.32 
Profit after tax           277.86 184.69 
Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought forward from 
previous year 

        1110.95       959.86 

Other Comprehensive Income               0.88        (0.39) 
Transition impact of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) - - 
Profit available for appropriation 1389.70 1144.16 
Appropriations   
-          Transfer to special reserve under Section 45-IC of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 

(55.57) (36.94) 

-          Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption Reserve 44.93 - 
-          Deemed distribution during the year - - 

- Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation 0.46 3.73 
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet  1379.51 1,110.95 
Net worth (Net worth = Equity share capital + other equity) 5366.50 5087.29 

     
Information on the state of affairs of the Company 
 
Information on the operational and financial performance, among others, is given in the 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report which is attached as “Annexure I” to this 
Report and that same is in accordance with the provisions of the RBI Master Direction No. 
DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 dated September 1, 2016, as amended from time to time. 
During the year, there was no change in nature of Business of the Company. 
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Reserves and Surplus 
 
The details of the Reserves and Surplus are given in the Financial Statement attached 
herewith. 
 
Share Capital 
 
During the year, there was no change in the Authorised Share Capital and Paid-up Share 
Capital of the Company. As at March 31, 2023, the Authorised Share Capital and Paid up 
Share Capital of the Company stands at ₹500.00 million and ₹ 429.50 million respectively. 
 
Dividend  
 
With a view to conserve the resource of the Company, the Directors are not recommending 
any Dividend for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
Finance & Credit Ratings  
 
During the year, the Company had not issued any securities. During the year, the company 
had raised long term funds of ₹ 300 million from a NBFC. The Company has adequate 
liquidity in line with the Asset Liability Management Requirements. 
 
The Company enjoys credit rating from various Rating Agencies. The details of the credit 
ratings are furnished in the Notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures and Associate Company 
 
The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate Company, nor has it entered into 
any Joint Venture Agreement under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Our network of offices 
 
We operate through a wide network of 34 offices as of March 31, 2023 spread across 15 States 
and 2 Union Territories. The reach of our branches allows us to service our existing customers 
and attract new customers. We service multiple products through each of our offices, which 
reduces operating costs and improves total sales. Our spread out office network reduces our 
reliance on any one region in India and allows us to apply best practices developed in one 
region to other regions. Our geographic diversification also mitigates some of the regional, 
climatic and cyclical risks, such as heavy monsoons or droughts. 
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Loans, Investments and Guarantees 
 
 
The Company is a NBFC registered with the Reserve Bank of India, engaged in the business 
of providing loans and making investments. During the year, the Company did not give any 
guarantee. Further, the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 pertaining to 
giving of loans, guarantees or providing security in connection with loan and acquisition of 
securities of any body-corporate are not applicable to the Company.  
 
Related Party Transactions 
 
All the Related Party Transactions entered by the Company during the year were in the 
ordinary course of business and on arm’s length. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with 
the Related Parties as prescribed in Section 188 of the Act in Form AOC -2 is annexed to this 
Report as Annexure II. All the Related Party Transactions as required under the applicable 
Accounting Standards are reported in the financial statements. 
 
The Company has formulated Related Party Transactions Policy, which is uploaded on the 
website of the Company, at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-
governance/?Investor%20Relations. 
 
Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company 
 
No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company have 
occurred between the end of the Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial 
Statement relates (i.e. March 31, 2023) and the date of the report. 
 
Annual Return 
 
Pursuant to Sections 92 and 134 of the Act, the Annual Return as at March 31, 2023 in Form 
MGT-7, is available on the website of the Company at the link: 
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/.  
 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
                                

i) Independent Directors 
 
The Company has 2 (Two) Independent Directors as on the date of this Report. In 
accordance with the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Independent Directors have given a declaration that they meet the criteria of 
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independence as provided in the   said section. Accordingly, the Company 
confirms that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors 
fulfil the conditions specified in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that 
the Independent Directors are independent of the Management.  In the opinion of 
the Board, the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess relevant 
expertise, experience and proficiency. Further, the Independent Directors have, in 
terms of Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & 
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, enrolled themselves in the Independent 
Directors’ Databank maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 

 
ii) Non-Independent Directors  

 
The Board of the Company has 2 (two) Non-Executive Directors as on date of this 
Report. 
 

iii) Changes in Directors 
 
During the year, there was no change in the Board of Directors of the Company.           
Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla (DIN: 02076676) retires by rotation at the forthcoming 
Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

iv) Key Managerial Personnel 
 
During the year and until the date of this report, there were following changes in the 
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 
 
Sr. No Name of the KMP Nature of Change Effective Date 

1. Mr. Hitesh Bhadada 
Appointed as Chief 
Financial Officer 

July 26, 2022 

2. Mr. Jignesh Gaglani 
Resigned as Company 
Secretary (CS) 

September 29, 
2022 

3. Mr. Mehernosh Tata 
Resigned as Chief 
Executive Officer 

January 31, 2023 

4. Ms. Inara Wadhwania* 
Appointed as Company 
Secretary (CS) 

February 01, 2023 

5. Mr. Manoj Agarwal Appointed as Manager February 01, 2023 
 

*Ms. Inara Wadhwania resigned as Company Secretary of the Company w.e.f. close of 
business hours on May 15, 2023. 
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Number of Board Meetings held 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Board met 7 (seven) times on May 06, 2022, June 23, 
2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2022, January 21, 2023, January 31, 2023 and March 28, 2023 
respectively. 
 
The number of meetings attended by the members of the Board are as follows:  
 

Member Category Meetings attended 
Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-Executive Director 7 

Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla Non-Executive Director 6 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Independent Director  6 

Mr. Vinod Juneja Independent Director 7 
 
Remuneration Policy and Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Director 
 
The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy (“Policy”) as per the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The said Policy is placed on the website of the 
Company at https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-
governance/?Other%20Policies. The Policy is directed towards a compensation 
philosophy and structure that will reward and retain talent; and provides for a balance 
between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives 
appropriate to the working of the Company and its goals. The Policy, inter-alia, provides 
for criteria for payment to Executives and Non-Executive Directors, Board diversity, etc. 
 
Evaluation of the Performance of the Board  
 
The Board has framed a Board Evaluation Policy (“the Policy”) for evaluating the 
performance of the Board, Directors and the Committees of the Board. The said Policy is 
placed on the website of the Company at https:// 
www.edelweissretailfin.com/investor-relations/.  
 
The Policy inter-alia provides the broad criteria for performance evaluation and 
authorizes the Nomination and Remuneration Committee to prescribe 
criteria/framework for Board Evaluation. Accordingly, the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee has prescribed a detailed methodology/approach for 
the aforesaid evaluations. Based on the same, the performance was evaluated for the 
financial year ended March 31, 2023. The Independent Directors at their meeting 
reviewed the performance of the Board and Non-Independent Directors. The Board of 
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Directors in its meeting evaluated the performance of Independent Directors, 
performance of Board and its Committees along with flow of information for 
conducting meetings of Board/Committees. The Nominations & Remuneration 
Committee also evaluated the performance of all Directors.  
 
Internal Financial Controls and Internal Control System 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements. The Company’s internal control system is designed to ensure operational 
efficiency, protection and conservation of resources, accuracy and promptness in financial 
reporting and compliance with the laws and regulations. The internal control system is also 
supported by an internal audit process.  Internal Audit is conducted through a co-sourced 
model duly supported by internal team. 
 
Based on its internal evaluation and as confirmed by the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, the management believes that adequate Internal Financial Controls, 
commensurate to the size and nature of the business, exist in relation to its Financial 
Statements. 
 
Risk Management  
 
Risk management is an integral part of the Company’s business strategy. It maintains a 
robust risk management framework/policy to identify, assess, manage, prioritize, monitor 
and report risks. It makes decisions based on a conscious and careful risk-return trade-off 
in line with the defined strategy and within its risk appetite. It ensures financial stability 
and continuity of the business by monitoring its risk profile periodically and ensuring risk 
management activities are executed effectively to manage the overall Risk levels within 
approved limits. 
 
The Risk Management Committee oversees the risk management framework of the 
Company through regular and proactive intervention by senior management personnel. 
Further details on the same is given in the Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
which is annexed to this Report as Annexure I. 
 
Committees of the Board 
 
The Company has the following Board Committees under the Companies Act, 2013 and 
SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015: 

 
i. Audit Committee. 

ii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
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iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. 
iv. Nomination and Remuneration Committee.  
v. Risk Management Committee. 
 

In addition to the above, the Company has also constituted IT 
Strategy Committee and Asset Liability Management Committee 
under the RBI Guidelines. 
The Board also constitutes specific committee(s) from time to 
time, depending on business needs. 

 
i. Audit Committee 

 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the    
Board of the Company has constituted an Audit Committee. The said Committee carries out 
such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and as per terms 
of reference as approved by the Board. During the year ended March 31, 2023, the Audit 
Committee met Five (5) times i.e. on May 06, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2022, January 21, 
2023 and March 28, 2023. The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the 
Members of the Audit Committee during the year is given below: 

 
Member Category Designation Meetings attended 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Member Independent Director 4 
Dr. Vinod Juneja Member Independent Director 5 
Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non- Executive Director 5 

 
There were no instances wherein any recommendation of the Audit Committee was not 
accepted by the Board. 

 
ii. Stakeholders Relationship Committee 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, the Board of Directors of the 
Company have constituted a Stakeholders Relationship Committee (‘SRC Committee’). The 
said Committee carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant 
applicable laws and as per terms of reference as approved by the Board. During the year 
ended March 31, 2023, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once on May 6, 2022. 
The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the Members of the SRC Committee 
during the year is given below: 
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Member Category Designation Meetings attended 
Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non- Executive Director 1 
Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla Member Non- Executive Director 1 
Mr. Mehernosh Tata Member Chief Executive Officer  01 

Mr. Manoj Agarwal Member Manager 02 
1 Mr. Mehernosh Tata resigned as member w.e.f. January 31, 2023 
2 Mr. Manoj Agarwal appointed as member w.e.f. February 1, 2023 
 
iii. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), the 
Board has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. The said Committee 
carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and 
as per terms of reference as approved by the Board. During the year ended March 31, 2023, 
the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee met twice on May 6, 2022 and July 26, 2022.  
The constitution and meeting attended by the Members of the CSR Committee during the year 
is given below: 
 

Member Category Designation Meetings attended 

Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Member  Independent Director 2 

Dr. Vinod Juneja Member  Independent Director 2 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member  Non-Executive Director 2 

 
The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company i.e. 
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-governance/?Other%20Policies. During the 
year, the CSR Policy was amended to align the same in accordance with the amendments 
in the CSR provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.  Further, 
report on the CSR activities for the FY 20222-23 is annexed as Annexure III. 
 
iv. Nomination and Remuneration Committee  
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the Act), the 
Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC). The 
said Committee carries out such functions as are statutorily prescribed under the extant 
applicable laws and as per terms of reference as approved by the Board. During the year 
ended March 31, 2023, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met 3 (Three) times i.e. 
on May 6, 2022, June 23, 2022 and January 21, 2023. The constitution and the meeting attended 
by the Members of the NRC during the year is given below: 
 

Member Category Designation Meetings attended 
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Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Member Independent Director 3 
 Dr. Vinod Juneja Member Independent Director 3 
Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member Non- Executive Director 3 

 
v. Risk Management Committee 
 

In accordance with the RBI guidelines, the Board of Directors has constituted a Risk 
Management Committee (RMC). The said Committee carries out such functions as are 
statutorily prescribed under the extant applicable laws and as per terms of reference as 
approved by the Board. During the year, the Risk Management Committee met Four (4) 
times i.e. on May 18, 2022, September 12, 2022, November 28, 2022 and February 24, 2023. 
The constitution and the number of meetings attended by the Members of the Committee 
during the year under review is given below: 

 

Member Category 
sMeetings 
attended 

Mr. Mehernosh Tata Member 31 

Mr. Yogesh Kanojia Member 12 

Ms. Shilpa Gattani Member 4 

Mr. Hitesh Bhadada Member  33 

Mr. Manoj Agarwal Member 14 

    1 Mr. Mehernosh Tata ceased to be member w.e.f. January 31, 2023 
   2 Mr. Yogesh Kanojia ceased to be member w.e.f. July 26, 2022. 
   3 Mr. Hitesh Bhadada was appointed as member w.e.f. July 26, 2022 
   4 Mr. Manoj Agarwal was appointed as member w.e.f. February 1, 2023 
 
vi. Asset Liability Management Committee: 
 
The ALCO Committee is constituted in compliance with the applicable RBI guidelines. The 
Committee’s composition is in compliance with the provisions of the RBI Guidelines. 
 
During FY 2022-23, the Committee met five times during the year on May 18, 2022, June 15, 
2022, August 3, 2022, November 28, 2022, and February 24, 2023. 
 
vii. IT Strategy Committee: 
 
IT Strategy Committee is constituted in compliance with the applicable RBI guidelines. The 
Committee’s composition is in compliance with the provisions of the RBI Guidelines.  

 
During FY 2022-23, the Committee met two times on June 9, 2022, and November 30, 2022.  
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Statutory Auditors 
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 
Rules framed thereunder (the Act) and RBI circular ("Circular") dated 27th April 2021 on 
the Guidelines for appointment of Statutory Central Auditors (SCAs)/Statutory 
Auditors (SAs) of Commercial Banks (excluding RRBs), UCBs and NBFCs (including 
HFCs), Members of the Company at their 24th Annual General Meeting held on September 
24, 2021 had appointed M/s. G D Apte & Co., as the Statutory Auditor of the Company 
from the conclusion of 24th Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion 
of 27th Annual General Meeting of the Company.  
 
The Statutory Audit Report does not contain any qualifications, reservations and 
adverse remarks. 
 
Internal Auditor 
 
The Board had appointed M/s. M.M. Nissim & Co. as the Internal Auditors of the Company 
for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
Secretarial Audit  
 
The Board had appointed M/s. Manish Ghia & Associates, Company Secretaries, as 
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023. A report 
issued by the Secretarial Auditors is annexed as Annexure IV. The Secretarial Audit Report 
does not contain any qualifications, reservations and adverse remarks. 
 
Prevention of Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace 

 
The Company prohibits any form of sexual harassment and any such incidence is immediately 
investigated and appropriate action is taken in the matter against the offending employee(s) 
based on the nature and the seriousness of the offence. The Company has in place, a corporate 
policy on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (the ‘Policy’) and matters connected therewith or incidental thereto covering all 
the aspects as contained under the ‘The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013’. The Company also has in a place an 
Internal Committee constituted under Sexual Harassment Prevention Act and Rules made 
thereunder to look into all complaints of sexual harassment made by an Aggrieved Person 
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provided the sexual harassment has taken place at workplace or in the course of official duties. 
There was no complaint filed during the financial year and no complaint was pending at the 
end of the financial year. 
 
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings / Outgo 
 
A. Conservation of energy 
 

i) Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 
The operations of the Company are not energy-intensive. However, adequate 
measures have been initiated for conservation of energy: 
 
 Quarterly /Periodic maintenance of Air Conditioners are carried out for better 

performance and to control power consumption across branches. 
 Electrical Planned Preventive Maintenance is performed at the branches to 

ensure that the health of the Electrical set-up is maintained which in turn 
conserves energy. 

 changed the HVAC schedule running operation which reduces the 
unnecessary running of Air conditioner. 

 
ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate source of energy – though 

the operations of the Company are not energy intensive, the Company shall 
explore alternative source of energy, as and when the necessity arises. 

 
iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment - Nil  

 
B. Technology absorption 

 
i)  The efforts made towards technology absorption: 

  
The following efforts have been taken towards technology absorption: 
 

a) The Company is continually working towards streamlining & optimizing the 
business workflows via technology absorption for most of the business functions 
& operations of the Company;  

b) Majority of legacy applications have been, either consolidated, or 
decommissioned; & have been replaced with digital workflows & modern 
technology solutions; 

c) Engineering of better technology solutions & elimination of fragmented 
applications, legacy applications, or applications functioning in silos; a 
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continuous process; shall continue in-parallel; so that there are no outages & zero 
business continuity risks; 

d) The Company is continually working towards digitization & digitalization across 
various business verticals; 

e) The Company has adopted a cloud-first approach, for all of its existing & future 
applications; with a keen intent of optimizing technology spends & embracing 
cutting-edge tech stack. 
 

ii) The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product 
development or import substitution: 

 
a) Reduction of data-loss during customer onboarding; 
b) Consolidation of digital assets, storage & speedy retrieval; 
c) Various product enhancements; and 
d) Cost & resource optimization of ownership & upkeep of multiple 

applications relating to manpower, infrastructure, support and maintenance. 
  

iii) In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned 
from the beginning of the financial year) – Not Applicable  

 
iv) The expenditure incurred on Research and Development: 
 

a. The Company does not have a dedicated R&D division.  
b. The Company has been adopting cutting edge technology stack (low-code / no-

code development platform, etc.) and unconventional models for solution 
engineering; for fastest go-to-market product deliveries. 
 

The Company operates in a highly automated environment and makes use of the latest 
technologies to support various operations. It has in place a governance framework, 
information security practices and a business continuity plan to mitigate information 
technology-related risks. It is also guided by the Information Security Policy and Cyber 
Security Policy laid down by RBI Master Direction - Information Technology 
Framework for the NBFC Sector. In addition, employees mandatorily and periodically 
undergo information security training and sensitization exercises. 
 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  
 

There were no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year. 
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Secretarial Standards 
 
The Company has complied with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards issued 
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The Company has devised proper systems 
to ensure the same and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively. 
 
Other Disclosure 
 

 No disclosure is required in respect of the details relating to the issue of Equity 
Shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise and Sweat 
Equity Shares, as the Company has not issued these types of shares.  

 There were no significant or material orders passed by    any regulator or court or 
tribunal which would impact the status of the Company as a going concern and 
the Company’s operations in future.  

 Further, no fraud was reported by the Auditors under sub-section (12) of section 
143 during the year.  

 There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the year. There was no instance of one-time 
settlement with any Bank/Financial Institution in respect of loan taken by the 
Company. 

 There was no revision in the financial statements of the Company. 
 Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as specified under the Act is not 

applicable to the Company. 
 
Public Deposits 
 
The Company neither held any public deposits at the beginning of the year nor has it accepted 
any public deposits during the year. 
 
Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism 
 
Pursuant to Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has in place a whistle 
blower policy for establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report 
instances of unethical and/ or improper conduct and to take suitable steps to investigate 
and correct the same. Directors, employees, vendors, customers or any person having 
dealings with the Company may report non-compliance of the policy to the noticed 
persons. The copy of the policy is available on 
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com/corporate-governance/?Other%20Policies.  
 
The Directors and management personnel maintain confidentiality of such reporting and 
ensure that the whistle blowers are not subjected to any discrimination. No person was denied 
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access to the Audit Committee during the year. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors 
of the Company oversees the vigil mechanism. 
 
Particulars of Employees  
 
In accordance with the provisions of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the particulars of the employees are set 
out in the annexure to this Report. In terms of the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the 
Report is being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the annexure. Any Member 
interested in obtaining a copy of the annexure may write to the Company Secretary at the 
Registered Office of the Company. 

 
Further, disclosures on managerial remuneration as required under Section 197 read with 
Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014 are provided as Annexure V to this Report.  
 
Directors’ Responsibility Statement 
 
Pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act), Directors confirm that:- 
 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
ii) accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and 

estimates made, are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state 
of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and profit and loss of the Company for the 
financial year ended on that date; 

iii) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

iv) the annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis; 
v) internal financial controls have been laid down and the same are adequate and were 

operating effectively; and  
vi) proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
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Debenture Trustee: 
 
IDBI Trusteeship Services Limited 
Asian Building, Ground Floor, 
17, R. Kamani  Marg, Ballard Estate, 
Mumbai- 400 001, Maharashtra, India 
Tel: +91 22 4080 7000;  
Fax: +91 22 6631 1776/40807080 
E-mail: itsl@idbitrustee.com 
Website: www.idbitrustee.com 
Contact Person: Mr. Naresh Sachwani     
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Annexure – I 

Management Discussion Analysis 

Macro Economy: Review and Outlook 
 
The global economy has faced several challenges in 2022 and host of them have also got 
carried forward in 2023, including the ongoing war in Ukraine, rising inflation, and central 
bank tightening. Down from 3.6% in 2022, the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has 
downgraded its forecast for global growth in 2023 to 2.8% and a slight increase to 2.9% in 2024. 
 
Central banks across the world have raised interest rates to cool inflation which could slow 
economic growth. Back home, in its bid to tame inflationary pressures during FY2022, the 
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) has increased interest rates by 2.5% through six monetary policy 
committee interventions. 
 

 
Source – Reserve Bank of India           Source: IMF’s World Economic Outlook (April 2023)    Source: IMF’s World Economic Outlook (April 2023) 

 
Domestically, India’s GDP growth clocked an annual increase of 7.2% in FY2023 against RBI’s 
expectation of 7.0% while the Central Bank pronounced that the economic activity remained 
resilient during the fiscal gone by. With global commodity prices having moderated 
significantly from their heightened levels in 2022, cost conditions eased, and inflation 
expectations of households also edged down. However, adverse climatic conditions pose risk 
to the future inflation trajectory in India. The RBI has projected consumer price inflation (CPI) 
to moderate to 5.2% in FY2024 on the assumption of an annual average crude oil price (Indian 
basket) of US$ 85 per barrel and a normal monsoon. 
 
Industry Structure and Developments 
 
Backed by robust credit demand supported by economic rebound, non-banking financial 
companies (NBFCs) were expected to grow their assets under management (AUM) by 13-14% 
during FY2023, which was twice the 7% AUM growth seen during FY2022. A substantial part 
of FY2023 saw NBFCs having mixed bag of advantages like stronger balance sheets with 
higher provisioning and lower leverage and receding asset-quality concerns. While 
competition from banks continued to remain intense, the rising interest rate environment 
exerted pressure on margins and limited the competitive abilities of NBFCs. 
 
In the current scenario of higher interest rates liquidity plays a more significant role for 
NBFCs, and co-lending as an avenue becomes more significant owing to the asset-light nature 
of the operating model. 
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Taking comfort from the cool down in inflation, in the June 2023 monetary policy meeting, 
the RBI, maintained status quo on interest rates. Lower inflation could prompt the central 
bank to cut interest rates during FY2024, which could propel demand for credit. The NBFCs, 
which have comfort of better NPAs in the current cycle would be in a better position to 
augment the growth in retail credit demand. 
 
The improving macroeconomic scenario will aid confidence of the MSME sector which will 
open a strong credit demand opportunity for the NBFCs to augment. 
 
MSME 
 
India’s Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector is a major contributor to the 
economy, accounting for over 49% of the country's manufacturing output, 33% of its exports, 
and 45% of its employment. In FY2023, the MSME sector is pegged to have grown by 9.5%, 
led by strong demand for its products and services both domestically and internationally. 
 
The growth of the MSME sector is being driven by a host of factors like the government's focus 
on promoting entrepreneurship and innovation, the increasing availability of credit and other 
financial services to MSMEs, and the rise of the digital economy, which is creating new 
opportunities for MSMEs to provide services and solutions to businesses and consumers. 
 
ERFL Finance’s Outlook 
 
Volatility from macroeconomic and geopolitical factors have sector-agnostically affected 
organisations of all sizes in multiple ways. However, at the outset of FY 2024, we have started 
seeing positive signs in macroeconomic conditions viz. improved GDP growth, declining 
inflation, and probable rate cuts from the RBI, which are expected to provide a strong growth 
path for the Company in FY2024. The vibrancy in the economy along with lower borrowing 
costs would give a boost to demand for loans from mSME as well as retail borrowers. While, 
co-lending will help us maintain an asset-light business model, better asset quality will create 
stronger securitisation opportunities, and relatively lower borrowing rates will help in 
improving net interest margins. The ongoing thrust on digitalisation will further improve the 
operating metrics of the Company as higher efficiency and lower turnaround time will help 
in delivering a stellar customer experience. 
 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Overview 
 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (ERFL) was incorporated on February 18, 1997, as a Private  
Limited Company. It was converted into Public Company w.e.f. January 1, 2014. The name 
was changed to Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited w.e.f. January 6, 2014. It is a Systemically 
Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-ND-SI) registered 
with the Reserve Bank of India. 
 
Our Company has obtained a certificate of registration dated January 4, 2017, bearing 
Registration No. N-13.02149 issued by the Reserve Bank of India under section 45 IA of the 
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, to commence/carry on the business of Non-Banking  
Financial Institution not accepting public deposits subject to the conditions mentioned in the 
Certificate of Registration. 
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At ERFL, we offer a wide range of products and services with a clear focus on customer needs 
and relevance while designing our products. 
 
Key Financial Performance Highlights 

Particulars FY 2023 FY 2022 
Total Income 1297.21 1773.80 
Total Expenditure 926.20 1519.78 
Profit before Tax 371.01 254.01 
Provision for tax (including Deferred Tax and fringe 
benefit tax, if any) 

93.15 69.33 

Profit after Tax 277.86 184.69 
Add: Profit and Loss account balance brought 
forward from previous year 

1110.95 959.86 

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 0.88 -0.39 
Transition Impact of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) - - 
Profit available for appropriation 1389.70 1144.16 
Appropriations   

- Transfer to special reserve under Section 45-
IC of the Reserve Bank of India 

-55.57 -36.94 

- Transfer to/from Debenture Redemption 
Reserve 

44.93 - 

Reversal of ESOPs charges on cancellation 0.46 3.73 
Surplus carried to balance sheet 1379.51 1110.95 
Net worth (Net worth = Equity share capital + Other 
equity) 

5366.50 5087.29 

 
Summary of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited standalone financial highlights during 
FY2023: 

• Total Revenue: ₹1297.21 million (₹1773.80 million for FY2022), down 26.87% 

• Profit after Tax: ₹277.86 million (₹184.69 million for FY2022), up 50.45% 

• Net Worth: ₹5329.96 million (₹4970.23* million at the end of FY2022) 

• Earnings per Share: ₹6.47 (₹4.30 for FY2022) (Face Value: ₹10.00 per share) 

*Net of Deferred Tax Assets 

Income 

Fund Based Revenue 

Fund based revenue comprises of interest income and revenue from treasury and dividend 
income. 

Interest income continued to be a major contributor to the gross revenue from operations at 
₹1351.19 million as against ₹1560.55 million during the previous year, constituting around 
104.16% of the total revenue from operations. The decrease in interest income is due to the 
reduction in the average loan book during the year. 
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Net profit on fair value changes on financial instrument stood at ₹(95.6) million as against 
₹162.2 million during the previous year. 

Interest Revenue 

Our interest revenue was ₹1351.19 million for the year, compared to ₹1560.55 million in 
FY2022, down by 13.42%.  

Net Operating Revenue 

For NBFCs, like the banking industry, the concept of Net Revenue (net of interest cost) is 
another way of analysing the performance. This is because interest costs, as with all banks and 
large NBFCs, should reflect above the expenses line. On a net revenue basis, our ‘Interest 
Income on Loan’ for FY2023 was ₹1262.46 million (₹1502.29 million for FY2022) and ‘Interest 
Income on Securities held for trading’ for FY2023 was ₹15.19 million (₹6.17 million for 
FY2022). Interest on Deposit with Banks for FY2023 was ₹6.29 million (₹10.79 million for 
FY2022). Other Interest Income was ₹0.01 million (₹0.00 million for FY2022). Other Interest 
Income on direct assignment was ₹67.24 million (₹41.30 million for FY2022). Fees and 
Commission Income was ₹31.40 million (₹15.72 million for FY2022). Net gain/loss on fair 
value changes was ₹(95.60) (₹162.20 million for FY2022). 

In addition, the ‘Other Income’ for FY2023 was ₹10.22 million, compared to ₹35.33 million in 
FY2022. 

Expenses 

Our total expenses for FY2023 were ₹926.20 million (₹1519.78 million in FY2022), down by 
39.06%. 

Credit Cost 

During the current fiscal year ended March 31, 2023, the Company has recorded an amount 
of ₹ (189.48) million towards impairment on financial instruments.  

Employee Benefit Expenses 

Employee benefit expenses for FY2023 were ₹236.33 million (₹215.72 million in FY2022), up 
by 9.55%. 

Other Expenses 

Other expenses, including depreciation and amortisation, for FY2023 were ₹231.49 million 
(₹594.25 million in FY2022), down by 61.04%. 

Profit After Tax 

The Company has posted profit after tax of ₹ 277.86 million for FY2023, against ₹184.69 million 
for FY2022. 

Dividend 

The Company has not paid any dividend in FY2023. 
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Analysis Of Profitability 

The Company has posted profit after tax of  ₹ 277.86 million for FY2023 which has  improved 
from FY2022, primarily due to due to lower credit cost during FY22 partially offset by lower 
net interest income in FY22.  

Balance Sheet Gearing 

We believe that a strong balance sheet imparts unique ability to our company to be able to 
meet the demands of our customers, capture any episodic opportunities and be able to raise 
debt capital whenever required. ERFL has a total net worth of ₹5329.96  million as at the end 
of FY2023 compared to ₹4970.23 million at the end of FY2022. The amount of debt on the 
Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2023, was ₹3,786.07 million (₹6,731.9 million as on March 31, 
2022) The gross balance sheet size at the end of FY2023 was ₹10,345 million compared to 
₹12,642 million a year ago. 

Asset Quality 

The asset quality of the overall credit book continued to remain under control despite 
headwinds with Gross NPLs at 2.8% and Net NPLs at 2.2% as on March 31, 2023, compared 
to 2.3% and 1.8% respectively a year ago. 

The specific Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) on Gross NPLs was 22.6% at the end of FY2023 
compared to 21.30% at the end of FY2022. Total Provision Cover including the expected credit 
loss provision on Stage I and II assets is 128.90% at the end of this fiscal year compared to 
194.6% at the end of FY2022. 

Capital Adequacy Ratio 

As per the Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms stipulated by RBI, all 
NBFCs–ND–SI are required to maintain a minimum Capital to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio 
(“CRAR”). Our CRAR over the period of last three fiscal years is as under:  

 FY 23 FY 22 FY 21 
CRAR 
prescribed by 
RBI (%)  

15% 15% 15% 

Total CRAR 
(%) 

72.2% 36.9% 39.9% 

Out of which    
Tier I CRAR 
(%) 

58.2% 24.4% 26.7% 

 

Opportunities 
 
Financial services in India continue to offer enormous and scalable opportunities for 
Companies like yours, as digitisation propelled by the prolonged pandemic has played a 
catalytic role in the long-term growth story of India which remains intact: 
 
• Democratisation of credit, aspirations of younger population and increasing 
entrepreneurship, household savings moving to investments and increasing number of demat 
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accounts, increasing financial literacy in the Country will continue to present growth 
opportunities for companies like yours. 
 
• The monsoon is predicted to be normal for another year which will boost farm sentiments 
and improve overall prospects for the economy which is already on strong footing. 
 
• Decline in interest rates would provide dual boost to the operating performance of the NBFC 
sector as well as the relative cheaper credit offtake. 
 
• De-escalation, or end, of the Russia-Ukraine war could have a positive geopolitical impact 
on the global growth. 
 
Threats 
 
While the economy has come way far from the shadows of the pandemic, following threats 
cannot be ruled out and these, if they materialise, could reverse the current revival of the 
economy including the NBFC sector in India: 
 
• An inception of another COVID-19 wave may reverse recovery of macro-economy, 
domestically as well as globally. 
 
• The direction of interest rates, which have been on the rise, would have a bearing on 
operating performance of NBFCs as well as their balance sheets if NPAs begin to rise. 
 
• Any abnormal surge in oil prices, or weak monsoon, or major lag in revival of the capex 
cycle can also inhibit the economic growth.  
 
• Escalation of the Russia-Ukraine war could have a negative geopolitical impact on the global 
growth. 
 
Business Segment-Wise Performance Highlights 
 
MSME Finance Business 
 
Our MSME business vision is to be the most trusted financial partner in the growth journey 
to success of India’s micro and small enterprises. 
 
Core Capabilities 
 
During FY2023, we have heavily invested in building our core capabilities around origination 
and underwriting loans to mSMEs. While most of these loans are tagged as Priority Sector 
Loans (PSL), close to 90% of our fresh loan disbursals are to support mSMEs. 
 
During the year, we introduced a slew of products/variants to offer a comprehensive suite of 
products, both secured loans and business loans to meet the requirements of the mSME sector. 
The year also saw a stabilisation of co-lending arrangements with our existing partner banks 
as well as adding new partners. All this while, we have continued to maintain focus on credit 
quality while moving further on our growth trajectory and have now laid a strong foundation 
for growth going forward. 
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We recognise that underwriting capabilities are crucial to our credit health, and we are 
adopting digital processes and an analytical approach which will significantly help us 
improve accuracy as well as achieve higher processing efficiency. 
 
Channel Partners 
 
On the origination front, we are intensifying the engagement with channel partners - we do 
believe that our wider product suite across multiple process points will significantly help our 
origination capabilities. 
 
We have relationships with 5,000-plus channel partners and remain focused on engaging with 
them. We have a well-defined rewards and recognition program for our channel partners. 
 
Strategic Initiatives 
 
At ERFL, we continue to build on our unique asset light model. Our key focus remains to 
drive co-lending model (CLM) origination and have signed two new bank partnerships 
towards co-lending priority sector loans (PSL) to Indian mSME entrepreneurs during FY2023. 
As we continue to build scale through the asset-light model, our Book to AUM ratio will 
continue to decrease. As of March 2023, our Book to AUM ratio was ~73%.  
 
The scorecard and parameterised approach have helped us originate high credit-quality 
customers which is reflective of our portfolio performance and pool upgrades. Investment in 
building a robust collection infrastructure supported by data analytics-led bounce prediction 
model and recovery efforts have further helped us manage our credit quality. 
 
We aim to make lending to the mSME segment more efficient through digitalisation. We have 
invested in our proprietary Digital Lending Platform (DLP) which has unique features of 
being;  
• A low code and agile platform, 
• Micro-services-based architecture to improve 
processing efficiency, and 
• Enabled with dynamic Business Rule Engine (BRE) for automated decision-making. 
 
We are embedding a data-led decision-making culture and are leveraging our data analytics 
for; 
• Sourcing direct customers 
• Retaining customers 
• Building scorecards to underwrite 
• Prioritising new cases at early stages. 
 
Awards and Recognition 
 
During the year we have bagged some of the prestigious industry awards; 
• NBFC & Fintech Excellence Awards 2022 for ‘Best Digital Transformation Initiative’. 
• Big BFSI Future Tech Show & Awards 2022 in recognition of ‘Exemplary Tech Initiatives 
and Innovation’. 
• India NBFC Summit & Awards 2022 for ‘Best NBFC in SME Co-Lending’. 
• NBFC 100 Leader of Excellence ‘Outstanding Performer’ Award for ‘Business 
Transformation’. 
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Enterprise 
 
Risk Management 
  
At ERFL, we are committed to adhering to the highest standards of responsible governance 
practices and ethical behaviour. We have robust risk awareness embedded in our 
organisational culture. Employees take ownership and are accountable for the risks that ERFL 
is exposed to. We strive for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, while 
ongoing employee training modules ensure that employees are made aware 
of the company's risk appetite. 
 
ERFL’s current business strategy is to focus on an asset light business model and scale up the 
retail book through CLM partnerships. The company tightened its underwriting norms and 
enforcement processes to improve the asset quality. The company continues to leverage on 
data analytics to embed a data-led decision-making culture and focus on simplifying 
processes and digitalisation. 
 
The Company is constantly engaging with all the employees towards awareness of 
information security. Various workshops are conducted during the year and emailers 
(mentioning Do’s and Don’ts) are circulated frequently within the organisation. Adequate 
checks and controls are in place to handle Data Loss Prevention (DLP) cases and brand 
protection. All DLP breaches are handled with sensitivity and strict disciplinary actions are 
taken wherever necessary. 
 
Internal Control Policies and their Adequacy 
 
Edelweiss Group has institutionalised a strong compliance culture across all the business 
entities, recognising that transparency and trust amongst all its stakeholders can be achieved 
only through this. At ERFL, we believe that compliance is the cornerstone of good corporate 
citizenship. 
 
The internal controls at ERFL are commensurate with the business requirements, its scale of 
operations and applicable statutes to ensure orderly and efficient conduct of business. These 
controls have been designed to ensure reasonable assurance with regards to maintaining 
proper accounting controls, substantiation of financial statements and adherence to IND AS 
requirements, safeguarding of resources, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, 
ensuring operating effectiveness, reliability of financial reporting, and compliance with 
applicable regulations and relevant matters covered under section 134 (5) (e) of the Companies 
Act 2013.  
 
Human Resources 
 
At ERFL, our people are a priority, and we provide them with plenty of opportunities to 
thrive, in a work environment that is ethical and productive. 
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All our effort is focused towards enhancing the overall employee experience and contributing 
to their personal and professional development. Every stage of an employee’s journey, 
whether pre-boarding, on-boarding, integration or beyond, is carefully planned to ensure our 
people have access to all the resources required to succeed. 
 
The journey of each ERFL employee begins from the day the offer is rolled out, and we 
Endeavor to provide them with a great experience from the pre-boarding stage itself. Regular 
check-ins to help individuals understand our culture better ensures a seamless transition into 
the organisation. 
 
Our people friendly policies, and intent towards building a well-balanced culture, supported 
by strong organisational values, keep us ahead of the curve. Flexible leaves, health workshops, 
opportunities to pursue hobbies, job rotation, an equitable and secure work environment, and 
a healthy work life balance, are a few ways we ensure our teams feel supported and valued. 
 
It is only when our people grow and develop, can we succeed as an organisation, and our 
learning umbrella- Siksha, is one such platform that helps us stay relevant by upskilling 
ourselves. Siksha caters to diverse learning needs and covers subject matters across domain, 
behavioural, and technical topics. Apart from implementing trainings to acquire new skills, 
we encourage on the job learning through internal movements – vertical and lateral. A 
dedicated career platform facilitates these internal movements, enabling employees to pursue 
aspirational roles. 
 
We value our people and all that they do, and acknowledging their achievements is a 
significant part of our culture. Our robust reward and recognition program enables us to 
applaud important milestones, and various platforms that recognise both upcoming talent 
and tenured employees help us drive a merit-based culture. 
 
Our teams will always be our biggest strength and will continue to inspire us to adopt the best 
people practices. 
 
Technology  

Leadership 

Information Technology Leadership at ERFL is involved in effectively leveraging technology 
to drive innovation, improve operational efficiency, enhance customer experience, and ensure 
regulatory compliance.  

Technology Leadership at ERFL is focused on: 

1. Strategic Alignment: To align technology initiatives with the organization's strategic 
goals and objectives.  

2. Digital Transformation: Plays a crucial role in driving digital transformation 
initiatives within ERFL. This championed the adoption of emerging technologies 
such as low-code platforms, artificial intelligence, machine learning and data 
analytics, to drive innovation. 

3. IT Governance and Risk Management: Established a robust IT governance 
framework and risk management practices. This includes ensuring compliance with 
regulatory requirements, implementing effective security controls, managing cyber 
risks, and safeguarding customer data. 
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4. Customer Experience Enhancement: Prioritized enhancement of customer 
experiences through technology-driven initiatives.  

5. Data Management and Analytics: Data is a valuable asset which establishes robust 
data management and analytical capabilities.  

 
The above effectively lead the digital transformation journey for ERFL, driving technological 
innovation, operational excellence, and sustainable growth in the rapidly evolving financial 
landscape. 
 

Technology resiliency 

The key pillars of technology resiliency have been: 

 Cloud adoption: Migrating to the Cloud technology ensured high availability, 
scalability, and resiliency of our business applications with employees being able to 
securely access information from anywhere, using any device and at any time. 

 Unified collaboration suite: Deployment of a unified collaboration suite helped 
improve employee productivity. 

 Intelligent Automation: This enabled us to develop new experiences and deliver 
process changes rapidly through low code software development tools. 

 Artificial Intelligence: Leveraging advanced Machine Learning algorithms, we have 
deployed over 20 models for evaluating risks, performing AML checks, doing 
customer KYC, identifying frauds, etc. thereby building efficiencies in our business. 

A brief summary of various technology projects completed and in process during FY23.  

We recently have implemented various new applications within our organization by 
replacing old or group applications. These implementations signify our commitment to 
becoming self-sufficient and compliant with regulatory requirements. Here are the details of 
the applications and their progress: 
 
CashTrea - Replacing Apollo: 
To enhance our treasury operations, we have implemented CashTrea, replacing the previous 
system, Apollo. CashTrea offers advanced features and functionalities, empowering us to 
optimize cash management, improve liquidity forecasting, and mitigate financial risks. This 
transition ensures better control and visibility over our treasury activities. 
 
Oracle Fusion - Replacing Oracle EBS: 
In our pursuit of operational excellence, we have upgraded from Oracle EBS to Oracle Fusion, 
our new enterprise resource planning (ERP) system. This migration allows us to leverage 
modern tools and technology for more efficient financial management, procurement, and 
supply chain operations. Oracle Fusion provides a robust platform to support our 
organizational growth and scalability. 
 
BALM (Regulatory Reporting): 
To meet our regulatory reporting obligations, we have implemented BALM (Banking and 
Accounting Log Manager). This solution simplifies the process of generating and submitting 
regulatory reports, ensuring compliance with regulatory requirements. The implementation 
of BALM is currently in progress and is expected to be completed by September 2023. 
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Finnone Neo - Replacing Finnone: 
We are in the process of upgrading from Finnone to Finnone Neo, a more advanced and 
comprehensive loan origination and management system. This transition will enable us to 
enhance the efficiency of our lending processes, improve customer experience, and ensure 
compliance with regulatory guidelines. The implementation of Finnone Neo is scheduled to 
be completed by September 2023. 
 
These application implementations are significant milestones in our journey towards self-
sufficiency and regulatory compliance. They will enable us to optimize our operations, 
improve productivity, and stay ahead in a rapidly evolving NBFC business landscape. 

Information Security 
ERFL is continuously developing its Information Security Management Systems (ISMS) and 
is equipped with a resolute team who are always on the alert to counter the ever-increasing 
threat of cyber-attacks and data breaches. To cater to this changing landscape, we have an in-
depth defence strategy in place to block cyber-attacks including phishing mails, malicious 
links, malicious files & various other forms of cyber-attacks. This has been accomplished 
through: 

 Cloud based email & web filtering services – These solutions enable protection 
against sophisticated email attacks such as phishing, dangerous attachments as well 
as prevent users from visiting malicious & other unwanted web content. 

 Web application firewall – Secures our business-critical applications by filtering 
malicious traffic as well as offers protection against denial of service (dos)/ distributed 
denial of service (ddos) attacks that prevent users from accessing online business 
resources. 

 Network security – NG (Next Generation) Firewalls along with IPS (Intrusion 
Prevention Systems) are in place to block any network attacks. 

 Endpoint protection – Cloud delivered next gen antimalware protection against cyber 
threats. It offers a real time protection against known as well as unknown attacks 
leveraging AI & ML Endpoints have also been hardened to reduce the attack surface 
which include desktops, laptops as well as servers. 

 ERFL has round-the-clock vigilance for monitoring cyber threats through partners & 
manual scanning of the environment for emerging threats.  

 Incident response management services from “Big-Four” firms to provide rapid & 
effective response in the unlikely event of a cyber-attack. 

 We have adopted zero trust security model. This new model requires strict identity 
verification for every person and device trying to access resources on a private 
corporate network, regardless of whether they are sitting within or outside of the 
corporate perimeter. 

 Further, regular vulnerability assessment and penetration testing, review of 
segregation of duties, other audit, and compliance testing(s) have ensured that the 
organization’s information assets are safe and secure. 

 An awareness program is conducted for all employees using the digital channel 
regarding cyber security. Employees of the Organization are required to undergo a 
mandatory online learning module on information security and affirm that they have 
understood and are aware of the protocols to be followed. Regular information 



                                                                                                                                         

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 
Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070, Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 
Email : assistance@eclf.com Web : www.edelwelssretailfin.com 

 

security related flyers/e-mailers are also sent to all employees for awareness and 
training purposes. 

 During FY 2023, an Information System (IS) audit was conducted by a CERT-in 
empanelled audit firm. The areas audited were, inter alia, user access management, 
patch management, business continuity and disaster recovery, data protection and the 
information security management system framework including cyber security. The 
audit revealed no major observations. 
 

Conclusion: 

ERFL’s Information Systems and Technology highlights several achievements from the past 
year and their impact on Customer Experience. ‘IT’ is not just about technology and systems 
but supporting and engaging our customers and business partners (both internal and 
external) in their daily work by providing a safe and secure environment from an IT 
perspective. With the rise of cyber-enabled espionage, sabotage, and global influence, it is 
imperative to continuously explore ways and means, using latest and well tested technology 
to identify and mitigate potential security risks linked to Information & Technology. ERFL in 
its commitment to Customers ensures that its internal controls and quality assurance is 
regularly reviewed and upgraded to meet any eventuality and to be in line with competition 
and market expectations. 
 
Customer Experience 
We consider customer experience as a key pillar of business success. With this motto in sight, 
we have continued to build a culture of customer-centric business processes. To drive this 
agenda, we have also implemented various measures to enable customers to resolve their 
queries online and make it hassle-free. 
 
Some customer-centric achievements during FY2023; 
• Enhanced First Time Right resolution rates - 62% achievement (FY2023) as against 22% 
(FY2022) resulting in improvement overall customer satisfaction. 
• Positive National Net Promoter Score (NPS) scores–57. 
• Omni-channel customer service concept introduced creating seamless customer requests’ 
onboarding and fulfilment. 
• Self-service options for customers on web portal which provides account statement, 
repayment schedule, interest certificate, TDS filing, and updating of contact details. 
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Annexure II 
 
 
 

Form AOC-2 
             (Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

 
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 
188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto: 
 

I. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: Nil 
 

 
Sr. 
No. 
 

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration of 
the contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Salient terms 
of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or 
transactions 
including 
the value, if 
any 
 

Justification 
for 
entering into 
such contracts 
or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
 

Date of 
approval 
by the 
Board 
 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if 
any 
 

Date on which the 
special resolution 
was passed in 
general meeting as 
required under first 
proviso to section 188 
 

- - - - - - - - - 
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II. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis: 
 
Sr. 
No. 

Name(s) of the related 
party and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions 

Duration 
of the 
contracts/ 
arrangem
ents/ 
transactio
ns 

 Salient  terms of 
the 
contracts/arrang
ements/transacti
ons including 
the value, if any 
(₹ In millions) 

Date of approval by the Board/Committee Amount 
paid as 
advance
s, if any 

1.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited  

Short term 
Loans taken 
from 
(Maximum) 

 One Year         1,750.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

2.  Ecap Equities Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Edel Land Limited) 

Short term Loan 
taken from 
(Maximum) 

 One Year            400.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

3.  ECL Finance Limited Short term Loan 
taken from 
(Maximum) 

One Year  650.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

4.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term Loan 
taken from 
(Volume) 

 One Year          1750.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

5.  Ecap Equities Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Edel Land Limited) 

Short term Loan 
taken from 
(Volume) 

 One Year       550.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

6.  ECL Finance Limited Short term Loan 
taken from 
(Volume) 

 One Year   1,890.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 
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7.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year     1,750.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

8.  Ecap Equities Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Edel Land Limited) 

Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year       550.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

9.  ECL Finance Limited Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year   1,290.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

10.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Volume) 

 One Year    1,750.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

11.  Edel Land Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Volume) 

 One Year      550.00 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

12.  ECL Finance Limited Short term Loan 
repaid to 
(Volume) 

 One Year    1,890.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

13.  ECL Finance Limited Short term 
Loans given to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year        150.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

14.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year       250.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

15.  Edel Land Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year         970.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 
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16.  ECAP Securities and 
Investments Limited 
(Formerly Ecap 
Equities) 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Maximum) 

 One Year         450.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

17.  ECL Finance Limited Short term 
Loans given to 
(Volume) 

 One Year          260.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

18.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Volume) 

 One Year           250.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

19.  Edel Land Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Volume) 

 One Year         1,270.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

20.  ECAP Securities and 
Investments Limited 
(Formerly known as  
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans given to 
(Volume) 

 One Year          450.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

21.  ECL Finance Limited Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Maximum) 

 One Year         150.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

22.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Maximum) 

 One Year     
1,000.00  

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

23.  Edel Land Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Maximum) 

 One Year         470.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

24.  ECAP Securities and 
Investments Limited 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Maximum) 

 One Year           450.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 
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(Formerly Ecap 
Equities) 

25.  ECL Finance Limited Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Volume) 

 One Time             340.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

26.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Volume) 

 One Time         3,720.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

27.  Edel Land Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Volume) 

 One Time            970.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

28.  ECAP Securities and 
Investments Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Ecap Equities Limited) 

Short term 
Loans repaid by 
(Volume) 

 One Time          450.00  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

29.  India Credit Investment 
Fund II 

Sale of Security 
Receipt  

One Time      4252.20 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

30.  ECL Finance Limited Investment in 
Security Receipt 
issued by 

 One Time     
166.40 

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

31.  ECL Finance Limited Loan portfolio 
sold under 
direct 
assignment  

 One Time     
811.61  

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

32.  Edel Finance Company 
Limited 

Non-convertible 
debentures 
(Loans) 
purchased from 

 On going     
140.00  

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 
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33.  ECL Finance Limited Bonds sold to  On going       178.13  May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

34.  Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Securities 
purchased from 

 One Year     1671.49 May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

NIL 

35.  Ecap Equities Limited 
(Formerly known as 
Edel Land Limited) 

Securities 
purchased from  

One Year     
634.95 

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

Nil 

36.  
 
 

Edelweiss Rural & 
Corporate Services 
Limited 

Interest Income 
on Loan to 

One Time    
145.97 

May 6, 2022, July 26, 2022, October 31, 2023, 
January 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023 

Nil 

 
Note - As part of fund based activities, intergroup Company loans and advances activities undertaken are generally in the nature of revolving 
demand loans. Such loans and advances, voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. Pursuant to 
Ind AS 24 – Related Party Disclosures, maximum amount of loans given and repaid alongwith the transaction volume are disclosed above. Interest 
income and expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed on the basis of full amounts of such loans and advances given and repaid.  

 
 

      

 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 16, 2023 
Place: Mumbai 

                                                     For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
                                                     Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited  

      
                                                  

Phanindranath Kakarla                                                Shilpa Gattani 
Director                                                                            Director 
DIN: 0207667                                                                   DIN: 05124763 
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Annexure – III 
 

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities  
[Pursuant to clause (o) of sub-section (3) of section 135 of the Companies Act,2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Corporate Social 

Responsibility) Rules, 2014] 

 
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company: 

 
To leverage the capacity and to equip and enable the social sector to achieve the greatest impact on the lives of the poor in India.  
 

2. Composition of CSR Committee as March 31, 2023: 
  

Sr. No. Name of Director 
Designation / Nature of 

Directorship 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee held during the 

year 

Number of meetings of CSR 
Committee attended during the 

year 

1. Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar Independent Director 2 2 
2. Dr. Vinod Juneja Independent Director 2 2 
3. Ms. Shilpa Gattani Non-Executive Director 2 2 

 
3. The web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board are disclosed on the website of 

the Company: 
https://www.edelweissretailfin.com 
 

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable : Not Applicable 
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: 
  

Sr. No. Financial Year 
Amount available for set-off from preceding 

financial years (in₹) 
Amount required to be set-off for the 

financial year, if any (in ₹) 
1 2019-20 Nil Nil 
2 2020-21 Nil Nil 
3 2021-22 Nil Nil  

Total Nil Nil 
  

6. Average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5): ₹ 224.99 million 
 

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5):  ₹4.50 million 
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years. - Nil 
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil 
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c):  ₹4.50 million 
 

8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: 
 

 
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial 
Year.  ( ₹in million) 

Amount Unspent (in ₹) 

Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

 Amount. Date of transfer. Name of the Fund Amount. Date of transfer. 
4.50 Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11) 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
the 

Project. 

Item from 
the list of 
activities 

in 
Schedule 
VII to the 

Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Project 
duration. 

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project (in 

₹). 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
Year (in 

₹). 

Amount 
transferred 
to Unspent 

CSR 
Account for 
the project 

as per 
Section 

135(6) (in ₹). 

Mode of 
Implementation - 
Direct (Yes/No). 

Mode of 
Implementation - 

Through 
Implementing 

Agency 

State. District. Name 
CSR 

Registration 
number. 

Details provided in Annexure A  
 

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year: 
 

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 

Sr. No. 
Name of the 

Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 

to the Act. 

Local area 
(Yes/ No). 

Location of the 
project. Amount 

spent for the 
project (in 

₹). 

Mode of 
implementation 

- Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation 
- Through implementing 

agency. 

State. District. Name. 
CSR 

registration 
number. 

Nil 
  

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil 
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil 
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(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e):  ₹ 4.50 million 
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil 
 

Sr. No. Particular 
Amount (₹ in 

million) 
(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 4.50 
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 4.50 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.00 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, 

if any 
Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 
  

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: 
 

Sr. No. 
Preceding 

Financial Year. 

Amount 
transferred to 
Unspent CSR 

Account under 
section 135 (6) ( 
₹in million) 

Amount spent in 
the reporting 

Financial Year (₹ 
in million). 

Amount transferred to any fund 
specified under Schedule VII as 

per section 135(6), if any. 
Amount remaining to be 

spent in succeeding 
financial years. (₹ in 

million) Name of 
the Fund 

Amount (in 
₹). 

Date of 
transfer. 

1. 2019-20  Nil 
 
 
  

2. 2020-21 
3.  2021-22 

   
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s): 
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(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) 

Sr. No. Project ID. 
Name of the 

Project. 

Financial 
Year in 

which the 
project was 
commenced. 

Project 
duration. 

Total amount 
allocated for 
the project 

(in ₹). 

Amount 
spent on the 
project in the 

reporting 
Financial 

Year (in ₹). 

Cumulative 
amount spent 
at the end of 

reporting 
Financial 

Year. (in ₹) 

Status of the 
project - 

Completed 
/Ongoing. 

NIL 
  

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the 
financial year: Nil 

  
  

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s). 
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset. 
(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address etc. 
(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital asset). 
 

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable 
 

                                                                   

 
 
 
Date: May 16, 2023 
Place:  Mumbai 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

      
Shilpa Gattani 
Director 
DIN:  05124763   

    
Vinod Juneja                   
Chairman CSR Committee  
DIN: 00044311 
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1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 

Sr. 
No. 

Name of 
CSR 

project 

Item from 
List of 

activities 
in 

Schedule 
VII to the 

Act 

Loca
l 

Area 
(Yes
/No) 

Location of project 

Projec
t 

durati
on 
(in 

Years) 

Amount 
allocated 

for the 
project 
(in ₹) 

Amount 
spent in 

the 
current 

financial 
year 

Amoun
t 

transfer
red to 

unspent 
CSR 

account 
for the 
project 
as per 

Mode of 
impleme
ntation - 

Direct 
(Yes/No) 

Mode of 
implementation 

through 
implementation 

agency 

    State District    Section 
135(6) 

 Name 

CSR 
regist
ratio
n no. 

1 Improving 
adaptabilit
y towards 
climate 
change 
and global 
warming 
effects 
through 

Livelihood 
& Climate 
Action - 
Schedule 
VII (iii) & 
(iv) 

No  Odisha Mayurbhanj 3 17,50,897 17,50,897 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 
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initiating 
CSA 
(climate 
smart 
approach) 
for 
sustainabil
ity of 
tribal 
communit
ies 

2 Strengthe
ning 
education 
system for 
improved 
learning 
outcomes 

Education
- Schedule 
VII (ii) 

No Odisha Koraput 3 27,49,103 27,49,103 - No EdelGive 
Foundation 

CSR0
00005

14 

 
TOTAL 

     
45,00,000 45,00,000 - - 
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ANNEXURE – IV 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023 
 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To, 
The Members, 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Mumbai 
 
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited (CIN: 
U67120MH1997PLC285490) and having its registered office at Tower 3, Wing B, Kohinoor 
City Mall, Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (W), Mumbai - 400070 (hereinafter called ‘the 
Company’). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable 
basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/ statutory compliances and expressing our 
opinion thereon. 
 
Based on our verification of the company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 complied with the statutory 
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 
compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 
 
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 
according to the provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made 

thereunder; 
 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 
External Commercial Borrowings; 
 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): - 
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(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 2015; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the company during the 
audit period); 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the company during the 
audit period); 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-
Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; 

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the company during the audit period); 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2008 (Not applicable to the company during the audit period); and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (applicable in respect of Non-convertible 
debentures of the company listed at stock exchanges); 

 
(vi) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and Credit Information Companies (Regulation) 

Act, 2005 and the directions, regulations issued by Reserve Bank of India thereunder and 
as applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies, being laws that are specifically 
applicable to the Company based on their sector/ industry. 

 
We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards 
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India; 
 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Standards, Guidelines etc. mentioned above and in respect of laws 
specifically applicable to the company based on their sector/industry, in so far as registration, 
membership, submission of various returns/information or other particulars to be filed with 
Reserve Bank of India. 
 
We further report that 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There were no changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors during the year under reporting. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for 
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seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the 
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and 
recorded as part of the minutes. However, in the minutes of the meetings of Board and its 
Committees, for the period under review, no dissents were noted and hence we have no 
reason to believe that decisions by the Board were not approved by all the directors present. 
  
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards and guidelines. 
 
We further report that during the audit period there were no major corporate events which 
required to be reported. 
 
This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure-A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 16, 2023 
UDIN: F006252E000306442 

For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 
 
 
 

CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 

         M. No. FCS  6252 C.P. No. 3531 
PR 822/2020 
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‘Annexure A’ 

 
To, 
The Members, 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Mumbai 
 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based 
on our audit. 
 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The 
verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provided a reasonable 
basis for our opinion. 
 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Book 
of Accounts of the Company. 
 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the management representation about the 
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulation, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited 
to the verification of procedures on the test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 16, 2023 
UDIN: F006252E000306442 

For Manish Ghia & Associates 
Company Secretaries 

(Unique ID: P2006MH007100) 
 
 
 
 

CS Mannish L. Ghia 
Partner 

         M. No. FCS  6252 C.P. No. 3531 
PR 822/2020 
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ANNEXURE V 
 

Disclosure pursuant to the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 

 
The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median employee’s remuneration and 
other details in terms of sub-section 12 of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014, is as under: 
 

Sr. 
No. 

Disclosure 
Requirement 

Disclosure Details 

1 Ratio of the remuneration of each 
director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of 
the Company for the financial year 

Not Applicable 
(During FY 22-23, Non-Executive Directors were 
not paid Remuneration and Independent 
Directors were not paid any remuneration except 
payment of sitting fees.) 

2 Percentage increase in 
remuneration of each director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the 
financial year 

Directors/ 
KMP’s 

Title 

% Increase 
in 
remuneration 
(Please refer 
Note) 

Mr. Jignesh  
Gaglani 

Company  
Secretary 

NA 

Mr.     
Mehernosh  
Tata 

Chief 
Executive      
Officer 

NA 

Mr. Manoj 
Agarwal 

Manager NA 

Mr. Hitesh  
Bhadada 

Chief Financial  
Officer 

NA 

Ms. Inara 
Wadhwania 

Company 
Secretary 

NA 

3 
Percentage increase in the median 
remuneration of employees in the 
financial year 

9.46% 

4 
Number of permanent employees 
on the rolls of Company at the end 
of the year 

162 permanent employee were on the rolls of 
Company as on Mach 31, 2023. 



 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Corporate Identity Number: U67120MH1997PLC285490 
Registered Office : Tower 3, Wing ‘ B’, Kohinoor City Mall , Kohinoor City, Kirol Road, Kurla (west), Mumbai – 400070, Maharashtra;   +91 22 4272 2200 
Email : assistance@eclf.com Web : www.edelwelssretailfin.com 

 

5 Average percentile increase 
already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the 
managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison 
with the percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration and 
justification thereof and point out 
if there are any exceptional 
circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration 

The average increase in the remuneration for 
employees other than the managerial personnel is 
-17.6% and for managerial personnel 54%. 

6 Affirmations that the remuneration 
is as per the remuneration policy of 
the Company 

It is affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per 
the Remuneration Policy of the Company. 

  Note –  
  Since the remuneration of Mr. Jignesh Gaglani, Mr. Mehernosh Tata, Mr. Manoj Agarwal,        

Mr. Hitesh Bhadada and Ms. Inara Wadhwania was only for the part of the year / previous 
year, ratio of remuneration to median and increase, is not comparable.  

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Date: May 16, 2023 
Place:  Mumbai 

 
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

      
Phanindranath Kakarla 
Director 
DIN:  02076676 

    
Shilpa Gattani 
Director 
DIN: 05124763 

 

  

  



G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To 

The Members of 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

("the Company"), which comprise the Ba lance sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the Statement of Profit and 

Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in 

Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the 

significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "Financial 

Statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 

aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended 

("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 

Rules, 2015, as amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 

143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 

Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit 

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on standalone 

financial statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 

audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our 

audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 

separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit 

matters to be communicated in our report: 

Sr No 

1. 

Key Audit Matter 

Impairment of financial assets as at 
balance sheet date (expected credit 
losses): 

Auditor's Response 

► Read and assessed the Company's accou 
policies for impairment of financial asset 
their compliance with Ind AS 109 and 

Mumbai Office: D-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 400086 • 
Phone: +91 22 3512 3184 Email: chetan.sapre@gdaca.com . 
Pune Office: GDA House, Plot No. 85, Bhusari Colony (Right), Paud Road, Pune - 411 038, 
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Ind AS 109 requires the Company to 
provide for impairment of its loan 
receivables (designated at amortised 
cost and fair value through other 
comprehensive income) using the 
expected credit loss (ECL) approach. ECL 
involves an estimation of probability­
weighted loss on financial instruments 
over their life, considering reasonable 
and supportable information about past 
events, current conditions, and 
forecasts of future economic conditions 
which could impact the credit quality of 
the Company's loans and advances. 

In the process, a significant degree of 
judgement has been applied by the 
management for: 

o Staging of loans (i.e. classificr.1tion in 

'significant increase in credit risk' 
("SICR") and 'default' categories); 

• Grouping of borrowers based on 
homogeneity by using approprir.1te 
statistical techniques; 

• 
• 

Estimation of behavioural life; 

Determining macro-economic 
factors impacting credit quality of 
receivables; 

• Estimation of losses for loan 
products with no/ minimal historical ! 
defaults. 

G.D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

governance framework approved by the Board 

of Directors. 

► Evaluated the reasonableness of the 
management estimates by understanding the 
process of ECL estimation and related 
assumptions and tested the controls around 
data extraction and validation. 

► Assessed the criteria for staging of loans based 
on their past-due status to check compliance 
with requirement of Ind AS 109. Tested a sample 

of performing (stage 1) loans to assess whether 
any SICR or loss indicators were present 
requiring them to be classified under higher 
stages. 

► Assessed the additional considerations applied 
by the management for staging of loans as SICR 
or default categories in view of Company's 
policy on one time restructuring. 

► Tested the ECL model, including assumptions 
and underlying computation. Assessed the 
floor/ minimum rates of provisioning applied by 
the Company for loan products with inadequate 
historical defaults 

► Tested assumptions used by the management in 
determining the overlay for macro-economic 
factors. 

► Assessed disclosures included in the financial 
statements in respect of expected credit losses. 

~ ---- ------------------+----·---------- ------------
2. Sales I Assignment of Financial Assets > Read and assessed the Company's accounting 

______ ..____, _ 

policies for computation and accounting of sa les 
/ assignment of loan portfolios as per the 
provisions of Ind AS 109. 

► Read and assessed the contracts entered by the 
Company for sale/assignment to verify t he 
gains/ losses on the transactions. 

► Verified the procedures followed by the 
company while carrying out t he 
sale/assignment. 

► Verification of confirmation and fair valuat io~ P..PTe~ 
Security receipts. {(;'( ~ 

'\:'J : <?- ~""' I ,'(> ~'t; 
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lnfo,mation Other th.in the Standalone .Financial State·ments and Auditor's Report Thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 

informcJtion comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's 

Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 

Shareholder's Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's 

report thereon. 

Our opi;1ion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection w ith our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 

;nfcrrnatkm and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 

appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a materic1I misstatement of this other 

informcitio~, v.1e .are required t'o report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

M;magement's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

The Compan'f's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act"j with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statEments that give a 

true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, (changes in equity and cash flows of the 

Company in accordance with IND AS and the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including 

the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

of the assets of the Con~pany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection 

and appl;c3tion of appropriate implementation ar.d maintenance of acr.ounting policies; making judgments 

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, irnplernentcition and maintenance of adequate 

internal financial co:,trols, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 

the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give 

a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In prer.,2.ring the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 

concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 

operations, .or _has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

ThosP. Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that 

indudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance i:; a high level Qf assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 

c:onduct~d in . accordance 1.vith SAs will always detect · a material misstatement when it e 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggr 

they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users t_aken on the basis o 

standalone financial statements. 

Mumbai Office: 0-509, Neelkanth Business Park, Nathani Road, Vidyavihar West, Mumbai - 400086 . 
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As part of c1n audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 

skeptkism throughout the audit. We also: 

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether 

due t.c fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 

·. evidence that is sufficient and appropriate t•J pro·1ide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting 

a materi;:il misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the ,'\ct, we are also 

responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial 

controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such contro!s. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimiites and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 

cond.itions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If 

w~ cc.nclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are requir~d to draw attention in our auditor's report 

to the related disclosures in the standalone finan~ial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 

auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 

a going concern. 

~ Evalu,~te the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying 

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or 

in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 

financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) 

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 

effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements. 

We comr:17unicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 

control that .we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine t~ 

matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the c1 "~~[1t '?, 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report u ,i s· : 

-?:; ?$' 
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstan ~ (fAcco-e~'-'I> 
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we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences 

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Other legal and Regulatory Requirements 

I) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 

the Annexure "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 

applicable. 

II) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as 

it appears from our examination of those books. 

· c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, 

Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 

agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards 

specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 

Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 

B". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the 

Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting. 

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid 

by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 

197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under 

Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under 

Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us. 

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanations given to us: 

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position; 

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for '1/~~,i~\ 
there were any material foreseeable losses]; /( 0:- ·\j 

\ C) * } 
\\f- ill/ 

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education\'f~Acco·:,'-;;1/ 
Protection Fund by the Company. ~-;:;:;,' 
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iv) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the note 57(viii){A) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind 
of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

v) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the note 57(viii)(B) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by 
the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties" ), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 
mc1nner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

vi) Bas2d on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement. 

vii) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company. 

viii) No comments have been offered as regards the maintenance of books of account using 
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility under Rule 
ll(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 since the said requirements under proviso 
to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to the Company for 
the financial year ended on March 31, 2023. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 

Chartered Acr.:ountants 

Firm Registration Number: 100515W 

g#: 
Mciyuresh V. Zele 

Partner 

Membership No: 150027 

UDIN : 231S00278GYKGJ8532 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 16, 2023 

---t....:aE.,__J!!!!!,!- !!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!-!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!o!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!'J!!!!!~c!!!-»!!!!!!-!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!G!!!-!!'!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!! 
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ANNEXURE "A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE FINANCIAi. STATEMENTS 

OF EDEi.WEiSS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED 

(Referred to in paragraph I under the heading "Report on Other Legal a,,d Regula~ory Requirements" of 

our report of even date) 

i. 

ii. 

iii. 

a) 

A} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars inclucling quantitative 

details and location of property, plant and equipment for the year. 

S) The Company has :-naintained proper records showing full particulars including quant, ;·ative 

details and location of intangible assets. 

b} The Company has not physically verified its fixed assets during the year, however there is a regular 

prograrr.me of verification in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion, 

is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. 
.. ' . 

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties 

(other than prc,perties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements arP. duly 

. executed in favour of the lessee), are held in the name of the Company. 

d) The company ha~ neither revalued its PPE (including Right of Use assets) nor intangib!e as,ets or 

both during the year. 

e) As per the information and explanatio:1 provided to us, no proceedings have been initiated or are 

pending against the company for holding any benami property under the 'Benami Transt1ctio.ns 

(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)' and rules made thereunder. 

a) The Co,npany business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under 

paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not.applicable to the Company. 

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has availed working 

capital limits from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly statements filed 

b~r the :::ompany are in agreement with the books of accounts. 

a) As per the information and explanations given to us, the principal business of the company is to 

give loar.s and hence clause iii(a) of the order is not applicable. 

b) As per the information and explanations given to us, the investments made and leans provided by 

the company, are not prejudicial to the company's interest; 

Company has not given any guarantees, security, and advances in the nature of loar.s. 

c) In respect of the loans/ advances in nature of loan, granted by the company as part of i'i"s busil ~ 

the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated b ,t e ~ 
' . 0 

Company. Hav;ng regard to the voluminous nature of loan transactions, it is not practical:! ~ JP 
"c ~" 

furnish entity-wise details of amount, due date of repayment or receipt and the e):tent of delay {§!!._Acco~~ 

suggested in the Guidance Note on CARO 2020, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants • 

of India for the reporting under this clause} in this report, in respect of loans and advances which 
=- =- WWW 
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~----.aiii¥E.Wf:awnw1.li\ ,, .......... ~MS ·= 
_ ~ere not re~aid/paid when they are due or were repaid/paid with a delay, in the normal course of 

lendi~ig business. 

FurthP.r, ei;cept for those instances •..vhere there are delays or defaults in repayment of principal 

and/or interest as at the balance sheet date, in respect of which the Company has disclosed asset 

classification/staging of loans in note 12.2 to the standalone financial statements in accordance 

with Indian Accounting (Ind AS) and the guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India, the parties 

are repaying the principal amounts, as stipulated, and c1re also regular in payrr.ent of interest, as 

applicab:e. 

cl) Ii": respect of thF-: loans/ advances in nature of loans, the total amount overdue for more than ninety 

days (including cases classified as non-performing asset (NPA) as per RBI guidelines) as at Match 

31, 2023 and the details of the number of such cases, are disclosed in note 12.2 to the st,rndalone 

financial statements. In such instances, in our opinion, reasonable steps have been by the Company 

for recovery of the overdue amount of principal and interest. 

· · e) In our opinion and based on the information and explanation given to us, the company is in the 

business of giving loans, hence this cl,rnse is not applicable. 

f) According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any loans 

or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 

period of repayment. 

iv. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans, investments, 

guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section 185 and 186 of the 

Companies A_ct 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon. 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not 

accepted any deposits or the amounts deemed to be deposit as per the directives issued by the 

Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules frc1med. 

Accordingly, paragraph 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company. 

vi. The Company is not in the business of saie of any goods. Hence the provisions of Clause 3(vi) of the 

Order are not applicable to the Company. 

vii. 

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and according to the records of the 

Cornpany examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing with the 

appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees' State 

Insurance, Income-tax, Goods and Service Ta)(, Cess and any other statutory dues, whereve~ 

applicable. The provisions relating to duty of excise, duty of custom, sales tax, value added tax, and 
~=:::,..... 

ser~ice tax are not applicable to the Company. According to the information and explanations g}'"'~r:if>-PTi: cf 

t0 us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of aforesaid dues were outstanding as at .{f"e:~ '9 
31, 2023 for a period of more than 6 months from the date they became payable. {\~ ?Jj)* 

~~ 1:i:' 
~1, ~-

b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no dues in respect of lnco~ tA,co~~ 

Tax, Duty of Excise, Duty of Customs, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax and Value 

Added Tax which have not been deposited on account of any dispute except for the following. 

--'!!!!!!!!--!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!:!!!!!!!!!!!!:!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!.'!!!!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!'!!!!!!!!!!!! 
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-

Name of the Nature of Dues Amount (Rs. In Period to which Forum where the 
Statute millions) the amount dispute is 

relates pending 
GST Act ITC Reversal 0.29 2018-19 Appellate 

Authority 

GST Act ITC Reversal 0.27 2019-20 Appellate 
' 

Authority 

viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions or income, not recorded in 

the books of account, have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 

assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961). 

ix. 

x. 

xi. 

a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not 

defaulted in repayments of dues from any lender during the year. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not declared as willful 

defaulter by any bank or Financial Institution or any lender. 

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, 
term loar,s were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained. 

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, the funds raised on short term basis 

ht1ve not been utilized for long-term purposes. 

e. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix(e) 

of the order is not applicable. 

f. The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and hence clause ix(f) of 

the order is not applicable. 

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of 

records of the Company, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or 

further public offer during the year. Hence the reporting requirement under clause 3(x)(a) is not 

applicable to the company. 

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report U/s 143(12) 

of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, predecessor auditor or by us in 
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Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the 

Central Government. 

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been 

received during the year by the company. 

xii. In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3{xii)(a) to 

3{xii)(c)of the order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon. 

xiii. According to the information and explanat;ons given to us and based on our examination of records of 

the Company, the transactions entered with related parties are in compliance with provisions of 

section 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and the details of such transactions are disclosed in 

the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

xiv. 

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has an inter'nal audit 

system commensurate with the size and nature of its business. 

b. The reports of the Internal Auditors of the companyfasued till date for the period under audit were 

considered by us. 

xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on our 

examination of records of the Company, the Company during the year has not entered into any non­

cash transactions with directors or persons connected with the directors covered under the provisions 

of sec 192 of the Act and accordingly the provisions of clause (xv) of the Order are not applicable to 

the Company. 

xvi. 

xvii. 

xviii. 

xix. 

a. In our opinion, the Company is required to be registered under section 45-IA of the RBI Act, 1934 

(2 of 1934) and accordingly the registration certificate is obtained by the Company. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not conducted Non­

Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from 

the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; 

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is not a Core Investment 
Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the RBI. Hence the clause 3(xvi)(c )of the 
Report is not applicable. 

d. According to the information and explanation given to us, there is one Core Investment Company 
(CIC) as part of the Group. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not incurred cash losses in 
the financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. ,!'.~ 

rl "~~~,~ There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year and accordingly, the reppff.ing ~ i 

requirement under clause 3{xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. i.? ;; ~ 
According t~ the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, a;~-~~tA;:~~~ 
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, and our knowledge of the BOD and manag·ement 
plans, we are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report and 
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that company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing as at the date of balance sheet as and when 
they fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date. 

xx. 
a. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect 

of other than ongoing projects which are required to be transferred to a Fund specified in Schedule 
VII to the Companies Act, within a period of 6 months of the expiry of the financial year in 
compliance with second proviso to Sec 135 (5) of the said Act. 

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no unspent amount in respect 
of ongoing project which are required to be transferred to special account in compliance with the 
provision under section 135(6) of the said Act. 

xxi. The Company is not required to prepare consolidated financial statements and hence the provisions of 
Clause of 3(xxi)is not applicable. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

F;rm~ n Number: 100515W 

Mayuresh V. Zele 
Partner 
Membership No: 150027 
UDIN : 23150027BGYKGJ8532 
Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 16, 2023 
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ANNEXURE - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON STANDALONE IND AS FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED 

(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report 
of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE 
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial 
Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting ("the Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the 
Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
~::::;::;:::~ 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Fin~ , . ,_pr~ cf 

Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A comijr;i'v s ~ 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) per ![Q to ·* 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transaction \ " ~-f 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recor ;ft Acco~~ 
as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
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accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such 
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of March 31, 2023, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration Number: 100515W 

Mayuresh V. Zele 
Partner 
Membership No: 150027 
UDIN : 23150027BGYKGJ8532 
Place : Mumbai. 
Date : May 16, 2023 
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Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

ASSETS 

Financial assets 
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
(c) Securities held for trading 
(d) Trade receivables 
(e) Loans 
(f) Investments 
(g) Other financial assets 

Non-financial assets 
(a) Current tax assets (net) 
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) 
( c) Property, plant and equipment 
( d) Intangible assets under development 
(e) Other intangible assets 
(f) Other non-financial assets 

TOT AL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities 
(a) Trade payables 

(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises 

(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

(b) Debt securities 
(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 
(dJ Subordinated liabilities 
(e) Other financial liabil ities 

Non-financial liabilities 
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 
(b) Provisions 
(c) Other non-financial liabilities 

Equity 
(a) Equity share capital 
(b) Other equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
ICAI Firm Registr ion Number: 100515W 

per Mayuresh V. Zele 
Partner 
Membership no: 150027 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 16, 2023 

f,~ 
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, / 

Note 

8 
9 
10 
11 
12 
13 
14 

15 
16 
17 
18 
19 
20 

21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

26 
27 
28 

29 
30 

I to 64 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

267.13 
119.37 
178.13 
35.21 

5,443.67 
3,115.40 

826.19 
9,985.10 

72.53 
36.54 
26.49 

0.00 
112.26 
112.31 
360.13 

10,345.23 

57.27 
889.88 
705.60 

2,190.60 
1,021.92 
4,865.27 

59.17 
12.95 
41.34 

113.46 

429.50 
4,937.00 
5,366.50 

10,345.23 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

166.41 
139.57 
50.29 
19.64 

10,236.43 
1,540.98 

38.96 
12,192.28 

63.96 
117.06 

17.50 
92.94 

0.77 
158.11 
450.34 

12,642.62 

0.89 

53.17 
2,804.43 
1,774.29 
2,153.18 

673.97 
7,459.93 

44.02 
11.38 
40.00 
95.40 

429.50 
4,657.79 
5,087.29 

12,642.62 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

~ 
~ tani 

t~hK 
Phanindranath Kakarla 

Director Director 
DIN: 05124763 DIN: 02076676 

Chief Financial Officer 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 3 I , 2023 
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

I. Revenue from operations 
Interest income 
Dividend income 
Fee and commission income 

Net gain on fair value changes 

Total revenue from operations 

II. Other income 

III. Total Income 

IV. Expenses 
Finance costs 
Impairment on financial instruments 
Employee benefits expense 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Other expenses 

Total expenses 

V. Profit before tax 

VI. Tax expenses: 
Current tax 

( I) Current tax 
(2) Short / (Excess) provision for earlier years 

Deferred tax 

VII. Profit for the year 

Other Comprehensive Income 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Remeasurement gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans 
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 each): 
(I) Basic 
(2) Diluted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G.D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 

IC~ o,N,rnb 

per Mayuresh V. Zele 
Partner , 
Membership no: 150027 ·, 

Place: Mumbai 
Date : May 16, 2023 

Note For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
March 31 , 2022 

31 

32 

33 

34 

35 
36 
37 

17 & 19 
38 

39 

39 

42 
39 

41 

I to 64 

1,351.19 

31.40 
(95.60) 

1,286.99 

10.22 

1,297.21 

647.86 
(189.48) 

236.33 
10.56 

220.93 

926.20 

371.01 

12.63 
12.63 

80.52 

277.86 

0.88 

0.88 

278.75 

6.47 
6.47 

1,560.55 

15.72 

162.20 

1,738.47 

35.33 

1,773.80 

827.31 
(117.50) 

215.72 
34.67 

559.58 

1,519.78 

254.01 

23 .73 

29.52 
(5.79) 
45.59 

184.69 

(0.39) 

(039) 

184.30 

4.30 
4.30 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

• 
' ,;pP_-t> 

~~ 
Director 

DIN: 05124763 

ChiefFinancial Officer 

Phanindranath Kakarla 
Director 

DIN: 02076676 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2023 
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

(a) 

(b) 

-- - -- - - - -- -

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up 
(Eauitv shares of Rs. IO each, fullv oaid-uo) 

- -----

Balance at April 01, 2021 
Profit for the vear 
Remeasurement orofit on defined benefit plans 
Total Comorehensive Income for the year 
Transfers to/ (from) retained earnings 
Reversal of ESOPs chan!es on cancellation 
Balance at March 31, 2022 
Profit for the vear 
Remeasurement Joss on defined benefit olans 
Total Comorehensive Income for the vear 
Transfers from retained earnings 
Transfers to retained earnings 

Reversal of ESOPs charees on cancellation 
Balance at March 31, 2023 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Jl.egisi,atiqn Number : I 00515W 

Partner 

Membership no: 150027 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 16, 2023 

Outstanding 
as on April 01, 

2021 

429.50 

429.50 

Capital 
Reserve 

8.18 

-
-
-
-
-

8.18 

-
-
-
-
-
-

8.18 

Issued during 
the year 

0.00 

0.00 

Securities 
Premium 
Account 

3,112.08 

-
-

-
-

3,112.08 

-
-
-
-
-
-

3,112.08 

Outstanding Issued during Outstanding 
as on March the year ason March 

31,2022 31, 2023 

429.50 0.00 429.50 

429.50 0.00 429.50 

Deemed Special Reserve Debenture Retained Total 
capital under Section redemption Earnings 

contribution - 45-IC of the reserve 
Equity shares Reserve Bank 

of India Act, 
1934 

5.94 315.86 67.84 959.86 4.469.76 
- - - 184.69 184.69 
- - - (0.39) (0.39) 
- - - 184.30 184.30 
- 36.94 - (36.94) (0.00) 
- - - 3.73 3.73 

5.94 352.80 67.84 1,110.95 4,657.79 
- - - 277.86 277.86 
- - - 0.88 0.88 
- - - 278.75 278.75 
- 55.57 - (55.57) -
- - (44.93) 44.93 -
- - - 0.46 0.46 

5.94 408.37 22.91 1,379.51 4,937.00 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

-.. ~/ 
~~ 

Director 
DIN: 051247, 

ChiefFinancial Officer 

~? 
Director 

DIN: 02076676 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Statement of Cash nows 
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

A Cash now from operating activities 

Profit before tax 

Adjustments for 
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 
Impairment of financial assets 
Interest on debt securities (EIR adjustment) 

Interest on borrowings other than debt securities (EIR adjustment) 
Interest on subordinated liabilities (EIR adjustment) 
Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

Expense on Employee stock option scheme 

Interest on lease liabilities 
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment 

Operating cash now before working capital changes 
Add I (less): Adj11stme11tsfor working capital changes 

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade receivables 
Decrease/(lncrease) in stock in trade 

Decreasc/(lncrease) in Loans (net) 

Decrease/(lncrease) in Other financial assets 
Decrease/(Increase) in Investments 

Decrease/(lncrease) in Other non financial assets 

Increase I (Decrease) in Trade payables 

Increase I (Decrease) in Non financial liabilities and provisions 

Increase I (Decrease) in Other financial liability 

Cash used in operations 

Income taxes paid (net) 

Net cash used in operating activities -A 

B Cash flow from investing activities 
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and Intangible Assets 
Decrease/(lncrease) in Intangibles under development 

Purchase of AiF investments 
Sale of Property, plant and equipment 

Sale/Redemption of AIF investments 
Dividend on investments 

Net cash generated from I (used in) investing activities - B 

C Cash flow from financing activities 
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital (including Securities Premium) 
Increase/ (Decrease) in Debt Securities' 

Increase / (Decrease) in Borrowings other than Debt Securities' 

Increase/ (Decrease) in Subordinate Debt 

Repayment oflease obligations 

Securitization liability 

Interest on borrowings 

Net cash generated from financing activities - C 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year 

Operational cash flows from interest 
Interest paid 

Interest received 
Dividend received 

CSR contribution to Edel Give Foundation 

Notes: 

1. Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transaction 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

371.01 254.01 

10.56 34.67 
( 189.48) (117.50) 
(215.21) (255.19) 
(222.42) (352.25) 
(205.42) (205.1 2) 

(49.47) 

2.80 6.69 
1.93 11.34 

(0.25) 1.58 

(495.95) -621.76 

(15.57) (7.17) 
(127.84) 9.19 

4,982.23 1,804.98 
(717.55) 764.22 

496.96 (583.07) 
45.80 (63.25) 

0.87 (60.33) 
3.79 91.23 

(183.67) (93.39) 

3,989.06 1,240.65 

(6.05) 12.44 

3,983.02 1,253.10 

(112.31) (0.75) 

92.94 (40.62) 
(2,367.58) 

(0.60) 0.63 
288.24 

(2,099.31) (40.75) 

(1,872.58) (I 00.01) 

(1,073.12) (2,720.41) 

(0.00) 0.01 
(9.62) (26.58) 

529.26 284. 11 

643.06 812.56 

(1,783.01) (1,750.33) 

100.69 (537.98) 

166.41 704.40 
267.13 166.41 

646.16 828.56 
1,023.93 1,624.01 

4.50 7.00 

2. For disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, refer note 37 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Chartered Accountants 

IC L.,t7-11.L'.¼'-7 n Num 

per 
Partner 

Membership No. 150027 

Place : Mumbai 
Date : May 16, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelwt iss Retail Finance Limited 

Director 
DIN: 05124763 

~~~'(__ 
Phanindranath Kakarla 

Director 
DIN: 02076676 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

1. Corporate Information: 

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ('ERFL' or 'the Company') is a public limited company domiciled and incorporated 
under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The Company was originally incorporated on February 18, 
1997 as "Affluent Dealcom Private Limited" which subsequently got converted to public limited on January I, 2014 and 
then the Company's name changed to "Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited" with effect from January 6, 2014. The Company 
is subsidiary of Edelcap Securities Limited. ERFL is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a Systemically 
Important Non Deposit Accepting Non-Banking Financial Company. 

ERFL is primarily engaged in the business of providing loan against property, business loans, loan to real estate developers 
and rural finance loans. 

2. Basis of preparation: 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). 

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments such as, 
derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured at fair value. 
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except 
when otherwise indicated. 

2.1 Presentation of financial statements: 

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the Schedule III 
to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date 
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non-current) is presented in ''Note 44 - Maturity Analysis 
of assets and liabilities". 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and 
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts 
without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all the following 
circumstances: 

,, The normal course of business 
s The event of default 
" The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties 

3. Significant accounting policies 

3.1 Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income 

3.1.1 Effective Interest Rate (EIR): 

Under Ind AS I 09 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all financial 
instruments measured at amortised cost. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows 
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying 
amount of financial instrument. 

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are 
an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the 
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it recognises the effect of 
potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle 
including prepayments penalty interest and charges. 

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the 
adjushnent is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance 
sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income. 

3.1.2 Interest Income: 

The company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial 
assets other than credit-impaired assets. 

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as 'Stage III', the Company 
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to 
calculating interest income on gross basis. 

Penal interest income on delayed EMI / pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis. 

3.1.3 Fee and Commission Income 

Fee and commission income includes fee other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The Company 
recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts / 
agreements and basis the probability of consideration collection. 

3.1.4 Dividend Income 

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend is established on the 
reporting date. 

3.1.5. Other Income 

Other Income represents income earned from activities incidental to the business and is recognised when 
the right to receive income is established as per the tenns of the contract. Other ancillary charges are 
recognized on realisation. 

3.2 Financial Instruments: 

3.2.1 Date of recognition: 

Financial assets and liabilities except for loans and borrowings arc initially recognised on the trade date, 
i.e. the date when Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrnment. This includes 
regular ways of trade: purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time 
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when 
funds are transferred to the customers' account. The Company recognises borrowing when funds are 
available for utilisation to the Company. 

3.2.2 Initial measurement of financial instruments: 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly athibutable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

3.2.3 Classification and Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities: 

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and 
the asset's contractual tenns, measured at either: 

o Amortised cost 
• Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI) 
o Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL] 

The Company measures debt financial assets at amortised cost basis the following conditions: that meet 
the following conditions at amortised cost: 

• the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order 
to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are designated as at fair value through profit or 
loss on initial recognition): 

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and 

• the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC) 

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to 
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give 
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 
amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss 
account. 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) 

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved 
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual tenns of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL. The 
Company measures all finaudal assels dassi1ie<l as FVTPL al fair value al eadt reporling dale. The change 
in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account. 

3.3 Financial Assets and Liabilities: 

3.3.1 Financial assets held for trading: 

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased primarily for 
short-tenn profit making through trading activities or fonn part of a p01tfolio of financial instruments that 
are managed together, for which evidence of recent pattern of short-tenn profit is taking. Held-for-trading 
assets are recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value arc recognised 
in net gain on fair value changes. 

3.3.2 Debt securities and other borrowed funds: 

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each reporting date. 
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that 
are an integral patt of the EIR. 

3.3.3 Financial Guarantee: 

Financial guarantees are contract that requires the Company to make specified payments to reimburse the 
holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance 
with the tenns of a debt instrument. 

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are initially 
measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the 
commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised amount and the amount of loss 
allowance. 

3.3.4 Loan Commitments: 

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to provide a loan 
with pre-specified tenns to the customer over the duration of the commitment. Undrawn loan commitments 
are in the scope of the ECL requirements. 

3.4 Reclassification of Financial assets and liabilities 

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recogmt1on, apait from the 
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes off, or tenninates a business line. The Company 
has not reclassified any of its financial assets or liabilities in current year and previous year. 

3.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments: 

j 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

3.5.1 Derecognition of financial asset 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the financial asset have 
expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both, transferred the financial asset 
and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. 

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either: 

o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or 
• It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a 

contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under pass 
through arrangement. 

Pass-through an-angemcnts are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to receive 
the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those 
cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following conditions are met: 

G The Company has no obligation to pay amount to the eventual recipients unless it has collected 
equivalent amount from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full 
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates. 

111 The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients. 

The Company has to remit any cash flow it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without material 
delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows, except for investments in cash 
or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the collection date and the date 
of required remittance to the eventual recipients. 

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either: 

e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or 

111 The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset 
but has transferred control of the asset. 

The Company considers control to be transfeITed if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to 
sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and 
without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer. 

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated 
to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a 
dcrecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. 

If the modification does not result in cash flows that arc substantially different, the modification does not 
result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company 
records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. 

3.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the tenns of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a dcrccognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid, 
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised in statement 
of profit or loss. 

3.6 Impairment of financial assets: 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that 
are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive discounted 
at the original effective interest rate. As ECL considers the amount and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even 
if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when contractually due. 

Simplified Approach 

The Company foliows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The 
application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises 
impainnent loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The 
Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The 
provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, 
if receivables contain a significant financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure 
the loss allowance by applying general approach to measure ECL. 

General Approach 

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase 
in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial 
instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime 
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occuning since 
inilial rer.:ognilion inslea<l of an evidence of a financial assel being cre<lil-irnpaired al lhe n-:porling <lale or an ar.:lual 
default occurring. 

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected 
life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 
from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. 

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default (LGD) 
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of 
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by for.vard-looking infonnation. As for the 
exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is represented by the assets' gross canying amount at the 
reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn 
down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by 
default date detennined based on historical trend, the Company's understanding of the specific future financing 
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information. 

Company categories its financial assets as follows: 

Stage I Assets: 
Stage I assets include financial instruments that did not have a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL (resulting from default 
events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised. 

Stage II Assets: 
Stage II Assets include financial instruments that have a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. 
For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are 
recognised. 

Stage III Assets: 
Stage III Assets are considered credit-impaired, the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans. The 
method is similar to that for Stage II assets, with the PD set at 100%. 

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding 
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account. 

The expected credit loss on the uncancellable loan commitment is recognised together with the loss allowance for 
the financial asset. 

The Company's product offering includes working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel and/or reduce 
the facilities with one day's notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses to the contractual notice 
period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company's expectations of the customer behaviour, 
its likelihood of default and the Company's future risk mitigation proced_ures,"'"which could include reducing or 
cancelling the facilities. /~ 

/fc}r· --... < '~\, .. •. \' \ 
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To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral 
comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, 
other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not 
recorded on the Company's balance sheet. However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECL. It is 
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodic basis. However, some collateral, for 
example, securities relating to margin requirements, is assessed on a daily basis. 

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other 
financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using models. 

3.8 Collateral Repossessed: 

The Company's policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its internal operations or 
should it be sold. Assets detennined to be useful for the internal operations are transferred to their relevant asset 
category at the lower of their repossessed value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which 
selling is determined to be a better option are h·ansferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if financial assets) 
and fair value less cost to sell for non-financial assets at the repossession date ,in line with the Company's policy. 

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or other assets in its retail 
portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus 
funds are returned to the customers/obligors. As a result of this practice, the residential properties under legal 
repossession processes are not recorded on the balance sheet. 

3.9 Write-Offs: 

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no reasonable 
expectation of recovery besides technical write off as per relevant policy. 

3.10 Forborne and modified loan: 

The Company sometimes make concessions or modifications to the original tenns of loans as a response to the 
bonuwer's financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The 
Company considers a loan forborne when such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the 
borrower's present or expected financial difficulties and the Company would not have agreed to them if the borrower 
had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on covenants, significant concerns 
raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may involve extending the payment arrangements and the 
agreement of new loan conditions. Once the tenns have been renegotiated, any impainnent measured using the 
original EIR as calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company's policy to monitor forborne loans to 
help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur. Derecognition decisions and classification between 
Stage II and Stage III are determined on a case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in relation to a loan, 
it is disclosed and managed as an impaired Stage III forborne asset, until it is collected or written off. 

3.11 Determination of Fair Value: 

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either; 

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. 

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use, when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value 
measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits 
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in 
its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments 
are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below: 

Level 1 Financial Instruments: 
Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets 

liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as active 
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only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or 
liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date. 

Level 2 Financial Instruments: 
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and arc significant, arc derived directly or indirectly from 
observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument's life. 

Level 3 Financial Instruments: 
Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole. 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occun-ed between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The 
Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and model calibrations. 

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial 
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected net 
exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the 
individual counterparties for non•-collateralised financial instruments. 

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies 
instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period. 

3.12 Leases: 

Company as a lessee: 

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach. 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The 
Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-tenn leases and 
leases oflow-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets 
representing the right to use the underlying assets. 

Right of Use Assets: 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying 
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impainnent losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes 
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incuffed, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets. 

Lease liabilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease tenn. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and 
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments, 
the Company uses its incremental b01Towing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit 
in the lease is not readily detenninable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased 
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of 
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments 
(e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) 
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

Short term lease 

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short tenn leases of property 
that has lease tenn of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated with these leases as an 
expense on a straight line basis over lease tenn. 

Company as lessor: 

The Company's accounting policy under Ind AS 116 has not changed from,,!6o~tl\'e._Period. As a lessor the 
Company classifies its leases as either operating or finance leases. A ly~s~-js:-clasSif1eJl;,~s a finance lease if it 
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transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset and classified as an 
operating lease if it does not. 

3.13 Earnings Per Share: 

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for 
the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. 

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to issue equity 
shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit 
after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered 
for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued 
upon conversion of all potential equity shares. 

3.14 Retirement and other employee benefit: 

3.14.1 Provident fund and National Pension Scheme: 

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined 
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

3.14.2 Gratuity: 

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of the 
gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine 
its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the 
obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the 
Projected Unit Credit Method. 

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding 
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the 
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which 
they occur. 

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods. 

3.14.3 Compensated Absences: 

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual 
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the 
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement 
based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits is detennined 
using the projected unit credit method. 

3.14.4 Equity-settled share-based payments and Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs): 

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Company. These are 
measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. These includes Stock 
Appreciation Rights (SARs) where the right to receive the difference between the SAR price and the 
market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company on the date of exercise, either by way of 
cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent Company, is at the discretion of the ultimate parent 
Company. These are classified as equity settled share based transaction. 

The fair value detennined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over 
the vesting period, based on the Group's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a 
corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each repmting period, the Group revises its estimate of the 
number of equity instruments expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, 
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a 
corresponding adjustment to the 'ESOP reserve'. In cases where the share options granted vest in 
instalments over the vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each 
instalment has a different vesting '"''>''""c'i!'!"'"the fair value of each instalment differs. 
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3.15 Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE): 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by 
changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates. 

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount thereof 
when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit 
or loss as incurred. 

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under 
construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis 
from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, 
depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal. 

As per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful lives of 
the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule II for calculating the depreciation. 
The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows: 

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives 

Furniture and fixtures 10 years 

Vehicles 8 years 

Office Equipment 5 years 

Computers - Servers and networks 6 years 

Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years 

Leasehold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets or the 
period oflease whichever is earlier. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The canying amount of those components which have been 
separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the 
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is detennined as the difference between the sales 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss, 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each 
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

3.16 Intangible Assets: 

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortization and impainnent, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 
years based on its estimated useful life. 

3.17 Impairment of non-financial assets: 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired 
based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of 
the asset If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset 
belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction 
is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there 
is an indication that a previously assessed impainnent loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed 
and the assets is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost 

3.18 Provisions and other contingent liabilities: 

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past 
event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made 
of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions arc detennined by 
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using a ~e::Rre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where f(c/ 1J!o·}1 ~ h@'lis.fs specific to the liability. 
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A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be 
required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. 
Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of 
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the possibility of any outflow ofresources 
in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent liabilities. 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income 
that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not 
a contingent asset and is recognised. 

3.19 Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise of cash at banks and in hand and short-tenn deposits with 
an original maturity of three months or less. 

3.20 Income tax expenses: 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

3.20.1 Current tax: 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from 'profit before 
tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable 
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's current tax is 
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting 
period. 

3.20.2 Deferred tax: 

DefeJTed tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities in the financial statements and the coJTesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable 
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax 
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that 
taxable profits wilI be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or pait 
of the asset to be recovered. 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted 
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the 
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. 

3.20.3 Current and Deferred tax for the year: 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

4. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions: 

The preparation of these financial statements in confonnity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the repmied amount of assets, liabilities, 
incomes and expenses. Actual results may differ from those estimates. 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. In particular, information 
about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial statements are included are given below: 
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The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how the financial assets are managed together 
to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence 
including how the perfonnance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the 
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The 
Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derccognised prior to their maturity to 
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for 
which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model 
for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there 
has been a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those instruments. 

4.2 Significant increase in credit risk: 

As explained in note 49.1, ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for Stage I assets, or lifetime 
ECL for Stage II or Stage III assets. An asset moves to Stage II when its credit risk has increased significantly since 
initial recognition. Ind AS 109 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing 
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and 
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking infonnation. Refer to note 49. l for more details. 

4.3 Key sources of estimation uncertainty: 

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and 
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and 
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that 
are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

4.4 Fair value of financial instruments: 

The Fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is detennined using valuation 
techniques. The Company uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions based on market 
conditions existing at the end of each reporting period. Judgements and estimates include consideration of liquidity 
and model inputs related to items such as credit risk, funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. 

4.5 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method: 

The Company's EIR methodology, as explained in Note 3.1.1, recognises interest income/ expense using a rate of 
return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given 
/ taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of 
the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges. 

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life cycle of the 
instrument, as well expected changes India's base rate and other fee income, expenses that are integral part of the 
instrument 

4.6 Impairment of Financial assets: 

The impainnent provisions for the financial assets except assets valued at fair value through Profit & Loss account 
(FVTPL) are based on assumptions about estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows, collateral values, 
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk, probability of default (PD) and Loss given default (LGD) rates. 
The Company uses judgements in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs for impairment calculations 
based on its past history, existing market conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each period. These 
estimates are driven by number of factors, change in which can result in different level of allowance. 

The Company's expected credit loss (ECL) calculations are output of complex model with number of underlying 
assumptions regarding choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are 
considered accounting judgements and estimates include: 

• The Company's internal credit grading model, which assigns PDs to the individual grades based on ageing. 

• The Company's criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for 
financial assets should be measured on a LTECL basis and the qualitative assessment. 
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• Development of ECL models, including the various fonnulas and the choice of inputs Determination of 
associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment levels and 
collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs. 

• Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the economic 
inputs into the ECL models. 

It has been the Company's policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust 
when necessary. 

4.7 Impairment ofNon~Financial assets: 

The Company assesses at each repmting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exist, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is higher of 
an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount 

4.8 Provisions and contingent liabilities: 

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element of litigation 
risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and regulatory investigations 
and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business. 

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case and 
considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the probability of 
outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent liability is 
disclosed. 

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount oflosses, the Company takes into 
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical evidence from similar 
incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates. 

4.9 Provisions for Income Taxes: 

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on whether 
tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve complex issues, 
which can only be resolved over extended time periods. 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be 
reasonable under the circumstances. 

5. Leases: 

Significant judgements are involved in evaluating if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind 
AS 116. The Company also uses significant judgement in assessing the applicable discount rate which is an equivalent to 
incremental borrowing rate estimated on best effort basis. 

6. Recent Accounting Pronouncement: 

Ministry of Corporate affairs have made changes on March 31, 2023, in the following Indian Accounting Standards (Ind 
AS) amended namely Ind AS 101, Ind AS 102, Ind AS 103, Ind AS 107; Ind AS 109, Ind AS 115, Ind AS I, Ind AS 8, 
Ind AS 12 and Ind AS 34. These amendments shall be applicable from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 
April 01, 2023. 

7. A Scheme of Amalgamation for merger (Merger by Absorption) of Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ("ERFL") with the 
Company ("Transferee Company") and their respective shareholders under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Rules made there under has been filed with the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") on March 26, 
2019. Further, on March 25, 2019, the Company had applied for approval from the Reserve Bank of India in relation to 
the said merger, which was approved by the RBI on September 27,2019. The Company is in process to obtain NOCs from 
all the lending banks. 
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

C:1sh and cash c11uivalcnts 

Balances witli banks 
- in current accounts 

- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than tluee months 
- Accrued interest on fixed deposit~ 

9 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than three months and less than 12 months 
Fixed deposits with original maturity more than 12 months 

9.1, Encumbrances on fixed deposits with bank held by the Company 
Given as credit enhancements towards securitisation 

Given as collateml against Bank overdrnfi 

IO Securities held for 1rading As at !\larch 31, 2023 
At fair value through profit and loss account 

Debt Securities 

9.65% ECL Finance Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.04.2022 Bonds 
10.00% Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited 19.07.2026 NCD 

10.20% ECL Finance Limited 04.04.2022 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Fmancc Limited 06.08.2023 Bonds 
10.20% ECL Finance Limited 23.08.2022 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 23.08.2022 Bonds 
10.40% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2024 Bonds 
0.00% ECL Finance Limited 23.05.2024 Bonds 
l 0.60% ECL Finance Limited 04.01.2029 Bonds 
9.25% ECL Finance Limited 06-Aug-2023 Bonds 
! 0.18~0 Edel Finance Company Limited 27-Apr-2027 Bonds 

Face v:ilue 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 

1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 

10,00,000 

Quantity Amount 

14,936 16.51 

1,798 1.98 

3,834 5.86 

772 0.80 
218 0.33 

3 0.00 
0.00 

1,853 1.79 
140 150.85 

Face value 

l,000 
1,000 

1,000 
l,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 
1,000 

Total Dcb1 secuntic,-----------~==---178.13 

11 

Note: Please refer note 50. ! Fair Value measurement for valuation methodologies for securities held for trading. 

Trade recelrnh!es 

Trade receivah!es (Unsecured) 
Receivables considered good - non-relaied party 
Receivables considered good - related party - (Refer note 46) 
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 

Less : A!Jowancc for expected credit losses 

As al As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

267.13 166.41 

267.13 166.41 

97.36 117.56 
22.01 22.01 

119.37 139.57 

106.97 22.06 
15.54 

As at March 31, 2022 
Quantity 

14,936 
7,209 

7,465 
3,829 
3,834 
1,951 
1,762 

772 
218 

3 
I 

1,853 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

12.31 
23.45 

0.65 
36.41 
(1.19) 

35.21 

Amount 

16.48 
9.75 

8.03 

4.01 
4.54 
2.27 
2.29 
0.79 
0.29 
0.00 
0.00 
1.83 

50.29 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

0.27 
19.72 
0.14 

20.13 
(0.49) 
19.64 



ll(a) 

Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables: 

Jmpainncnt allowance measured as per simplified approach 
Jmpainncnt allowance - Opening Balance 
(Add)/ Less: Change due to receivable balance/buckctig {net) 

lmpainnent allowance - Closing Balance 

Note: For disclosure relating to trade receivable ageing/ provision matri:>t:, refer note 5 I 

Trade Receivable Ageing Schedule 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars Less than 6 6 Months -
Months 1 Year 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 35.69 0.06 
(ii) Undisputed Tmde Receivables - which lfavc significant 
increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receimbles credit impaired 
Recch·able (A) 35.69 0.06 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 0.50 004 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which illlve significant 
increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- comidercd good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase 
in credit risk 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired 
ECL Provision on receivables (B) 0.50 0.04 
Reccirnblcs net of provision - (A)-(B) 35.19 0.02 

As at ;,,.-Jarch 31, 2022 

Paniculars Less limn 6 6 Months - l 
Months Year 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 19.97 0.02 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which I.Jave significant 
increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impain:d 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Recei\'ab\cs - which have sii,'llificant increase 
in credit risk 
(\'i) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
Receivable (A) 19.97 0.02 

(i) Undisputed Tmdc receivables - considered good 0.34 0,01 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which Eave significant 
increase in credit risk 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 

(iv) Disputed Trade Rccd\·ables- considered good 
(\') Disputed lradc Receivables - wluch have Sl!,'ll!hcant mcrcasc 
in credit risk 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables credit impaired 
ECL Provision on receivables (B) 0.34 O.Ql 
Receivables net of provision - (A)-(B) 19.63 0.02 

" Unbilled nmount due ofMarch 2023 is Nil (March 2022- Nil). 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

(0.49) 
{0.70) 
(1.19) 

Outstanding for March 31, 2023 # 

1-2 Years 2-3 years More than 3 
years 

0.65 

0.65 

0.65 

0.65 

Outstandmg for March 31, 2022 " 
1-2 Years 2-3 years Mon.- than 3 

years 

0,14 

0.14 

0.14 

0.14 
(0.00) 

For the year ended 
March31,2022 

Total 

Total 

(0.84) 
0.35 

(0.49) 

35.75 

0,65 

36.41 

0.54 

0.65 

1.19 
35.21 

19.99 

0.14 

20.13 

0.35 

0.!4 

0.49 
19.64 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March Jl, 2023 (Contimted) 
(Currency: lndiun rupees in millions) 

12 Loans (At amortised Cost) 
A. Term Loans 
(i) Retail Joans 
(ii) Whok:salc loans 

Total (A) - Gross 

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
(including on loan commitment) 
Total (A) - Net 

B, Term Loans 
(i) Secured by tangible assets (refer note 49.1.2) 
(ii) Unsecured 
Total (B) - Gross 
less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
(includi11g on loan commitment) 
Total (BJ- Net 

C. Term Loans 
(:.I Loans in India 
(i) Public Sectors 
(ii) Others 
Total (C.I) - Gross 
Less: Allowance for expected credit Joss 
{including on loan commitment) 
Total (C.I) - Net 

· C.II Loans o~tsidc India 
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss 
(ir.cluding on loan commitment) 

- Total {C.il)- Net 

Total: {C.I and C.11) 

As at 

March 31, 2023 

3,786.86 
1,861.18 

5,648.05 
(204,38) 

5 443,67 

3,160.67 
2,487.38 
5,648.05 
(204.38) 

5 443.67 

5,648.05 
5,648.05 
(204.38) 

5,443.67 

5.443,67 

A," 
March 31, 2022 

4,996.09 
5,723.13 

10,719.22 
(482.79) 

l 0,236.43 

6,028.04 
4,691.18 

10,719.22 
{482.79) 

10,236.43 

10,719.22 
10,719.22 

(482.79) 

10,236.43 

I 0.236.43 

12.L loans or ad\·ances in the nature of loans are granted to promoters. directors, KMPs and the rdated parties (as defined under the Companies Act, :;013). 
either severally or jointly with any mhcr perso11 that are: 
{a) repayable on demand or 
(h) without specifying any tenns or period of repayment 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Type of Borrower 
Amount of Loan/Advance in % to the total loan and Amount of Loan/Advance in% to the total loan 

the nature ,r Loan ad\'ance in the nature the nature ,r Loan an<l ad\'ance in the 
outstanding ofloans outstanding oaturc ofloa11s 

Promoter - -
Directors - -
KMP's - - -
Related Parties - - - -
Total - 0% 0 0% 



Ec.lclwciss Retail Fina11cc Umitcc.l 
Notes to the fi11a11cial statcmc11ts for year enc.led March 31, 2023 (Co11timwd) 

{Currency; Indian rupees in millions} 

12.2. Cree.lit Quality of Assets 

(a) 

The table below shows the credit qoality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on year-end s1age classification. The amounts presented arc gross of 
impaimicnt allowances. Details of the Company's internal b'fUding syskm arc explained in Note -t9. I und policies on ECL ullowances arc set out in Note 3.6. 
Refer note 49.1.3 for modified and forborne louns. 

Gross earDing amount of loan assets allocated to Stage I, Stage II and Stage III 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
Particulars Singe I Stage II Stage III Total Stage I Stage II Stage lII Total 
Loans (at amortised cost) 
Performing 

High grade 4,502.00 4,502.00 7,469.23 7,469.23 
Standard grade 987.59 987.59 3,001.94 3,001.94 

Non-performing 
Impaired 158.46 158.46 248.05 248.05 

Total 4,502.00 987.59 158.46 5,648.05 7,469.23 3,001.94 248.05 10,719.22 

(h) Reco11ciliation of changes in gross carrying amount a11d the corresponding ECL In relation to loan assets is as follows: 

Non-credit impaired 
Stage I Stage II 

Particulars 

For the Year ended March 31. 2023 

Opening Balance 
Transfers: 

Transfers to 12 Month ECL(Stagc I) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit 
impaired (Stage 3) 

Remeasurement ofECL arising from 
transfer of srngc (net) 
Nd new and further kndi11g/ {repayments) 

Amounts written off 
Loan sold 10 Asset Rccontn1<:t1on 
Company Trust rmd AIF 
Closing Balance 

For the vear ended March 31 2022 
Opening Ba!unce 
Transfers: 

Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage I) 
Tran,fers to !ifolirnc ECL (Singe 2) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit 
impaired (Stugc 3) 

Remeasurement ofECL arising from 
transfer of stage (net) 
Net new and further lending/ (repayments) 

Amounts written off 
Loan sold to Asset Recontruction 
Company Trust and AIF 
Closing Balance 

Notes: 

Gross 
carrying 
:imount 

7,469.23 

19.98 
(293.74) 

(47.05) 

(2,624.88) 

{21.53) 

4,502.00 

7,686.17 

1.212.85 
(333.88) 
(179.69) 

{867.57) 

(48.64) 

7.469.23 

l. Contractual outstanding amount is ,,ritten off. 

Allowance 

'" ECL 

40,22 

2.15 
(2.51) 
(0.27) 

(1.78) 

46.65 

(2.37) 

82.08 

94.4! 

115.10 
(3.00) 
(1.82) 

(86.08) 

(72.68) 

(5.71) 

40.22 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

3,001.9,J 

(5.42) 
308.28 

(251.96) 

(2,044.72) 

(20.52) 

987.59 

3.301.29 

(814.61) 
772.91 
(24.97) 

(207.83) 

(24.85) 

3.001.94 

Allowance 
for 

ECL 

389.61 

(0.72) 
4.35 

(23.81) 

21.14 

(294.89) 

{9.39) 

86.29 

247 .. H 

(57.25) 
83.89 
(4.31) 

59.16 

74.99 

(14.19) 

389.61 

Credit impairetl 
Stage JU 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

248.05 

(14.55) 
(14.54) 
299.02 

69!.02 

(18.31 l 
(1.032.'.!3) 

158.46 

1,561.17 

(398.24) 
(439.03} 
204.65 

(224.03) 

(6.01) 
(450.-!6) 

248.05 

Allowance 
foe 

ECL 

52.81 

(1.-13) 
(1.83) 
24.07 

19.3'! 

37.06 

(8.0-!) 
(%.28) 

35.68 

279.81 

(57.85) 
(80.90) 

6.13 

24.02 

(58.18) 

{3.25) 
(56.97) 

52.81 

2. Changes in loss allowance is due to change in portfolio composition and movement in loan outstanding as the year end. 

Totnl 

Gross 
carrying 
amount 

10,719.22 

{3,978.53) 

(60.35) 
(l.032.23) 

5,648.05 

i2,548.63 

(1,299.45) 

(79.50) 
(450.46) 

10.719.22 

Allowance 
foe 

ECL 

482,64 

38.68 

(211.19) 

(J 9.80) 
($6.28} 

204.05 

621.53 

(2.90) 

(55.37) 

(23.15) 
(56.97) 

482.64 

3. The Company had initiated sale of certain credit impaired financial assets before March 31, 2023 and for which definitive contracts were executed post the 
balance sheet date. These financial asse!S sold after March 31, 2023, amounted to Rs. 25.61 crores (net of provisions) to asset reconstruction companies trusts 
(ARC Trust). Accordingly, on account of subsequent sale to and recovery from ARC Trusts of such credit impaired asselS, management has recorded such 
financial asscl~ as recoverable and not as credit impaired financial assets. As at 31st March, 2023, we have incurred a loss of amounting to Rs.6.40 crores :md 
recorded in financial statemelll. 



Edelweiss Retail Fin:mce Limited 
Notes to lhe financial statements for year ended 1\Iarch 31, 2023 (Co11ti1med) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

12.3. Credit Quality of exposure (Loan Commitment) 

{a) Gross carryiog amount of loan commitment allocated to Stage I, Stage II and Stage Ill 

Particulars 
Loans (at amortised cost) 
Performing 

High grade 
Standard grade 
Substandard gr.1de 

Non-performing 
Impaired 

Total 

Stage I 

116.00 

116.00 

As at March 31, 2023 
Stage II Stage III 

0.04 

0.04 

Total 

116.00 

0.04 

116.04 

Stage l 

55.55 

55.55 

As at March 31, 2022 
Stage II Stage III 

O.D4 

0.04 

Total 

55.55 

0.04 

55.59 

(b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL in relation to of loan commitment is as follows: 

Non-credit impaired Credit impaired 
Total 

Stage I Stage II Stage III 
Particulars Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance Gross Allowance 

carrying "' carrying '" carrying '" carrying '" amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL amount ECL 

For the Yenr Ended March 31, 2023 

Opening Balance 55.55 0.14 0.04 55.59 0.14 
Transfers: 
Tronsfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage I) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit (5.38) 5.38 
impaired (Stage 3) 
Remeasurement ofECL arising from 
transfer of stage (net) 
Nel new sanctions and (disbursement) 65.83 0.14 (5.38) 0.04 60.45 0.!8 
Closing Balance 116.00 0.28 0.04 0.04 ll6.04 0.32 

For 1he Year Ended March 31, 2022 
Opening Balance 17.00 0.49 42.38 2.70 59.38 3.19 
Transfers: 
Transfers to 12 Month ECL(Stagc t) 34.89 (34.89) 
Transfers to lifetime ECL (Stage 2) (0,54) 0.54 
Transfers to lifc1ime ECL· Credit impaired 
(Stage 3) 
Remeasurement ofECL arising from 
transfer of stage {net) 
Net new sanctions and (disburscm~nt) 4.20 (0.35) (8.03) (2.70) 0.04 (3.79) (3.05) 

Closing Balance 55.55 0.14 0.04 55.59 0.14 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed} 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions} 

13 Investments 

As at March 31, 2023 

Particulars 
At Amortised cost (1) 

Security receipts -
Units of AlF -
Total - Gross (A) -
(i) Investments outside India 

(ii) Investment in India -
Total (B) -
Less: Allowance for impainnent (C) -
Total Net (A-C) -

At fair value 

Through Through 
OC1(2) P&L(3) 

- 783.61 

- 2,331.79 

- 3,l15.40 

- 3,115.40 

- 3,115.40 

- -
- 3,I 15.40 

Designated at 
Subtotal Tola! 

fair value 
5 = (2+3+4) 

At cost (6) 
{7)= (1+5+6) 

through i'rofit 
or loss (4) 

- 783.61 - 78].6] 

2,331.79 - 2,331.79 

- 3,115.40 - 3,115.4!1 

- -
- 3,1 !5.40 - 3,115.40 

- 3,115.40 - 3,115.40 

- - -
- 3,115.40 - 3,115.40 

-ru-,-,-M·,-~-h-3·1.·2·0·2·2----------~-------~------A•,-,•,i•,-,",1",-,-D-csigrm:Li!at II Sb • 1 1·-~;a~-
At Amortised cost(!) Through OCl Through P&L r · 1 u to.a At -::ost (6) 

Particulars 

Security receipts 
Units of AIF 

O m .:~•.:.r <.2+3+.:'-\ -1(1~(.l.+3+6-) 
or lo>s {<\) 

1,24022 - l,/.40.22 ! 1,24!",.".'.1 I 

___ .. _____ _:_o-~~ ~--·-~--· _ i ___ ~:o~~f~~-- _____ ]_ Joo 7t : 

Total - Gross (A) 

(l) lnvcs1mcnt~ outside lmlia 

{ii} lnn:stment in India 

Total !Bl 
i
i 1,540.98 • : ,'.i-10 ~-8 ! - "i ;;40 : ''i 

'--------"C...-----'--"'"•'c'c"-.o.c.·98 '-------l---'-J.0S0400-09"c..;.I __ 1.540.n 
1,540.'Jl: 1.5-10.98 

Less: AIJO\\anee for impam11~m (C) 

Note· 

During the quarter and the ycJr ended March 31 2023, !h";'e Compauy had sr.1cl ~lrt;iin !•1•,ncial a,;sets amou,1ting to Nil ,,,d R.~.58,63 crores (net ofpro•,js"ono) 
rcspectivc!y, t,;_, asset rec,nstructions company trusts ('ARC Trusts') and acquired s~curity -~ccipts (SP} an,')uutinj! to Nil end R3 67..22 crores rcsi,eet'\dy fro.,1 
these ARC Trusts. Ind AS JU9 - 'Financial Instruments', prescnbed under s~ction 133 vf tl,e Cor..1panies .\ct, 201 i, rcql•irer sui:ist,:ntia1ly all risks and rr•1· uni., o 

be lnmsfe1Ted for !he p\H]lOSe of de-recognition of such financial assets from the Company's financi:il result. E:SL, the holding Company had undertaken 
subst:mtially all risks and rewards in respect ufsuch financial assets. :\s a result. these financial assets were de-recognized in the Company's financial result. 

2 During the year ended March 31, 2023, ERFL has received confimlilllon that binding bids rccei\'ed by assets rccon5tn1ction companies ('ARCs' of 'trusts') & 
Alternative Investment Fund (AJF) about uansfcr of underlying financial assets for which settlement were executed post the halance si1cct date but before approval 
of financial results by the Board ofDircc:ors, accordingly, we have recorded rfccirnbb a gains! these transfer ofJnw•stmL,lt was Rs. 543. 79 milliO'lS, A~ per Ind AS 
JO, Events after the reporting period, which.require 1hat, event that prm,jtlc c\·idcnce of condition existed lH !he end of reporting period, and ~s 11cr Jnct 109-
Financial Instruments, which require that, financial instruments be classified and measured based on their economic substnncc, rnthcr than their legal fomi in 

achieving a more accurate representation of a company's financial position and risk exposure related 10 financial instrumen1s, accordingly, on account subsequent 
receipt of payment from ARC Trost~ and A!F. management has recorded as recoverable from tru>ls and AlFs and dcrccogniscd the financial assets. 

Alternative Investment Fw1d: 1l1c Company made in\'estment in AIF, in the view of ind AS !09 and accounting policy oft he company from derecognition aspect. 
considered some important point.~ as below mentioned: 

• Company has transferred some of these Joan assets directly to the AJF where there arc other assets were also lying in the funds, also there arc customers who 
paid lo Company and in-tum Company invested in AIF. 

AIF also has other in\"cstor who hold some percentage holding in AlF. 

AIF has right to appoint investment manager. Investment manager control and take decision to manage the assets. 
The instrument in which the company invested in AIF is different than tlic previous holding as loan assets, 
AIF evaluate all the underlying assets of the fund and then declare NAY per unit. 
There arc other investors who arc holding some percentage in AIF while company holds below 50%. 

1l1cse instrument as classified as level 3 instrument as FVTPL and any foir value gain or loss recognised in Profit and Loss account. 

Considering above mentioned fact~. the Company has not retained any control where company has practical ability to sec the assets in entirety although some risk 
and rewards arc not tran~fcm:d. Such Dert,cognition of ass els from the boot.$ of the Compauy, is m !in"' with Jud AS I 09. Also, lool...ing the facts that AlF has 01h"'r 

a%et~ in the fund and NAY of the uni ls is declared cousidering all the assets under management of such fund. Hence Company is not holding all the risk and 
rewards of the transferred assets rather it is distributed in the percentage ofholding and Compeny is holding below 50% of the pool of assets instead of majority 
holding m pamcular asscb. Accordingly. the Company in the \"icw that ll is appropriately dcrCCOl,'Iltsed from the books of the Company. 



13.l Investments Details 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 

Face Value/ Face Value/ 
NAY Quantity Amount NAV Quantity Amount 

Security receipts 
EARC Trnst SC 373 186.69 2,25,250 42.05 432.16 2,25,250 97.34 
EARC Trust SC 385 628.95 l,79,783 113.07 653.96 2,76,590 180.88 
EARCTrustSC4l6 981.50 98,842 97.0l 989.33 1,52,065.00 150.44 
Ombra PS 04 Trust 974.93 2,36,216 230.30 978.50 2,75,506 269.58 
Omkara PS34/2021-22 1000.00 54,839 54.85 1,000.00 63,920.00 63.92 
EARC Till..'it SC - 378 454.67 22,780 10.36 504.29 22,780.00 11.49 
EARC Till..'it SC 374 481.36 63,106 30.38 727.74 63,106.00 45.93 
EARC Trust SC 417 864.41 2,37,851 205.61 877.72 3,65,925.00 321.18 
CFMARC Trust - 94 0.00 0,00 1,000.00 99,450.00 99.45 

783.64 1,240.22 

Units of AIF 
Real Esrnte Credit Opportunities Furn! II - 9917.09 22.400 222.14 
LICHFL Housing & Infrastrucmrc Fund 106.51 13,40,'.!77 142.74 100.00 7,86,180 78.62 

EDELWEISS VALUE AND GROWTH FUND !,17,574.91 3,257 382.95 -
Eddweiss Private Equity Tech fund l,95,753.25 1,266 247.81 - -
Alternative Investment FUND (AIF) 6,410.16 2,43,091 1,558.24 - -

2,331.75 300.76 

3,115.38 1,540.98 I 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial slatements for year ended March 31, 2023 (C<111ti1111ed) 

(Currency; Indian rupees in mi!lions) 

14 Otlicr financial assets 
(umecurcd, considered good) 

Security DcposiL~ 
Advances to others 
Receivable from Trust 
Deposits- others 
Margin placed with broker 

15 Current fax assets (net) 

Advance income taxes 
(net of provision for tax Rs. 200. l 8 million, previous year Rs. 86.23 
million) 

16 Deferred tax assets (net) 

Deferred tax assets 
Loans 

Provision for expected credit loss 
Unamortised processing foes - EIR on lending 

Propeny plant and equipment and in!aneiblcs 
Difference between book and tax depreciation 

Emplovee benefit oblirr:i.tions 
Provision for compensated absences 
Disallowances under .;ection 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 

lease li!!hili!Y 
Others 

Deferred fax lia!Ji!itles 

Im c,;trncnts and otha financial in~1nrnwnb 
Unamo11is~d loan origination costs - EIR on lending 
Recognition of Interest Strip on assignment deals 
Accrued lnlcrcst on Stage 3 receivables 

Borrowin!!.)! 
Effective interest rate on financial liabililies 

F i!!ht-of-use Asset (ROU) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

13.95 
418. JO 
393.54 

0.09 
0.51 

826.19 

72.53 

72.53 

51.43 
3.20 

5.04 

0.56 
2.29 
6.45 

14.07 
83.04 

4.55 
25.57 

10.36 
6.02 

46.50 

36.54 

Note: For disclosure relating to movement in deferred tax assets/ liabilities, refer note 39.3. 

As at 
l\farch 31, 2022 

13.96 
23.93 

0.10 
0.97 

38.96 

63.96 

63.96 

121.51 
6,00 

10.03 

0.6-t 
0.01 
4.06 
8.67 

150,92 

5.77 
13.4-t 

I !.37 
3.28 

33.86 

!17.06 



Edelwcis~ Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financfal sfatements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed) 
(Cmrency : Indian rupees in millions) 

17 Property, Plant and Equipment 

Gross Block 

Description of Assets 
As:it Additions Disposals 

April OJ, during the during the 
2022 year year 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land• 0.37 

Leasehold improvements 3.89 0.16 

Furniture and Fixtures 2.40 0.41 

Office equipment 4.74 0.14 0.81 

Computers !7.!2 -0. 14 3.61 

Right-of-use Asset (ROU) I !9.59 19.53 0.46 

Total 148.11 19.53 5.45 

18 Intangible Assets Under Development 

(i) Intangible Assets Under DeYC!opment Ageing Schedulc:M 

As at 
March 

31, 2023 

0.37 

3.73 

1.99 

4.07 

13.37 

138.66 

162.19 

Amount in Intangible Assets Under 

Intangible Assets Under 
DeHlopment for a period ofl\Jarch 31, 2023 

More Development Less than 
1M2 Years 2M3 years than 3 

1 ~·ear 
vears 

I Proieet in orol!ress 

·I-Digital Lending Platform (DLP) -
I Total - - -

Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment Net Block 

As at Charge Disposals As at 
As at March 

April 01, for the during the March 31, 
31, 2023 

2022 year year 2023 

0.37 

3.25 0.45 0.16 3.54 0.19 

1.63 0.19 0.31 1.51 0.48 

4.15 0.26 0.76 3.65 0.42 

15.04 0.63 3.41 !2.26 1.11 

106.54 8.20 !14.74 23.92 

130.61 9.73 4.64 135.70 26.49 

Total 

-

(ii) For Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is OYerdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan, refer . 
below schedule:-

To be completed in 
Intangible Assets Under 

Less than 
More Total 

Development 
I year 

1M2 Years 2M3 years than 3 
vears 

Digital Lending Platform (DLP) - -
Total - - - - -

19 Other Intangible Assets 

Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment Net Block 

Description of Assets 
Asat Additions Disposals As at As at Charge Disposals As at As at March 

April 01, during the during the March April 01, for the during the March 31, 
31, 2023 

2022 year year 31, 2023 2022 year year 2023 

Other Intangible Assets 

Software 15.78 112.31 - 128.09 15.01 0.82 15.83 112.26 

Total 15.78 112.31 - 128.09 15.01 0.82 15.83 112.26 
Note. 
• Charged agamst secured rcdccm3hlc non-convertible debentures 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed) 
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

! 7 Property, Plant and Equipment (Previo\15 Year) 

Gross Block 

Description of Assets As at Additions Disposals 
April 01, during the during !he 

2021 year year 

Property, Plant and Equipment 

Land* 0.37 . . 

Leasehold improvements 8.56 0.32 4.99 

Furniture and Fixtures 4.08 0,02 1.70 

Vehicles . . 
Office equipment 7.55 0.11 2.92 

Computers 23.78 0.30 6.96 

Right--of-usc Asset (ROU) 180.67 37.34 98.42 

Total 225.01 38.09 114.99 

! 8 Intangible Assets Under Development (Pre\·ious Year) 

(i) Intangible Assets Under Developmcnt Ageing Schedule:-

As al 
March 31, 

2022 

0.37 

3.89 

2.40 

4.74 

17.12 

119.59 

148.11 

Amount in lntnngible A~sets Under Development for 

Intnngible Assets Under Development 
a period of March 31, 2022 

Less than I 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

More than 
vear 3 vears 

Project in flronress 
Oidta\ Lending l'!atform (lJLP)* 40.62 52.32 . . 
Total 40.62 52.32 

Accumulated Depreciation and Jmpainncnt Net Block 

Asat 
Charge for 

Disposals A~at Asal 
April OJ, 

the year 
during the March 31, March 31, 

2021 year 2022 2022 

. 0.37 

5.77 1.55 4.07 3.25 0.64 

2.36 0.40 l.13 1.63 0.77 

. . . 
6.19 0.53 2.57 4.15 0.59 

20.69 0.94 6.59 15.04 2.08 

78.52 28.02 106.54 13.05 

113.53 31.44 14.36 130.6! 17.50 

Total 

92.94 
92.94 

{ii) For ln1angible Assets Under Development, \\hose completion is overdue or has e:,.ceedcd its cost compared tolls original plm1, refer below schedule:-

To be completed in 
lnt>ingib!e Assets Under De\'elopment less than I More than Total 

vear 
1-2 Years 2-3 years 

3 '-'ears 
Digital lending Platform {OLP) 125.C0 . . . 125.00 
Total 125.00 . . . 125.00 

* The company is developing a Digi1al lending Platform (DLP) for autom.1tion of retail loan originntion process. The originnl projected cost of the software was 
estimated at Rs. 95.00 million with a varintion of 10%. During the de\·e\opment phase, Co- Lending Mode! (CLM) module was identified as an additional module for 
development, accordingly the project cost is revised and estimated to be Rs. 125 million. Further, timelinc for completion of the project is nlso revised and expected 
to be completed by FY 2023. 

19 Other Intangible Assets (Previous Year) 

Gross Block Accumulated Amortisation and lmpaim1ent Net Block 

Description of Assets As at Additions Disposals As at As at 
Charge for 

Disposals Asnt Asat 
April 01, during the during the Mnrch 31, April 01, 

the year 
during the March 31, March 31, 

2021 year year 2022 2021 year 2022 2022 

Other Intnngible Assets 

Software 15.78 15.78 11.78 3.23 . 15.01 0.77 

Total 15.78 15.78 11.78 3.23 IS.OJ 0.77 

Note: 

*Charged against secured redeemable non-convertible debentures 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11tin11ed) 
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

20 Other non-fimmcial assets 

Input tax credit (Goods and Scn~ces Tax) 
Prepaid expenses 
Advances to vendors 
Advances to employees 

21 Trade Payables 

Trade payables to non-related panics 
Trnde payables to related parties (Refer note 46) 

Note; 
(i) Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 
(ii) Total outstanding dues ofmiero enterprises and small enterprises 

As at As at 
:'!larch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

98.58 
11.69 

1.78 
0.27 

112.31 

5-1.04 
3.23 

57.27 

57.27 

110.71 
23.41 
23.75 

0.24 
158.1 J 

42.55 
11.51 

54.06 

53.17 

0.89 

Trade Payables includes Nil! amount payable to "Suppliers" registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises 
De\"elopment Act, 2006. (Previous Year Rs.0.89 million) Interest paid by the company during the year to "Suppliers" 
registered under this Act is Nill (Previous year. Rs.0.06 million). The aforementioned is based on the responses received 
by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act. 

21.1 Trade Payable Ageing:-

- Outstanding for March 31, 2023 ~ 

Parlicul:irs 
More 

Total 
Less than I 1-2 2-3 

than 3 
Year Years years 

,·cars 
(i)MSME . . . . . 

(ii) Othcr!l 50.80 1.09 1.04 4.34 57.27 
(ii1) Disputed dues - MSME . . . . . 
{iv) Disputed dues - Others . . . . . 

Total 50.80 1.09 1.04 4.34 57.27 

Trude Pa,·able Ageing :-

Outstanding for March 31, 2022" 

Particufors 
Less than 1 1-2 

2-3 ycafl> 
Year Years 

(i)MSME 0.89 . . 
(ii) Others 47.83 1.22 2.72 
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME . . . 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others . . 
Total 48.72 1.22 2.72 

"Unbilled amount due of March 2023 is Rs.38.54 million {March 2022- Rs.31.18 million). 

22 Debt securities (In India) 
(At amoniscd cost) 

Non-convertible redeemable debentures (Secured) 
Privately placed non-convertible debentures 
Publicly placed non-convertible debentures 

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other tenns, refer note 53 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

889.88 
889,88 

More Total 

than 3 
years 

. 0.89 
1.39 53.17 
. . 
. . 

1.39 54.06 

Asnt 
March 31, 2022 

1,040.74 
1,763.69 
2,804.43 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the fiuancial statements for year cmlcd March 31, 2023 (Cu11tim1ed) 

(Currency: lndian rupees in millions) 

23 Borrowings other than debt securities (In India) 
(A! amortised cost) 

Term Loan (secured) 
From Banks 
From Financial Institution 

Note: For disclosure relating to repayment and other te=, refer note 52 

Bank overdraft (Secured) 

Bank ovcrdrnfl is in nature of committed Cash Credit lines repayable on demand (Interest 
rnte rnnge, Man::h-23 7,95% - 11.55% , March-22: 7.95%- I 1.55%) 

Loan & Advances From Edel Land Limited 
Others 

23(11) Wilful Defaulter 

As at 
;'\farch 31, 2023 

266.39 

266.39 

355.76 

355.76 

OX! 
S3.28 

705.60 

The company is not declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender. 

13(b) Compliance to tl:c borrower•.~ terms & periodical filling of statements of current assets 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

1101.59 
298.59 

1400.18 

374.11 

374.11 

--- 1774.29 

Company has borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets as mentioned in Note 23 above 
(i) Company has filed quarterly retums or statements of current assets in timely manner un are in agreement with the 1-,ooks of accounts 
(ii) There arc no material discrepancies in quatcrly returns or statement~ iil!ed. 

24 Subordinated li:1bilitics (In India) 
(Al amortised cost) 

Nun-rnnvcrtibk ~ubor<linatc<l <lcbcntur.:s 
Non-com crtibk pcrp.:tual debentures 

Note: For d1sclosurc relating to repayment and other temis, rcfCr note 54 & S5 

25 Othe;· financial liabmtics 

Sccuritisalion liability 
Investor payable on assigned loans 

Lease liabilities 
Payable to employees 
Book ovcr<lrnfl 
Debenture application money received pending allotment 
Other payable 

1,731.84 

458.76 

2,~ 

813.50 
24.18 
25.62 
50.63 
4.61 
0.13 

103.26 

1,021.92 

1694 54 
-1-58.6-l 

2153.18 

284.11 
164.04 
16.12 
46.42 
41.11 

0.13 
122.04 

673.97 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the fimtncfal statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11tim1ed) 

(Curn.:11cy: Indian rupees in millions) 

U, Current tax liabilities (net) 

ProvJSion for taxation 
(net of advance tax Rs. 411.83 million, previous year Rs, 528.31 million) 

27 Provisions 

Provision for employee benefits (refer note 43) 
Gratuity 
Compensated leave absences 

Others 

28 Other non~finandal Jiabililies 

Revenue received in advance 
Payable to others 
Statutory dues payable 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

59.17 

59.17 

9.09 
2.23 
1.63 

12.95 

0.11 
7.70 

33.53 
41.34 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

44.02 

44.02 

8.71 
2.53 
0.14 

11.38 

0,06 

8.16 
31.78 
40.00 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limiled 
Noles to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed) 

(Currency. Indian rupees in millions) 

29 Equity share capital 

Au!horised : 

5,00,00,000 (Previous year: 5,00,00,000) equity shares ofRs. lO each 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: 

4,29,50,000 (Previous year: 4,29,50,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10, fully 
paid-up 

(a) Mo,·cmcnt in share capital : 

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 
Shares issued during the year 
Outstanding at tl1c end of the year 

(b) Terms/rights at:achcd to equity shares: 

As at As a! 
March 31, 2023 :'\·larch 31, 2022 

500.00 500.00 

500.00 500.00 

429.50 429.50 

429.50 429.50 

Asut As at 
March 31, 2023 1'.·larch 31, 2022 

No of shares Amount No of shares Amount 

4,29,50,000 429,50 4,29,50,000 429.50 

4,29,50,000 429.50 4,29,50,000 429.50 

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a p;ir value of Rs. !0/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share 
he!d. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after 
distribution ofal! preferential amounts. 

(c) Shares held by Promoters/lmldinglultimate holding company and/or their subshliaries 

% Change 
during the 

year 

Edck;ip Scrnrittcs LmrneJ (llolJing company)** 

Eddwcis.s Fmanc1al Sen 1cc.s Limned {l'himak !wldmg c<>mp;iny) 
bklwci,;s Fin,c,;t Lmu1cd\Ama]g3mc!cd 1,ith Edd Finance Company 
Limited) {Fdlow subsidiary) 
Ecap Equities Limitcd(Fom1crly known as Edel Land Limited) tFcll<>w 
subsidiary)* 

As at Asai 
l\brch 31, 2023 March 3 ! , 2022 

No of shares ¾ No of shares % 

3,02,58,333 70.45% 3.02.5S,333 70.45% 

30,00,000 6.98% 30.00,0(1() 6.98% 

96,91,6{;7 '.HS/% 96,91,667 22.S7'l-·o 

4,29,50,000 100.00% 4,29.50.000 100.00'~ 

*On June 9, 2021 Edelweiss Financial Services Limited has trnnsfcned 96,91 ,667 equity shares of the company to Edel Land Limited resulting to 
change of shareholding of the company. 

hJneludcs 6 Equity shares hdd by nominees ofEdelcap Securities Limited. 

{d) There arc no shares r~sened for issue under options und contruels / commitments for the sulc of shares/ disin\·cstmcnt. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed) 

{Cum:ncy · Indian rupees in millions) 

30 Other Equity 

Capital reserve 
Secutities premium 
Statutory reserve under section 45-IC 
Debenture redemption reserve 
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 
Retained earnings 

Note: For movement in Other Equity, refer 'Statement of changes in Equity' 

30.1. Nature and purpose of Reserves 

(a) Capital reserve 
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution. 

(b) Securities Premium 

As at Asal 
i\farch 31, 2023 March 3 l, 2022 

8.18 R.!8 

3,112.08 3,112.08 

408.37 352.80 

22.91 67.84 
5.94 5.94 

1,379.52 1,H0.96 

4,937.00 4,657.79 

Securities premium is used to record the prenuum op issue of shares. Balance m Securities premium can be utilised only for limited purposes such 
as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with tht: provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

(c) Special Resen•e under Section 45-IC of the Rcsen·c Bank of Jndia Act, 1934 
Reserve created under section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as 
disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared. 

(d) Debenture Redemption Reserve 
The Company being an NBFC is required to crea1e and maintain dehenture redemption reserve (DRR) equivalent to 25% of the public issue of 
debentures, as required by Companies Act, 2013. The amounts credited to the DRR may not be utilised except on redemption of such debentures. 
On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture redemption reserve to retained earnings. However, as per the recent 
amendment to the Companies Act 2013, NBFCs are no longer required 10 create and maintain DRR Accordingly, the Company has not created 
incremental DRR on existing public issue of debentures, post the said amendment, though the Company continues to maintain the ORR created 
earlier till the maturity of these dcbcmurcs. 

(c) Deemed capital contrihution - Equity 
This reser\'e relates to share options granted 10 eligible employees of the Compnny by the parent comp::my under its employee share option plan. 

(f) Retained Earnings 
Retained earnings comprises of the Company's undistributed earnings after taxe~ 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for ye:ir ended March 31, 2023 (Cm,ti11Uf.'d} 

(Currency: ln<lian rupees in millions) 

31 Inkrest Income (at amortised cost) 

Interest on Loans 
Interest income on securities held for trading 
Interest on deposits with bank 
Other interest income 
Other interest income on direct assignment 

32 Fee and commission income 

Fee and commission income 

33 Net gain/loss on fair ,·alue changes 

On trading portfolio 
Profit/ (loss) on trading of securities (FVTPL) 
Profit on sale of mutual fund units (FVTPL) 
Guin/ (loss) on Security Receipts/ AlF 

34 Other income 

Other non operating income 

For the ye:ir ended 
;\Iarch 31, 2023 

1,262.46 
15.19 

6.29 
0.01 

67.24 
1,351.19 

31AO 

31.40 

(9.26) 

(8634) 

(95.60) 

10.22 

10.22 

For !he year ended 
March 31, 2022 

1,502.29 
6.17 

10.79 
0.00 

41.30 
1,560.55 

15.72 

15.72 

158.94 
3.26 

162.20 

35.33 

3533 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended J\farch 31, 2023 (Contimied) 

(Currency; Indian rupees in millions) 

35 Finance costs (at amortised cost) 

Interest on borrowings 
Interest on debt securities 
Interest on subordinated liabilities 
Other interest expense (including bank charges) 
Interest on lease liabilities 

36 Impairment on fimmcial instruments 

Loss on sale ofloan assets sold to assets reconstruction company (trust) 
Bad- debts and advances written off 
Provision for expected credit loss (at amortised cost} 
(including on Joan commitments) 

37 Employee benefit expenses 

Salaries and wages 
Contribmion to provident and other funds 
Gratuity expense (refer note 43) 
Share based payments to employees 
(Refer note he]ow) 
Staffwclfare expenses 

Note; 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

218.77 
215.21 
205.42 

6.52 
1.93 

647.86 

89.62 
7.81 

(286.91) 

(189.48) 

211.17 
11.30 
2.55 

2.34 
8.97 

236.33 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

352.25 
255.19 
:!OS.I'.!. 

3.41 
11.34 

827.31 

35.89 
(9.08) 

(144.3!) 

(117.50) 

!97.23 
7.80 
1.99 

2.96 

5.74 

215.72 

Et.k!wciss Financial Seffices Limited ("EFSL") the ultimate holdmg: Company has 1,.>r,mted an Employee stock option plan 
(ESOP)/ Stock Appreciation Rights (ESAR) option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a 1,>r.ided manner to 
Company's employees. Based on group policy/ arrangement, EFSL has charged 1he foir value of such stock options /rights, 
Company has acccptcd such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost. 
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Notes to the financial slatcments for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti11111:il) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in n1i1Hons) 

38 Other expenses 

Advermcmcnt and business promotion 
Commission and brokerage 
Communication 
Directors' sining fees 
Legal and professional fees 
Printing and stationery 
Rent, Rates and taxes (net ofrceovery) 
Repairs am! maintenance 
Computer expenses 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note 4.5) 
Rating support fees 
Office expenses 
Postage and courier 
Goods & Service tax expenses 
S!amp duty 
Auditors' remuneration (rt:fer no1e 38.1) 
Travelling and conveyance 
Warehousing charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 

38.1 Auditors' reI11uncrntion 
As an Auditor 

Statutory Audit 
Limited Review 
Certification 
Towards rcimbur,cmcnt of expenses 

38.2 Details of CSR Expenditure: 
As per the provisions of Section 135 ofCompame, Act 2013 

{a) A.mount rcquin:d to be spent by the ,;:0111p:my during the year 
Jbl Amomn of expenditure mcurrcd 

Amount spent (paiJ in cash) 
(i) C:ms1ructionl Acquisition of any us sets 
(ii) For purpose other !han (i) above 

Amount to be spent (yet to be paid in cash) 
(i) Cons!ructionl Acquisition of any assets 
(ii) For purpose o1hcr 1han (i) above 

(c) Shortfall at the cod ofthc year 
(d) Total of previous years shonfall 
(c) Reason for shonfall 
(f) Details of related pany transactions 

Name of Related Party 
Relationship 

(g) Where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by 
entering into a contractual obligation 
(h) Nature of CSR activities 

For the year ended i\-farch, 31 2023 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

18.59 
3.02 
0.26 
1.06 

76.06 
0.73 

20.82 
5.39 
7.79 
4.50 

25.49 
0.12 

42.99 
2.10 
2.33 
6.69 
0.04 
2.97 

220.93 

Not Applicable 

0.65 
1.05 

0.56 

O.Oi 

2.33 

4.50 
4.50 

4.50 

For 1he year ended 
March 31. 2022 

280.05 
4.-16 
2.91 
0.48 

63.14 
0.77 

(2.8-1) 
l.18 
8.40 
7.00 
0.06 

11.50 
1.06 

41.88 
1.34 
3.41 
3.34 

131.44 
559.58 

Not Applicable 

0.96 
l.35 
l.08 
0.02 

3Al 

7 00 
7.00 

7.00 

Edclgivc Foundation Edcl1:,>ivc Foundation 
Fellow Subsidiary Fellow Subsidiary 

For the causes of Education and Community Resilience and Climate Action (CRCA). 
For !he year ended March, 31 2022 

Education Working to enhance child learning through work with system and community and suppon to the development 
of contextual literature for children 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial stalements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Conthmed) 

(Currcncy:lndian rupees in million) 

39 Income tax 

39.I. The components of income tax expense: 

Current !ax 
Short/(cxccss) provision for earlier years 
Deferred tax 

Total tax clrnrgc 

Current tax 
Deferred tax 

39.2 Reconciliation of total tax charge 

Accounting profit before tax as per financial statements 

Tax rate (in percentage) 
Income ta,; expense calculated btJScd on this tax rate 
Short/(cxccss) pro\<ision for earlier ycars 
Effect of non-dcductiblc expcnscs: 

Others 

Tax charge for the year rccordcd in P&L 

Effective tax rate 

For the period ended For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 20::!2 

12.63 29.52 
(5.79) 

80.52 45.59 

93.15 69.32 

12,63 23.73 
80.52 45.59 

For the period ended For the period ended 
March 31, 2023 March31,2022 

371.01 254.01 

25.17% 25.17% 
93.38 63.93 

(5.19) 

(0.23) 11.18 

93.15 69.32 

25.11% 27.29% 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial slatements for year ended March 31, 2023 (C011tin11ed) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

39 Income tax 

39.3. t-.'lovemcnt of Deferred Tax assets / liabilities 

Deferred tax Deferred tax 
asset/ Jn profit or 

In OCI 
Directly in Tola! asset/ 

(lfability) loss equity mo\'cmcnt (liability) 
(OpeninJ?) (ClosinJ?) 

For the year ended March 31, 2023 
Deferred taxes in relation to: 
Deferred Tax Assets 

Provision for expected credit Joss 121.51 (70.08) (70.08) 51.43 
Retirement Benefits 0.65 (4.86) (4.86) (4.21) 
Difference between book and tax WDV 10.03 (4.99) (4.99) 5.04 

(including intangibles) 
Lease liability 4.06 2.39 2.39 6.45 
Others 8.67 12.46 12.46 21.13 
Effective interest rate on financial assets 0.23 (1.58) (1.58) (1.35} 

Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Stage 3 Income recognition 
Interest spread on assignment transactions (13.44) (12.13) (12.13) (25.57) 
Effective interest rate on financial (11.37) 1.01 1.01 (10.36) 
Right-of-use Asset (ROU) (3.28) (2.74) (2.7-t) (6.02) 

Total 117.06 __JH0.52) ~0.52) 36.54 

For the year ended March 31, 2022 

Deferred taxes in relation to: 
Deferred Tax Assets 

Provision for expected credit loss 149.92 \28.41) (28.41) 121.51 
Retirement Benefits 9.75 (9.10) (9.10) 0.65 
Difference between book and tax \VDV 9.97 0.06 0.06 10.03 

(iodutling mt;mgibks) 
Lease liability 27.91 (23,85) (23.85) 4.06 
Others 20.17 (11.50) ( I 1.50) 8.67 
E!lCctive mlen:sl rate> on iinancial :l%ets { 1.06) 1.29 1.29 0.23 

Dcfom:tl T:ix Lw.bilit1cs 
Effective interest rat.: on financial assets 
Stage 3 Income recognition (0.24) 0.24 0.24 
Interest spread on assignment trans:ietions (13.74) 0.30 0.30 (13.44) 
Effective interest rate on financial (14.35) 2.98 2.98 (11.37) 

Right-of.•11se Asset (ROU) (25.69) 22.41 22.41 (3.28) 

Total 162.64 (45.58) (45.58) 117.06 
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(Currency:lndian rupees in millions) 

40 Cash Flow Disclosure 

Change in Liabilities arising from financing acitivies 

Particulars 
As at April 

Cash Flows 
Changes in 

01, 2022 Fair value 

Debt Sccuntics 2,804.43 (1,872.58) 

Borrowings other than Debt Securities 1,774.29 (1,073.1:2) 

Subordinated Liabi!i1ies 2,153.18 

Securiti1,ation liability 284.11 (284.1 I) 

7.016.0l p.229.IHl 

Particulars 
As at April 

Cash Flows 
Changes in 

01, 2021 Fair value 

Debt Securities 2,923.81 (JOO.OJ) 
Borrowings other than Debt Securities 4,502.60 (2,720.40) 

Subordinatc<l Liabilities 2,119.04 0.01 

Securitization liability 

9.545.45 (2.820.40) 

Others* 

(41.97) 
4.42 

37.42 
813.50 

813.37 

Others" 

(19.37) 
(7.91) 
34.13 

284.11 

290.96 

•includes the efiCct of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, amortisation of processing fees etc 

As at l\farch 
31, 2023 

889.88 
705.60 

2.190.60 
813.50 

4.599.57 

As at March 
31,2022 

2.804.43 
1,774.29 
2,!53.18 

284.11 

7.016.01 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financfol statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111cd) 

(Currency : Indian rnpccs in millions) 

41. Earnings per Slrnrc 

Dasie earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit auributab!e to equity shareholders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. 

Net Profit attributab\c to Equity holders of the Compaoy -A 

Weighted average Number of Shares 
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 
- Number of equity shares issued during the year 

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 

Weighted avcmge number of equity shares outst:mdiog during the year (based 
on the date of issue of shares) - B 

Nominal value of equity shares 
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees) (,VB) 

For the year ended 

March 31, 2023 

277,86 

42.95 

42.95 

42.95 

10.00 
6,47 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

184.69 

42.95 

42.95 

42.95 

10.00 
4.30 

The basic and diluted earning.~ per share are the same as there are no dilutive/ potential equity shares issued or outstanding as 
m the year end 

42. Contingent Liability and Commitment: 

(a) Contingent Liability 

Taxation matters 

Litigation pending against the company 

Asnt 
~forch 31, 2023 

0.57 

Nil 

Asal 
March 31, 2022 

0.57 

Nil 

The Company's pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Company pertaining to proceedings pending with 

Income Tax and other authorities The Company has reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately 

provided for \\here pro\·isions are required :md disclosed as contingent liabilities where applicable. in the financial statements 

The Company bclic\·es that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially ad\crsc cff.:cl on the Company's 

financial position and results of operations. 

(b) Commitment: 

Estimated amount of contract~ remaining to be executed on capital account 

Loan sanctioned peoding disburserncms 

Alf Fund pending commitments 

As at 
~farch 31,207.3 

116.04 

65.97 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

16.95 

55.59 

127.31 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended Match 31, 2023 (Conlimied) 

(Currency· Indian rupees in millions) 

43. Retirement and other employee benefits 

(a) Defined contribution plan~ ProYident funds 

In accordance with Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, employees of the Company arc entitled to receive benefits under the 
provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which, both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a determined rate. These contributions are made to 
a recognized provident fund administered by Regional Provident Fnnd Commissioner. The employees contribute 12% of their basic S[l!my and the Company 
contributes an equal amount. 

The Company recognised as ofMarch 31,2023 Rs. "10.03" millions (March 31, 2022 : Rs 8.98 millions) for provident fund in the Statement of profit and loss. 

(b) Defined benefit plan~ Gratuity 

(i) 

{ii) 

(iii) 

(iv) 

ln m;cordance with the Payment of Gr.ituity Act, ! 972, the Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering all employees. The plan provides a lump 
sum paJmcnt to vested employees at retirement or tcnnination of cmplo}ment in accordnncc with the rules laid down in the Pa)mcnt of Gratuity Act, 1972. The 
gratuity benefit is partially provided through funded plan and annual expense is charged to the statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation. 

The mo$t recent actuarial valuation of plan assets and the present valnc of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) for gratuity were carried out a_~ at March 31, 2023. 
The present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost am! past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit 
Meihod. 

Based on the actuarial valu[ltion obtained in this rc$pcct, the following table sel~ out the stains of the gratuity plan and the amounL~ recognised in the Company's 
financial statements as at balance sheet date: 

Present n1luc of defined benefit obligations (A) 
Fair Vaine of plan assets (8) 

Present rnluc of defined benefit obligations (A-BJ 

Net deficit I (assets) arc analysed as· 
Liabilities 
Aswfs 

Mo,·ement in net defined benefit (asset) liability: 

March JI 
A,at Asat 
2023 March 31 2022 
9.09 8.71 

9.09 8.71 

9.09 8.71 

The following lab le shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the dosing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liability and its components: 

Present mlue of defined benefit obligations (opening) 
Current sen'icc cost 
Past service cost 
Interest cost 

Other comprehensive Income 
Remeasurement Actuarial loss {gain) arising from : 
Experience 
Financial assnmptions 
Expected return from plan assets 

Others 
Transfer Inl (Out) 
Contributions by Employer 
Benefits paid 

Closiug Balance (i) + (ii)+ (iii) 

Represented by 
Net defined benefit asset 
Net defined benefit liability 

Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets 
Net defined benefil (asset) 

liability 
MarthJl.2023 MarchJI 2022 MarchJl,2023 March31 2022 MnrchJt.2023 Murch3\ 2022 

8.71 8.01 8.71 8.01 
2.06 1.60 2.06 1.60 

0.50 0.39 0.50 0.39 
II.26 I0.00 11.26 I0.00 

(0.20) (0.08) (0.20) (0.08) 
(0.68) (0.32) (0.68) {0.32) 

0.79 0.79 
(0.88) 0.39 (0.88) 0.39 

(0.28) (0.20) (0.28) (0.20) 

I.Oil {1.48) (1.01) (1.48) 
(I.29) (I.68) (1.29) (1.68) 

9.09 8.71 9.09 8.71 

9.09 8.71 

,-,-..._s 

Ii 



Components of defined benefit plan cost: 

(i) Recognised in Statement of profit or loss 
Curren! service cos! 
Intcn.•st cost 

Expected return on plan assets 
Past service cost 

(ii) Recognised in other comprehensive income 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/(asset) 
Return on plan assets excluding net interest 

Total (i) + (ii) 

Actuarial assumplions: 

For the year ended For the year ended 

1\farch31, 2023 March 3 !, 2022 

2.06 1.60 
0.50 0.39 

2.55 1.99 

(0.88) 0.39 

(0.88) 0.39 

1,67 2.38 

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date. 

Discount Rate 
Salary Growth Rate 
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on categories) 
Expected return on plan Asset5 (p.a) 
Mortality Rate 

Expected weighted avcrngc remain in working Jives of employees 

Sensitivity :rnalysis: 

As at 
l\larch 31, 2023 

7.10% 
7.00% 

16.00% 
NA 

IALM 2012-
14{Ultimate) 

4 Years 

As al 
Man.:h31.2022 

5.90% 
7.00% 

16.00% 
NA 

!ALM 2012-
14(Ultimate) 

4 Years 

--~~ !It March 31, 2023 ~ As at March 31. 2022 _ 

(q 

Salary Growth Rate(+/- 1%} 
Discount Rate(+/- 1%,) 
Withdmwl Rate (+/-1%) 
Mortr.lity {increase in expected lifetime by l year) 
Mortality (inm:::asc in expwcd lifetime by 3 year) 

Increase 

0.56 
(0.51) 

o.oo 

Decrease 
(0.52) 
0,56 
(0.00) 

Inctefile Decrease 

o:n (0.)3) 
{0.53) 0.59 
(0.03) 0.03 

0.00 
0.00 

TI1e scnsiti\·ity is pcrfonncd on the DBO al !he n:spcclivc raluamm 1L,w by nmdit)'ing ,me p:1r,11nclc! whibt rctdining other par.imc1c:~ constnn! Thcr,:, :ire no 
d1,mgcs from th.: prc\·iou~ paioo.l 1l> the m,:thoo.ls and assumptions un<.lerlying the ~cns1linty analysis. 

Asset liability comparisons: Asal As at 
March 31, 2023 Mnrch31.'.!022 

Present v:i!ue of DBO 9.09 8.71 
fair Value of Plan assds 
Net (As~el~)fLi:ibilitiy 9.09 8.7! 

Compcnsa1cd absences : 

The Company provides for :iccumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit method based on acl\laria! \'aluation. l11e 
leave cncashment on separation is paid on basic salary 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial stalemenls for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

44. Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities 

The table below shO\\S an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according lo when they arc e.~pected to be recovered or settled. With 
regard to loans and advaaces lo customers, the company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for contrnelual 
maturity analysis 

As at l\larch3I, 2023 A~ at March 31, 2022 

Particulars 
Within 12 After 12 

Total 
Within 12 After 12 

Total 
months months months months 

Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 267.13 267.13 166.41 166.41 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
cquirnlcnts 119.37 119.37 139.57 139.57 
Securities held for trading 178.13 178.13 50.29 50.29 
Trade receiveables 35,21 35,21 !9.64 19.64 
Loans 2,797.17 2,646.50 5,443.67 6,495.39 3,741.03 10,236.43 
Investments 3,115.40 3,115.40 1,540.98 1,540.98 
Other financial assets 811.74 14.45 826.19 4.53 34.43 38.96 

Non-financial assets 
Current tax assets (net) 72.53 72.53 63.96 63.96 
Deferred tax asset~ (net) 36.54 36.54 117.06 117.06 
Property, Plaat and Equipment 26.49 26.49 17.50 17.50 
Intangible assets under development 0.00 0.00 92.94 92.94 
Other Intangible assets 112.26 112.26 0.77 0.77 
Other non-financial assets 13.73 98.58 112,31 47.51 110.60 158.11 

Total Asscls 4,222.48 6,122.75 10,345.23 6.923.34 5,719.28 12,642.62 

Financial Liabilities 
Trade payables 57,27 57.27 54.37 -0.31 54.06 
Debt securities 7.45 882,42 889.88 1,928.83 875.60 2,804.43 
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 589.35 116.25 705.60 1,774.29 0.00 1,774.29 
Subordinated Liabilities 73.77 2,116.113 2,191.1.60 73.75 2,079.43 2,153.18 

- Other financial liabilities 578.42 443.50 1.021.92 637.37 36.59 673.97 

Non-fhmncial liabilities 
Current tax liabilities {net) 59.17 59.17 44.02 44.02 
Pro\~sions 12.95 12.95 11.24 0.14 11.38 
Other non-financial habi!itics 41.34 41.34 40.05 -0.05 40.00 

Total Liabilities 1,419.72 3,559.01 4,978.72 4.563,92 2,991.41 7,555.33 

Net 2,802.76 2,563.74 5,366.51 2,359.43 2,727.87 5,087.29 

-· \ 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11till11ed) 

(Currency ;Indian rupees in millions) 

45. Segment reporting 

The Company is rcgistcn:d with Reserve Bank of India a.s a Nnn Ifankmg Fmancia! Company engaged in the husmcss of lending and financing . All other actl\illcs of the company revolve around 
1hc main business. Acc:ordingly. there is no separalc reportable segment and henr;:c nD disclDsurc is mJdc under Ind AS 108 - 'OpNating Segment Reporting". l'urthcr, segmcmmion b.i.scd on 
gcograph} has not been presented a.s the Co111panyopcratcs only in India. 

46. Related Party Disclosures 

{i) List of related parties and rdatiomhip: 

Name of related panics by whom control is exercised Edelweiss Financial Scn·ices Limited Ullimnte holding Company 

Edc!cap Securities Limited (!lolding company) 

Fellow Suhsl!Jiarics ECL Finance Limited 
(with wlmm transactions ha\·c 1akcn place) Edel Finance Company Limited 

Eddwciss invcstmcnl~ Limited 

F~llow Associates (From March 26. 2021 lo 29th 
March, 2023)) 

Ecap Equities Limited {Fonncrly kno\\n as Edel Land Limited) 

Edd Give foundation 
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 

Edelweiss Asset Recnns1ruction Company Limited 

Zuno General h1~urn1cc Umi1cd (formerly known a,; Edelweiss General Insurance Company 
Limited) 
Nido Home Finance Limned (Formerly known a., Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Sef\ices Limited 
Edelweiss Tokio Ufo Jnrumncc Company Limited 
Edelweiss Value And Growth Fund 
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fuml 
India Credit Investment Fund II 

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited) 

Nuvanm Capital Services (JFSC) Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities (IFSC) Limited) 
Nuvama Weallh Finance Limited (Fom1crlyknown as Edelweiss Finance & Jnvestmen\5 Umited) 
Nuvama Clearing Scnic:c~ Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Scrvir.cs Limited) 

Key Management Personnel 

lndcpenJcnt Director 

(ii) Tr.rnsattions with related parties ; 

Ms, Shilpa Gattani (wcfFcb 6, 2020) 

Mr. Phanindranath Kakarla (wcfSep 1:S. 2020} 
Mr. Mehcmosh TnHL (wcf July 3, 2020 upto 31st December, 2022) 
Mr. Dcepak Mundra(wcfScp 15, 2020 upto Oct 13. 2021) 

Mr. Jignc.sh Gagl.mi (upto Sc1' 29, 2022) 
Mr.Bitcsh Blrndadn (wcf July 26. 2022) 

l,,kl,,!:moj Agmwal (\\dFcb I. 2023) 

Ms.lnar~ \\'aJJ111,.my.1 (11 efFeb !. 2023) 

Dr. Vinod Juneja (wefMay 15, 2021) 
Mr. Sunil Phatniphckar (wcf Apr 12, 2020) 

Non Executive Director 
Non F.xccutl\·c Director 

Chicffaccuti1c Officer 
Nan E~ccutive Director 

Crnnpany Scnctary 
ChiefFmm1ci.il Officer 

Manag~r 
Comp:mi Sccrcwr, 

AJditional Director 

Independent Dircc1or 

l'fa!ure of Transaction Rdatcd Party Name 
I-"or the yc:ir ended For the year ended 

Capirnl Account Tr.msnctions: 

Loans taken frnm .\fllximum /ra11saclio11 d11rfox the year 

I:delweiss Rural & Corpora le Scf\'ices Limited 

ECL Finnncc Limited 

Nido Home Financr Limited {Fonncrlyknown as Edelweiss Housing Fin:mce Limited) 

Ecap Equities Limi1cd(Fonncrly known as Edel Land Limited) 

Vi,lume nf /l"ansactions during t!w year 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scf\'iccs Limilcd 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nido Harne Finance Limited (Fonncrly known :t.<; Edclwci,;,; Housing Fmancc Limited) 

Ecap Equities Limitcd(Fonncrlyknt>ll'n m; Edel Land Limited) 

MarchJJ,2023 March3!,2022 

1,750.0D 

650.00 

400.00 

1,750.00 

1,890.00 

550.00 

960.00 

790.00 
2,500.00 

1.740.00 

Si9.16 

6,500.00 



46. Related rarty Dhclosurcs 

Nature of Transaction 

Loans repaid to 

Loans i;iven !O 

Loans repaid by 

Loan ponfoho ,-old under direct ,i,;s1gnn,c11t 

SecuritiL.,; Purchase 

Redemption of Non couvcnibk debenture held by 

Redemption of Non conveniblc debenture held in 
(Face value) 

Loan sale 10 ARC 

Investment m Security Receipt issued by 

Non cou,·cniblc debentures purdiascd from 

Sale ofSceun1y Rcec1p1s 

Sak of sccunucs 

Related Party Name 

.\1,uimum transaclw11 dmwg /he year 
Eddwufas Rural & Corpomtc Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Eilc!\\CISS Housing Finance Limned) 

Eeap Equities Limited(Fonncr!y known as Edel Land Limi1cd) 

Volume of1r<111sacrio11s duri11g the year 
Eilc\wciss Rurdl & Corporate Services Limiteil 
ECL Finance Limited 
Nido Home Finance Limited {Fonncrlyknown as Edelweiss Housing Finnnc:c Limit~"<I) 

Ecap Equi1ics Limited(Fonner!y known as Edel Land Limited) 

Jf<Ltimum trm,sactiun during the year 
Nido Ilomc Finance Limited (formerly known a.s Edelweiss Jlousmg Finance Limited} 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corpora le Services Limikd 
Eeap Equities Limitcd(Fom1erlyknown as Edel L3nd Limited) 
ECAP Securities and luvcsrmcnts Limitcil(formerly Ecap Equities) 

Volume ofllw,sr,c/imis durlng the year 
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Ecap Equities Limitcd(Formerlyknown as Edel Land Limited) 

ECAP Sccuri1ies and Investments Limilcd(fonnerly Ecap Equities) 

Jfa.nmum mm.wiction during thcycnr 
Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known a., Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
ECL Finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Ecap Equities Limitcd(Formerlyknown as Edel Land Linuted) 

ECAP Securities and Invcsnncnts Limitcd(formcrly Eeap Equities) 

Volume of 11w,sac1fons during the year 
Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelwcis.1 Hou~ing Finance Limited) 
ECL Fin:rucc Limited 

Edclweis.1 RurJl & Corpor~te Ser.ices Limited 
Ecap Equities Limitcd{Formcrly known as Edel Land Linutcd) 
ECAP Scc11ri1ics and lnwstments L1mi1cd(fonnerly Ec;ip Equiucs) 

N1du Hume fmance L1m11cd (Fnm,erly kmm 11 a~ Edcl"ClSS !loti,;,ng finance Lmulcd) 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 
Nido Home flounce Limiced (Formerly known as E<lelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 
Ecap Equities Limitcd(Formcrly known as Edel Land Limited) 

ECL finance Limited 
Edelweiss Rural & Curporatc Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly known as E<ldwci.1s Hou.1mg Finance Limiccd) 

Edelweiss A~sct Reconstruction Company Limited (EARC rrusL~) 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 
EARC Trust SC 416 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edel Finance Comp~ny Limited 

EARC Trust - SC 385 
EARC Trust -SC 416 
EARC Trnsl -SC 417 
lndiu Credit Investment Fuud II 

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments 
Limited) {Associate till 29th March, 2023) 
ECL Finance Limited 

For the year ended For the year ended 
MarchJl,2023 March3!,2022 

1,750.00 960.00 
1,290.00 no.oo 

550.00 

1,750.00 
1,890.00 

550.00 

150.00 
250.00 
970.00 
450.00 

260.00 
250.00 

1,270.00 
450.00 

150.00 
1,000.00 

470.00 
450.00 

340.00 
3,720.00 

970.00 
450.00 

811.61 

1,671.49 

63-1.95 

12.51 
7.66 

14.75 

4,166.40 

140.UO 

61.63 
52.65 

111.46 
4,252.20 

5.69 

178.13 

2,500.00 

1,740.00 
879.16 

6,500.00 

250.00 
2,000.00 
2,640.00 

250.00 
7,640.00 

! !,530.00 

130.00 
2,710.00 
1,750.00 

250.00 
9,560.00 
8,060.00 

378.65 

I 1.04 

0.13 

178.86 

152.07 



46. Rcl:ltcd Party Disdn~ures 

Nature ofTnmsactlnn 

Current Account Transacl!on~: 

Shared premises cost rcce1\'cd from (nel) 

lntcrcit mcome on !nan to 

Interest Income on Non convertible Debentures 

Service charge, received 

Reimbursement of ARC management foe from 

Shared premises cos1 poirl (net) 

Cost reimbursement paid to (net) 

Cost reimbursement received from (net) 

lnlerest Expense on loan from 

lnlcrc.st Expense on Non convertible dcben111rcs 

!merest Expenses on Sub-debt 

Brokerage paid 

En1crpmc Service charge paid to 

Refa!cd Party Name 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nido Jlomc Finance L1mikd {Furmcrly known a.s Eddwciss I!ousmg Fi1rnncc Limited) 
Zuno General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company 
Limik"<I) 

Edelweiss Asset Manngemen1 Limited 
Edelweiss Rur.il & Cotpor.i1c Services Limited 

Nido l!omc Finance Limited (Fonmrly known as Edelweiss Hou.sing Finance Limited) 
ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rur.il & Cotpora!e Services Limited 
Ecap Equities Limited(Formcrly known as Edel Land Limile<l) 
ECAP Sc"CUritics and lnv,:,stmcnts Limitc,l(fonncrly Ecap Equities) 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known us Edelweiss Hou.sing Finance Limited} 

Edel Finance Company Limited 

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Hou,ing Finance Limited) 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limit<¾! 

Nuvama Wealth and Invr:..stmcnt Limited {fonncr!yknown as Edelweiss Broking Li1J1ited) 
{Associa1e till 29th March, 2023) 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Sen ices Limited 

Edelweiss Rur.il & Cotpor.ite Sen ices Limited 

Ecap Equities Limitcd(Fomicrlyknown as Edel Land Limitc"<i) 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nidn Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

Nido Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

Eddwei~s Asset Management Limited 
Nuvama Wealth :,ml !nvcstmc!lt Limited (fom1crly kum\11 as Edelweiss Broking Li1mtcd) 
{As~ociale t1!1291h March. '.!023) 

Edel Finance Company Ltil 

Edch1eiss As~ct R"uinstrucunn Company L11mt"J 

Edelweiss Rural & Corpo1,1le Services Limited 
Nido Horne Finance Limited (Fonncrlyknown a.~ Edehveiss Hou.sing Finance Limited) 
ECL Finance Limited 

Ecap Equitir:..~ Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) 

Edclwci,;s Rurnl & CorporJ1e Sen·iccs Limlled 
Edelweiss Finance & h1vcstmc11ts Limit~d 
Edel Finance Company Limited 

ECL Fina11cc Limited 
Ecap Equities Limitcd(Formerly known os Edel Land Lunitcd) 

Edelweiss Tokio Life lnsurnnec Company Limited 

Nuvama Capilal Servicc-s (IFSC) Limited (fom1cr!y Edelweiss Sccuritic-s (IFSC) Limited) 

Edclwdss lnvcstmcnl Limited 

Ed~lweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

2.50 

0.01 

2.43 
145.97 
20.72 
10.97 

3.71 
0.51 

I0.85 

0.74 

11.66 

17.94 

0.86 

0.30 

0.51 

2.60 

0.02 

2.25 

24.56 
0.19 

l.62 

6.88 
l.53 
0.72 

33,87 

0,01 

0.76 

For 1he year ended 
/l.farch31,2022 

0.90 
8.66 

0.90 

0,18 
O.IO 

2.08 
!08.30 
19!.35 

5.36 

0.81 

1.49 

29.17 

0.28 

0.38 

0.50 

0..11 

1.29 

0.1'.! 

0.00 

0.00 

19,68 

4,84 

19.32 
1.29 

J.64 

0.00 
6.94 
1.56 

30.46 

0.03 

om 

0.63 



46. Refakd !'arty Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Advisory foes paid to 

Guamnlce fee paid 

Service Fee paid to 

Risk & Reward Fccs on Sccunty Receipt sale paid 

CSR fapcnscs Pa,d to 

ESOP cost reimbursement 

Ratmg support foes paid lo 

Director Sitting fees 

Remuneration paid to 

Sale of Property. Plant and Equipment 

Purcha~c of Property, pla11l and cquipmc11t 

;\"alurc ofTransacli(ln 

Balance5 nith related panies: 

Interest accmcd on loans taken from 

Loans gwcn lo 

Related Party Name 

Nido Ifomc Finance Lunitcd (Fonncrlyknown as Edelweiss !lousing finance Limited) 

Ecap Equi1ies Limitcd(Fonnerly known as Edel Land Linnted) 

Edelweiss Rum! & Corporn1e Scr\'iccs Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Ede!Givc Foundation 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scniccs Limited 

Mr. Vinnd Juneja 

Mr. Sunil Plrn1arphckar 

Mr. Jigncsh Gaglani 

Mr. Amit Pandey 

Mr. Mchcmosh Tata 

Mr. Shailcndra Dlmpiya 

Hitcsh Bhadada 

Manoj Agarwal 

lnara Wadhwaniya 

ECL Financc Limited 
Edelweiss Broking Limited 

Nido Home Fimmce Limited (Formerly kno,rn as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Sen·ices Limited 

Eddwciss RurJl & Corpora\c Scr,·ices Limited 

ECL Finnnce Limited 

Related Party Nume 

Ecap Equities Lim11cd(Fonne1lyknown as Edel Land Limited) 

ECL finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Serviccs Limited 

Ecap Equities Limi1cd(Fonncrly known as Edel Land Limited) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March JI, 2023 March3!,2022 

4.30 

0,00 

0.00 0.00 

0.46 

0.86 

4.50 7.00 

2J4 2.96 

0.06 

0.60 0.26 

0.44 0.22 

0.79 1.26 

0.13 

17.70 20.23 

4.8! 

2.57 

2.01 
0.12 

0.00 

0.00 

0.13 0.30 

0.01 

0.02 

0.02 

For the year ended For the year ended 

:\-farth 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

0.17 

80.00 

3,470.00 

300.00 



46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

[ntcrc,t accruc<l on loan g,wn 10 

Non cton\"crtible debentures (at face value} held by 

Subordinated d~bcnturc {Face Value) held by 

Perpetual debenture {Face Value) kld by 

Non convertible dcbcnmres (Face Value) held m 

Related PartyNnmc 

Nido Home Finance Limilcd (Formerly known as Eddwc1ss Ifousmg F1mmcc Lnmtcd) 

ECL Fmancc Limited 

E<lclweiss Rural & Corpol'ltc Sen-ices Lnnitcd 

Ecap Equitic.s Limitcd(Formcrlyknown as Edd Land Limited) 

ECAP Securities and invcstrncnls Limited{fonncrly Ecnp Equiticr.) 

Edelweiss Rul'l! & Corporate Sen-ices Limited 

Nuvama Wealth Fmancc Limi1cd(Forn1er!yknown as Edclwds:; Finance & Investment~ 
Limiled) (Associ:nc till 29th March, 2023) 
ECL Finance Limited 

Ecap Equiti,:,; Limitcd(form~rly known as Edd Land Limited) 

Edelweiss Tokio Life lnsura,icc Company Limited 

Edel Finance Company Limi1ed 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nido Home Finance Lm1ited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Hon.sing Finance Limited) 

Edel Finance Company Limited 

Interest accrue<! on Perpetual dchcnturcs held by Edel Fmancc Comp,my Limited 

!merest accrue<! (Jn Subordinated debentures held by Edelweiss Tokio Lifo Insurance Company Linutcd 

Interest accrued on Non convertible debentures held by Edelweiss Rum I & Corporate Services Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nuvama Wealth FinaPcc L11ni:cd{Forn1crly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investment'> 
Limited) (Associate till 29th Marci., 2023) 
Edel Finance Company Lirr,ited 

Ecap Equities Limited{Form~r!y kuow,1 as Edel Land limited\ 

Jmcrest accrued on Non convcniblc debenture:, held in ECL Fmanee Limited 

Trade Payables 

ESOP cost payable to 

Other Receivable 

Other Payable 

Nido H"mc Fmancc L11n,1cd (Fo11!1crly J:m,wn us Eddw~a;,; Hnusiu~: Fm~ncc Limil.:d) 

Edel Finance Compan} Limited 

:-lido Home Finance Lmutcd (Formcrl) kno\\n a, Edd\\CISS Housing fmance LnnitcdJ 
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Edelweiss Rum! & Corpomle Sen;c<-S Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Nuvama Car,ital Sm ices (IFSC) Limited (fomicrly Edclwe1$S Securities (JFSC) Limited) 
{Associa1e till 291h March, 2023) 
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (fonneily known •J> £Jelwcis; Brokins Limi!cd) 
(A5;ocintc till 291h March. 2023) 

Eeap Equities Limi1cd(Furmcrlyknuwn as Edel Lan<l Limited) 

Nuvama Clearing Sen ices Limited (forn1crly kmllln as Edelweiss Custodial Sen ices 
Limited) (Associate till 29th March, 2023} 

Edelweiss Asset Rcconstru~-iion Company Limitc,l 

Edelweiss Financial Scl\iccs Limited 

ECL Finance Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Cu11Jor~1e Sm-ices Lm1itcd 

Nido !Jome Finance Limi1cd [Formerly k11own a.s Edeh,eiss J!ou.smg Finance L1m1ted) 

Edelweiss Fmancm! Scn·iccs Limited 
Edeh,·ei,.s As5et Management Limited 

Edelweiss Rural & Corpol'ltC Scn·iccs Limited 

Nido Borne Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss !lousing Finance Linmc<l) 

ECL Fmance Limited 

For the year ended For the ycarcnd~d 
March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 

1.87 
0.00 32.69 

0.00 20.SS 

0.33 

2.37 

10.3J !7.92 

0.13 

4.93 17.44 

17.73 

t,1(!.00 140.00 

71.00 71.00 

21.62 36.37 
1.80 7.47 

H0.00 

l.84 

189.10 155.34 

O.OJ O.D4 

"34 O.D7 

0,00 

1.86 

o.ns 

0.97 1.24 

U.13 0 52 

10.85 

0.99 3,70 

0.11 0.90 

0.53 

2.40 5.50 

om. 

0.!3 

0.01 

0.73 

0.08 

0.33 0.66 

o . .u 6.34 
O.o9 
0.15 6.11 

23.14 7.19 

0.01 

0.19 

0.08 

0.31 



46. Related Party Disclosures 

Nature of Transaction 

Margin receivable 

lnvcstmcm in Security Rcccipls issued by 

lnvesunmt in Securities 

Corporate Guarantee taken from 

Risk & Rewards sharing arrangement 

Notes: 

Rcl:!kd Pnrty Name 

Nuvama Clearing Services L1mi1ed {fom1crly known as Edelweiss Custodial Scn:iccs 

Limiled) (As>m:inl" till 29th Man:h, 2023) 

Nuv:una Capital Scn·iccs (IFSC) Limited (fonncr!y Edclwci.ss Securities (IFSC) Limited) 
(Associate 1ill 29th March, 2023) 

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 

EARC Trust SC 373 

EARC Trust SC 385 

EARCTrustSC416 

EARC Trust SC 374 

EARC Trust SC 378 

EARC Trust SC 417 

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund 

Edelweiss Value & Grov,1h Fund 

Ecap Equities Limitcd(Formc1ly known as Edel Land Umi1cd) 

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scn·iccs Limited 

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 

Asat Asal 

Murch 31, 2023 March3J.2022 

0.47 

20.50 

42.05 97.34 

114.45 180.88 

97.79 150.44 

30.47 

10.74 

206.99 

277.36 

357.60 

31.57 

32.49 

702.32 1,102.83 

A5 pan of fund based activities, imergroup company Jo.1115 and advances arc voluminous in namre and carried on at aim's length and in the ordinary course of business. Pur.mant lo Ind AS 24-
Rcla!cd Party Dioclosurcs, maximum amount of Joans given and repaid alongwith the transaction volume arc disc!osed above. Interest income and cxpenseo 011 such loans and advances arc 

disclosed on the ba.sis of full amount~ of sueh Joans and advances given and repaid. 

Information relating to remuneration paid to key numagerial person mcnlioned above c.~cludcs provision made for gratuity, !cave cncashment, bonus and deferred bonus which are provided for 

group of crnploy1.--cs on an overall basis. T11esc arc included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis. 

The above list contain name ofonlydmsc related parties wi1h whom the Company has undertaken transactions for the year ended Man:h 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limiled 
Notes to lhe financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti1111ed) 
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

47. Leases 

47.1. Sci out bdow arc the carrying :unounts or right-of-use assets recognised and the 
movements 

Balance ns m April J 

Addition 
Lease pre.closure 
Amortisation for 1hc year 
Balance as at l\farch 31 

47.2. Set out below arc the carrying amounts ofkasc llabilitics and the movements 
Balance as at April I 
Atlditions/ n,wrsal (net) 
Interest on lease liabilities 
Lease pre-e!osure 
Repayment of!casc obligation 
Balance as at l\farch 31 

47.3. Amounts recognised in profit or lo~s: 
Depreciation expense ofright..of.u.,c asscLs 
Interest cxpcn,e on lease liabilities 
Reversal oflcasc prc-<;!osure 

Total 

47.4, Total cash outflow for leases: 
Cash outflow of long term leases 

Cash outflow of short term !cases 
Total 

47.5. Details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities, on an undiscountcd basis 

Less than I year 

1-3 years 

3-5 years 
Total 

48. Cost sharing 

For the ~·car ended for the year ended 
:\larch 31, 2023 March 31.1022 

13.05 102.15 
19.53 37.34 
(0.46) (98.42) 
{8.20} (28.02) 
23.92 13,05 

16.12 l 10.88 
18.69 26.J I 

1.93 11.34 
(1.50) (105.64) 
(9.62} (26.58) 

25.62 16.12 

8.20 28.02 
1.93 11.34 

p.04) {7.22) 

9.09 32.14 

9.62 27.61 
0.23 O.Q7 

9.85 27.67 

As at March 31, 2023 A.s al March 31. 2022 

7,31 7.21 
14.61 6.42 
3.70 2.49 

25.62 16.12 

Edelweiss Financi(II Scr,..iccs Limned. being the ultimate holding Company ,llong with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like 
common senior mmmg<.'nMlt compensation cost, Group mcdiclaim. insurnnce, rent. electricity charg<.'s etc. which is for th.,. common 
bcndit of itsdf ;md 11s c<.'rtain subsidian.,.s, follow subsidiaries including the Company. This co~t so expended is reimbursed by the 
Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other Companies, actual identifications etc. On the same 
lines, employees' costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. 
Accordingly. and as identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 37 and 38 include reimbursements (received)/ paid 
and arc net of reimbursements paid/(rceeived). Based on the management's best estimate Rs. 19.67 million is received during the 
year (Prcvioa, year Rs. {8.02) million}. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11tin11ed) 

(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

49. Risk ;\fanagement 

(a) Introduction and risk profile 

The Company's ovcral! objcctfrc is lo managc its busincss, and the associatcd risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its 
customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company. 

The Company follows following for effective risk management: 

I) Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Company; 

2) Ownership ofrisk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines ofbusiness and Corporate; and 

3) Finn wide structures for risk governance 

The Company ensure improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and development and other measures. 

(b) Risk l\13nagement Structure 

The Company has a risk management policy framework for risk idcmification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated 

with the various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Company has also established a 
Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities. 

Company's risk management policy ensures that the margin requirement~ arc able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply 

declining prices. The Company centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor it's client's credit cxposure which is in addition to the 
monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses. 

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for 1he establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 
framework. The board has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's 
risk management policies. The Committee holds regular meetings and report to board on its activities. 

TI1e audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and 
reviews the adequacy of the risk m:magcment framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its 
oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the 
results of which arc reported to the audit committee. 

(c) Risk mitigation and risk colturc 

The Compan)ls business processes ensure complete independence offunctions and a segregation ofresponsibiHtics. Credit appraisal & credit 
comrol processes, centralised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and appro\·ing Joans 
at transaction level as well as our risk management processes and policies allow layers of mu!!ip!e checks and verifications. Company's key 

business processes are regularly monitored by !he business and-'or operation heads. Company's loan appro\'al and administration procedures. 
collection and enforcement procedures arc designed to minimise dclmqucncics and maximise rcco\·eries. 

At all le\·els of operations, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order 10 ensure that all business di\isions have 
access to extensive, necessary and upto date infonnation. 

It is the Company's policy that a regular briefing is given to the Board of Directors and all other relevant stakeholder on the otilisation of 
market limits, proprietary investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments. 

It is the Company's policy to ensure thal risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees arc expected to take 

011·m:rship and be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to, that lhcy decide to take on. l11e Company's continuous training and 
dc\'clopment emphasises that cmploy.:es are made aware of the Company's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and 

responsibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within it's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are 
important elements of employees' annual ratings and remuneration reviews 

(d) Types of Risks 

The Company's risks arc generally categorized in the following risk types: 

Risk Exposure Arising from Measurement Management of risk 

Cash equivalents, trade r~ceivab!cs, 
Credit limits am.I rc!:,'l!lar 

Credit Risk financial assets measured at amortised Aging Analysis, Credit Ratings 
monitoring. 

cost. 

Liquidity Risk Borrowings and other liabilities 
Rolling cash flow Arnilability of surplus cash, committed 

forecasts credit lines and borrowing fuci!itics 

Investments in Govcrnent Sccuritcis, 
Rc!:,til!ar monitoring to keep the exposure at 

Market Risk Treasury Bills. Equity Shares. Futures 
Cash flow forecasting an acceptable level, with option oftaking 

&Options 
Scnsithity analysis Interest Rate Swaps/Futures if deemed 

necessary. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year c111Jctl March 31, 2023 (Cm1tir111ed) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

49.I. Credit Risk 

Credi! risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or countcrparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its 
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company's loans and trndc receivables.The Company has a policy of dealing 
with creditworthy eountcrparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where approprit1tc, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss 
from defaults. In case the loans arc to be restructured, similar credit assessment process is followed by the Company. 

The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk of the industry and country in 
which customers operate. 

The Company manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it is willing to accept for individual 
counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and by monitoring exposures in relation to such limits. 

Credit quality of a cuslomer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market 
intelligence. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored.The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to 
assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions. 

(a) Impairment Asscsment: 

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for rcco1a,'Ilising impairment loss. The expected credit loss allowance is computed 
based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information. 

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default, probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an 
internal model to evaluate the probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the 
loans are classified into various stages as follows: 

Internal rating grade 

Performing 
High grade 
Standard grade 

Credit Impaired 
Individually impaired 

*Excluding non pcrfonning asset (NPA) 

Internal grading description 

0 dpd and I to 30 dpd"' 
31 to90dpd• 

NPA• 

*"'Represent loan assets classified as NP.-\ as per the extant RBI guidelines 

(b) Expected Credit Loss 

Stages 

Stage I 
Stage JI 

Stage 111 

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract am! all the cash 
flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., al\ ca~h shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
computation is not driven by any single methodology, however methodology and approach used must reflect the following: 

-An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes 

- Reasonable and supportable infonnation that is available without undue cost and cllbn a! the reporting da!c about past events, current 
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions; 

- Time value of money 

While the time value of money clement is currently being foctorcd into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR), the objective of developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEVs) is to 
ad<lrcss the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make 
it forward looking and probability-weighted. 

(c) Significant increase in credit risk (SICR) 

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 (crcdit-impaircdJ for ECL calculations, in all cases when the 
borrower becomes 90 days past due or classified as non pcrforn1ing asset (NPA) as per RBI 1','lli<lelincs. Classification of assets fonn 
stage I to stage 2 has been canied out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which arc more than 30 days pas! due ha\·e been idcntified as 
accounts where significant increase in credit risk h(ls been obserYcd. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets. When such 
events occur, the Company carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore 
assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate. 



(ll) Prnbabilitv nf Default 

Probability of default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a gh·cn time horizon. PD cstim:ition process is done based on 

historical internal data available with the Company. While arriving al the PD, the Company abo ensures thal the factors that affects the 
macro economic trends arc considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary. Company calculates the 12 month PD by taking into 

account 1hc past historical trends of !he Loans/ponfolio and its credit perfonnancc. In case of assets where there is a si1:,'llifican1 
increase in credit risk/ credit impaired assets. lifetime PD has been applied. 

(c) Loss Giwn Default (LGD) 

The LGD represents ex peeled losses on the EAD given the evenl of default, taking into account, among other al!ributes, the mitigating 
effect ofcollatcra! value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value of money. The Loss Given Default (LGD) has been 

computed with workout methodolo1:,'}'. Along with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate 
future n:covcrics in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual rccowries as well as future recoveries (as a pan 
of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Default/Restructuring. The 

assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding each loan was assessed, which went into the denominator of 
the LGD calculation. LGD computation has heen done for each segment and sub-segment separately. 

(f) Exposure at Default (EAD) 

The amount which the borrower will owe to the ponfo!io at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default (EAD). While the 

drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD. These 
exposures arc of the nature where the Company provides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore. the exposure 
will contain both on and offba!ancc sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula: 

EAD = Drawn Credit Linc+ Credit Conversion Factor* Undmwn Credit Linc 

Where, 

Drawn Credit Linc= Current outstanding amount 

Credit Com·cn;ion Factor (CCF) = Expected future dmwdown as a proportion ofundrawn amount 

Undrawn Credit Linc = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the dnm11 credit line While the 
drawn exposure and limits for the customer arc available, the modelling ofCCF is required for computing the EAD 

(g) Forward looking adjustments 

"A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is detennincd by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and 

using reasonable and supportable inform~tion that is available without undue cost or cffon at the reporting date about past events, 
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions." 

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking information into its measurement ofECL. The objective of 
de\'cloping a macroeconomic moJcl using exogenous macroeconomic \"ltriablcs (MEVs) is 10 adJrcss 1hc requirements of unbim;ed, 

probability \\ cightcd outcom~s while ta.king into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This wil! be 

achieved by using the model output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted. 

Exogenous macroeconomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable. The Company 

formulates base case view of the foture direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other possible 
forecast scenario. This involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and COIL'\idering the relati\'e probabilities of 
each outcome. 

(h) Data sourcing 

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Keeping in 

mind the above requirement macroeconomic information was aggregated from various research database like RBI database, Economic 
lnte\ligencc Unit (EIU), Bloomberg, World Bank, Citi research etc. Beyond 2022 m;icro-cconomic variables arc forccasted by mean 
reverting the values to their long term average. External inform;ition includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental 

bodies and monetary authorities in the country, supranational organisations such as the OECD and the JMF. and selected private sector 

and academic forecasters. 

(i) Probabilit\· weighted scenario creations: 

To incOIJlOmlc macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability. In order to ensure 
consistency across macroeconomic models, these probabilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail 

portfolios, considering the impact of a scenario across different ponfolios may differ based on endogenous factors, the probability of a 
scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary. 

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instroments and 

using an analysis of historical data, has cstirmted relationship between marco-economic variables and credit risk and credit losses. 

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on v;irious ponfo!ios of financial assess have been 
developed based on analysing historical data over the past years. 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
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49.t. Credit Risk 

49.1.1. Analysis of risk conccntrntion 

The following table shows the risk concentr-.i.tion by industry for the components of the balance sheet. 
Additional disclosures for credit quality and the maximum exposure for credit risk per categories based 
on the Company's internal credit assessment system and year-end srnge classification are further 
disclosed in Note 12. 

Industry analysis 

As at Murch 31, 2023 Financial 
Retail 

scn·ices Construction \Vholesa]e Total 

Financial assets 

Cash and cash equivalent 386.50 386.50 
and other bank balances 
Securities held for trading 17fl.13 178.13 
Trade receivables 35.21 35.21 
Loans 3,647.33 1,796.34 5,443.67 
Investments 2,331.79 783.61 3,115.40 
Other financial assets 576.08 250.11 826.19 

3,507.70 4,681.05 1,796.34 9,985.10 
Loan Commitments 116.04 116.04 
Total 3.507.70 4.797.10 1.796.34 10 101.14 

As at March 31, 2022 
Financial 

Retail Construction Wholesale Total services 
Financial nsscts 

Cash and cash equivalent 305.87 305.87 
and other bank balances 
Securities held for trading 50.29 50.29 
Trade receivables 19.64 19.64 
Loans -t,078.68 4,781.22 244.14 1,132.38 10.236.43 
Jm·eslmcnls 300.76 l.!40.77 99.45 1,540.98 
Other non financial assds 38.96 38.96 

-t794 .. '.!0 5.92!.99 244.!4 1.231.83 12,192.17 
Loan Commillll~nts 55,59 55.59 
Tota! 4.794.20 5.977.58 244.14 l.231.83 12247.76 
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49.1. Credit Risk 

49.1.2. Collateral held and other credit enhancements 

(n) The tables on the fo!lowing pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with 
details of principal type of collateral: 

{bl 

Financial assets 
Loans (at amortised cost) 
(i) Retail loans 
(ii) Wholesale loans 

Total(A) 

Loan commitments 
Total (B) 

Totnl (A+ B) 

Madmum exposure to credit risk (carrying 
amount before ECL) 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

3,160.88 

3,160.88 

110.78 
110.78 

3,271.66 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

4,305.45 
1,722.59 

6,028.04 

53.52 
53.52 

6,081.56 

Principal type of collateral 

Propeny 
Propeny 

Property 

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are gi\'en below: 

As at March 31, 2023 
Maximum exposure to Associated ECL Carrying amount Fair ,·alue of 
credit risk (carrying collateral 
amount before ECL) 

Financial assets 

Loans (at amortised cost) 
(i) Retail loans 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36 
(ii) Wholesale loans 

Total (A) 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36 

Loan commitments 

Total(B) 

Total (A+ B) 146.23 27.02 119.21 180.36 

As at March 31 2022 

Financial asset, 

Loans (at amnnised cost) 
(i) Retail loans 225.20 37.56 187.64 415,57 

(ii) Wholesale loans 

Total (A) 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57 

Loan commitments 

Tntal(B) 

Total (A ~ BJ 225.20 37.56 187.64 415.57 



Elfolweiss Relllil Finance Limited 
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49.l. Credit rusk 

49.I.3. Onnicw ofmodincd and forborne Joans 

The table below includes assets that were modified and, therefore, treated as forborne during the year, with 
the related modification gain/ (loss) suffered by the Company. 

Particulars 

Amortised costs offinancial assets modified during the year 
Net modification gain/ (loss) 

49.1.4, Transfer of financial assets 

For tl1c year ended 
March 31, 2023 

Transferred financial assets that are not derccob'lliscd in their entirety 

For the year ended 
March 31, 2022 

561.23 

23.49 

111c following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been tnmsforrcd in such a way that part 
or all oft he transferred financial assets do not qualify for dcrccognition, together with the associated 

Sccuritisations 

Carrying amount oftr.insfcrrcd assets 
(Tidd as Collateral) 

Carrying amount of associated liabilities 

Fair value of11sscts 

Fair \'a\ue of associated liabilities 

Net position al FV 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

1,132.73 

813.50 

1,232,64 

813.50 

419.14 

Asat 
March 31, 2022 

297.37 

315.55 

277.89 

315.55 

(37.66) 
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49.2. Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting ob!ib'lltions associated with financial liabilities that are se11led by delivering cash or 
another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because ofthc possibility 1!1at the Company might be unable to meet it.~ payment obligations when they fall due as a result of 
mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both nonnal :rnd stress circumstances. 

The company has financing arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credit lines. 

49.2.1. Analysis of non-derh'ative financial assets and liabilities by remaining eontraclual maturities 

As at March 31, 2023 Oo I to 14 15 da,·s to l month to2 2 months to3 3 months to 6 months lo lyearto3 3 years lo 5 OIer5 
Total 

demand days 1 mon!h months months 6 months l }'ear years years years 
A. Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalent and 
other bank balances 267.13 95.28 2.00 22.09 386.50 
Sccmities held for trading 24.06 154.07 178.13 
Trade receivables 35.21 35.21 
Loans 49.32 83.77 157.95 1,515.60 684.18 641.46 1,363.54 856.97 2,718.40 8,071.:W 
Investment,, 783,61 2,331.79 3,115.39 
O1hcr financial assets 811 75 0.09 14.35 826.19 

Total undiscounted financial 
assets 267.13 49.32 895.52 288.44 1,515.60 7I0.33 817.61 1,377.89 1,640.58 5,050.19 12,612.62 

B. Financial Liabilities 
Tmdc payables 57.27 57.27 

Debt securities 3.09 2.99 3.09 9.10 56.96 410.63 !,032.83 1,518.68 

Borrowings (other than debt 
securities) 14.87 14.84 14.66 43.46 83,89 435.93 131.04 738.69 

Subonlinatcd financial 
liabilities 22.20 154.95 510.40 2,164.30 2,851.84 

Other financial liabilities 476.25 13.78 11.45 30.68 46.26 140.68 79.46 223.36 l,0ZJ.92 

Total undiscountcd financial 
liabilities 17.96 491.09 88.70 58.00 145.87 694.09 1,192.75 3,276.59 223.36 6,188.41 

]'I.ct fin:md:1! :1ssets / 
(liabilities) 267.13 31.37 404.43 199.74 1,457.61 564.46 123.52 185.14 (1,636.01) 4,826.83 6,424.21 

Note - The company has financ1ng arrangement from banks/ financial institutions in form of committed credi1 lines. Undrawn conm1itted credit lines as at March 31, 2023 is Nill. 

49.2.2. The table below shows the expected maturity of the Company's loan commitments 

Undrawn loan commitment,, 116.04 116.04 

Total 116.04 ll6.04 



As at March 3!,2022 
o .. I 10 14 IStlaystol I month to 2 2 months to) 3 months to 6 6 months to ! year lo 3 J years 10 S Over 5 years Total dcm'.lnd days month months momhs months I year years years 

A. Financial A,;scts 

Cash and cash equivalent and 
other bank balances 166.41 112.36 5.15 22.06 305.98 
Securities hdd for tr,iding 13.77 4.56 31.96 50.29 
Trade r<:ccivables 19.64 19.64 
Loans 997.59 128.20 670.55 358.95 427.87 4,933.33 2,262.87 699.94 3,306.11 13,785.41 
Investments 1,240.22 300.76 1,540.98 
Other financial assets 24.05 0.86 0.()9 13.96 38.96 

Total u11d1sco11nted !inancial 
asset~ !66.41 997.59 152.25 816.32 359.81 437.67 4,987.35 2,276.83 1,940.16 3,606.87 15,741.25 

B. Financial Liabilities 

Trade payables 54.06 54.()6 
Other payables 

Debt securities 4.81 4.65 4.8! 14.33 2.097.76 163.01 162.37 1,049.26 3,501.00 
Borrowings (other than debt 
~ccurities) 149.79 29.60 412.82 454.77 805.45 1,852.43 
Deposits 

Subordinated financial liabilities 22.20 148.94 342.28 878.07 1,775.52 3,167.01 
Other financial liabilities 21.06 366.70 43.63 28.81 66.93 110.24 34.11 2.49 673.97 

Total undiscoumcd financial 
liabilities 25.87 516.49 131.95 446.44 558.23 3,162.38 539.40 1,042.94 2,824.78 9,248.47 

Net financial a~set:; / (lfobilitics) 166.41 971.72 (364.24) 684.37 (S6.63) {120.56) l,824.97 1,737.43 897.22 782.09 6,492.78 

No1c - The company has financing arraugemcnt from banks/ financial institutions iu fonn of committed credit !inlls. Undrawn commilled credit !ines as at March 3 ! , 2022 is Nil. 

The table below shows the cxpcxtcd maturity of the Company's loan commitments 

Undrnwn loan commitments 55.59 55.59 

Total 55.59 55.59 
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49.2. Liquidity Risk 

49.2.3. Financial assets available to support future funding 

Following table sets out availability of company's linancial assets to support funding 

Encumbered Unencumbered 
As at March 31, 2023 Pledge ns Contractually/ legally Available as Others 

collateral restricted assets collateral 

Cash and cash equivalent 37.01 349.49 
including bank balance 
Securities he!d for trading 178.13 
Trade receivables 35.21 
Loans 1,775.26 917.12 2,751.29 
Investments 783.61 2,331.79 
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.37 
Other financial assets o.oo 826.19 
Total assets 1,812.64 1,700.73 6,472.10 

Encumbered Unencumbered 
As at March 31, 2022 Pledge as Contractually/ legally Available as Others 

collateral restricted assets col\atcrnl 

Cash and cash equivalent 
including bank balance 37.01 268.97 
Securities held for tmding 50.29 
Trade receivables 19.64 
Loans 4,783.51 149.84 5,303.08 
hwesLmcnts 1.240.22 300.76 

-=--Property, Plaut and Equipment 0.37 
Other financial assets 38.96 
Total assets 4,820.89 1,390.06 5,981.70 

Notes:-

Total carrying 
nmount 

386.50 

178.13 
35.21 

5,443.67 
3,115.40 

0,37 
826.19 

9,985.47 

Tota! carrying 
amount 

305.98 
50,29 
!9.64 

10,236.43 
1,540.98 

0.37 
38.96 

!2,192.65 

Represents assets which arc not pledged and Group bclicYcS 11 is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other reason 

2 Represents assets which arc not restricted for usc as collateral, but that the group would not consider readily available to secure 
funding in the normal coursi: ofbusint:ss 
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49.3. Market Risk 

l\.farket risk is the risk assocmted wi1h the efli:cl of changes in market factors such as interest rntes, equity pnces, credit spreads or 
implied volatilities, on the value of assets and liabilities held rcsuhing in loss of future earnings. TI1c objective of the Company's market 
risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parnmctcrs. The Company separntcs its exposure to 
market risks between trading and non-trading portfolios. 

Exposure to market risk- Non trading portfolios 

Interest mte risk - The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash 
flows or fair values of financial instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through 
monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-approved limits for repricing bands. 

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits, ALCO reviews the inten:st rate gap statement and the mix. of floating and 
fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk. 

49.3.l Total market risk exposure 

The fair value or future cash flows of financial irntrumcnts will fluctuate due to changes in ffilfkct variables such as interest rates. The 
Company classifies its exposures to market risk into non-trading portfolios. 

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 
Primary rbk Particulars Carrying Traded risk Non-traded Currying Traded tisk Non-traded scnsith-ity 

amount risk amount ri~k 
Financial Assets 
Cash and cash equivalent and other 386.50 386.50 305.87 305.87 Interest rate 
bank balances 
Securities held for trading 178.13 178.13 50.29 50.29 Interest rate 
Loans 5,443.67 5,443.67 10,236.43 10,236.43 illtcrcst rntc 
lnveslmcnts 3,ll5.40 3,115.40 1,540.96 l.540.98 lntcn::sl r.J.IC 

Trade rccei\·ables 35.21 35,21 19.64 19.6-1 
Other financial assets 826.19 826.19 38.96 38.96 

Total 9,985.10 178.IJ 9,806.97 12.192.17 50.29 12.141.8S 

Fin:md:11 Ua~ilit} 
D~bt ~ccunties 889.88 889.88 2,804.43 2.804.43 Interest rate 
Bonowings {other than Debt '/05.60 705.60 1,774.29 1,774.29 Interest rate 
Securities) 
Subordinated Liabilities 2,190.60 2,190.60 2,153.18 2,153.18 Intcr~st mtc 
Trndc payables 57.27 57.27 54.37 54.37 
Other !iahi!itics 1,021.92 1,021.92 673.75 673.75 

Total 4,865.27 4.865.27 7.460.02 7.460.02 
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49.3. Market Risk 

49.3.2 Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in intcl\!sl rates will affect future cash flows of 
financial instruments. The sensitivity of the statcmen! of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed 
changes in interest rates on the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial 
assets and financial liabilities held a.~ at year end. 

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (a!J 
other variables being constant) of the Company's statement of profit and loss and equity. 

Increase/ Increase in Decrease in Increase in (Decrease) in 

For the year ended (Decrease) in profit after profit after Equlty Equity 
basis points tax tax 

INR Loans 

l\Iarch 31, 2023 25/(25) 5.33 (5.33) 5.33 (5.33) 
March 31, 2022 25/(25) 6.72 (6.72) 6.72 (6.72) 

INR Borrowin~s 

1\Iarch 31, 2023 25/(25) (1.18) 1.18 (1.18) J.18 
March 31, 2022 25/(25) (3.34) 3.34 (3.34) 3.34 
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50.1. Fair Value measurement: 

A. Valuation principles 

Fair value is the price that would be rccciv~d to sell an asset or paid to tr.msfor a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most 
ad~·antagcous) m:irket at the m~asurcmem date under current market conditions (i.e., :m exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly 
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In orifor to show how fair values h:ivc been derived, financial instruments arc classified based on 
a hierarchy ofvahmtion techniques: 

Leve] I - rn!uation tcchmque using quoted market price; financial imtruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that 
company can access at the measurement dale, 

Level 2- valuation !cchniquc using observable inputs:Those whm: the inputs that arc used for valuation and arc siguifieant, arc derived from directly 
or indirectly obserYablc market data arni!able over the entire period of the instrument's life. 

Level 3 - valuation technique with significant unobsernblc inputs: Those that include one or more unobscr,.•ab!c input that is significant to !11e 
measurement as whole. 

Re for nute 3.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy 

B. Valuation go>'ernance frameworl, 

The Company's fair value methodology and the go\·crnance over its models includes n number of controls am.I other procedures to ensure appropriate 
safeguards are in pince to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodologies) arc subject to 
approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions. 

Where fair values arc dctcnnincd by ,cfcrcncc to externally quoted prices or obscr,.·ablc pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or 
validation is used. Far inactive market~, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is considered 
ta be more .cle,•ant and reliable. 

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However finance department is :i!so responsible for 
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values arc in compliance with accounting standards. 

C. The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair ,·alue by level of Che fair value hierarchy 

As at 1\1:trch 31, 2023 

Assets measured at fair ,·aluc on a recurring basis 

Financial Asset, held fur trading 
Other debt sccuritic> 

Total financial instruments measured a! fair, u!uc -A 

Other financial assets 

Security Receipts (SR) 

Total financial instruments measured al fair value - B 

Other financial assets 

Units ofAIF 

Total fin:inclal in,trumenb measured at fair value. C 

Total (A+B+-C) 

As at March 31, 2022 

Assets measured at fair \'a!ue on a recurring has is 

Finaocial Assets held for trading 

Other debt securities 

Total financial imlrumcnls mcasur~d at fair ,aluc -A 

Other financial assets 
Security r~ccip1S 

Total financial instrummts m~asurcd at fair value - B 

Other financial assets 
Units of AIF 

Tomi financial instruments measured at fair ,-alue - C 

Total (A+B+C) 

Lc\'cl 2 Level 3 

178.13 

178 . .13 

783,61 

783,61 

2,331.80 

2,331.110 

178,13 3,JIS.40 

Level I Level 2 Level 3 

50.29 

50.29 

!,240.22 

1,240.22 

300.76 

300,76 

50,29 1,540.98 

Total 

178,!3 

178,13 

783,61 

7flJ,6.I 

2,331.80 

2,331.110 

3,293.53 

Total 

50.29 

50.29 

1,240.22 

1.240.22 

300.76 

300.76 

1,591.27 



D. Valuation Tcdmiqucs: 

Dc\Jt Securities 

Whilst most of these instruments are standard llxe<l mte securities, however nifty linked dcbcnrures have embedded derivative chan1ctcristics. Fair 
value of these mstruments is derived based on !he indicative quoles of price and yields prevailing in the markc1 as at the reporting date. Company has 
used quoted price of national stock ex<:hangc wherever bonds are tm<.led actively In cases where dcb1 securities arc not activity trade<.! Company has 
u.,cd CRIS!L Corporntc Bond Valuer model for measuring fair vnluc. 

Security Receipts 

The market for these security receipts is not aeth-c. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their fair values. Since the security 
receipts are less liquid instroments therdon: they are ,·alucd by discounte<.I cash flow modds. Expected cash flow levels are estimate.I by using 
quantit.1ti\·c and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying as.sets including prcpa}mcnt rates, default rates and other 
economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant unobservable \"aluation inputs arc classific<l as Level 3 

E. There ha,·e been no tr:msfers between fovels during the yeH euded March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022. 

F. The following table ~hows a reconciliation of lhe opening balances and the closing balances for fair ,·aluc measurements in 

Lc.-cl 3 of the fair rnluc hierarchy. 

Financial year ended :\forch 2023 

Investments - at April I, 2022 

Purchase 
Sale/Redemption proceeds 
Profit for the year recognised in profit or los~ 

Investments - at March 31, 2023 

Unrealised gain/(Loss) related to halnnces held at the end of the year 

Financial year ended ;-.forch 2022 

Investments - at April I, 2021 

Purcha,e 
Sale/Redemption proceeds 
Profit for the y(ar rccoi,'llisc<l in profit or loss 

ln,·eslmcnts - at March 31, 2022 

Unrcah~cd gau,.(Los.s) rdatcd lo balances bcld al th~ end oilhc )~ar 

Security Receipts 

1,240.22 

622.17 
(1,074.73) 

(4.05) 

783.61 

(4.05) 

Securitr rccciets 

708.11 

694.08 
(161.97) 

1,240.22 

Uuit~ of AIF Total 

300.76 1,540.98 

2,367.58 2,989.75 
(2S8.24) (1,362.97) 

(48.30) (52.35) 

2.331.80 3,115.40 

(48.30) (52.35) 

Units of Alf Total 

249.80 957.91 

52.82 746.90 
(1.36) {163.83) 

300.76 1.540.98 



£dch,ci>< R<tail Fh1•ncc Undtcd 
NoteI lo the financinl s!alements for ye:1r ended Ma.-ch 31, 2023 (Ca11ti1iued) 

(Currency. Indian rup= in nrillious) 

G. Impact on fair wlue oflcnl 3 C.nondal instrument ofcban~cs toke)' unnb«n·ahk input, 

The bdow table summ:mso the ,.,luat,u11 tcchmquc-s togethc1" with thesit:mfican1 unob,er,.,b]e mpuls mcd to c-akub!e 11,e fa,r ,-;itue of the CompOll)'' Le,·d 3 !nsmnn<:llls u,. Si,,;:umb rt:ccipts. The range of,-,Iuos m,!icates 

!ho highc-s! and !uwe<1 le,•d input 111<:d m !he 1-,)uatmn ti,,;:hmque am!, as sud1, <mly 1dkct, lh: charactemucs oflh: in.strumcnl< as "PP«<<:d to the level ofuncmamty tu their valuatrnn Relationships betwCl'.ll unohservohl: 
inpnb h,vo not been incorporated in this summ:,ry 

Type ofFlnonebl 
Instrum,nis 

Security Ri,,;:cipts (SR) 

UnitsnfAlF 

Type ofFinandol 
Jnstrum.."ll!S 

Scoon1y Rcoelpts 

Uni1sof,\1F 

Fnlr value of 
a,,ct as on31 
:\lat<:h 2023 

7S3 61 

2,331.S0 

fair ,-,Jue of 
a<Sc( OS Oil 3] 

Mareh2022 

1,240.22 

300,7(, 

Valuation hochnlqucr 

Di.1,oun!cd Cash fiow The present \'a]ue 

orc.~pecled fulureo::onomic hcndits I<> he 
deril·od from !he own .. "'fship of 1ho 

undorlying in\'esltnenlS of the Trust. 

Valua1ion technique,; 

Discoun1c-d Cash flow The present ,-alue 
of c:x~;:tcd future ,:c()llotnic h:nelits to be 

deri1·<:d from ti"' ownership oftl,e 
undcrlyins invc;tmenLS of 1he Trust 

Slgnlncant unob«n•:thle 
lnpnt 

Expected fururc cash flows 

R,sk-adjw;ted discount rate 

Fain.,luc ofund::r!ying 
im'e>tmcnts 

Sii;nificont unobsm:ahle 
input 

Espoe1od fim,rcca,h flows 

Risk-adjw;!ed discount rate 

F•ir ,-,luc of undcrlymg 
lnvest=ts 

R:mgcofc,t!mo11,, 

for unob••n·ab!e 
lnpu! 

786.09 

!2..00% 

lncreo,c ln the 
unob,en·oh!e Input 

5%incre>sc in 
Exp::ctcd future c~,h 

flow 

O.s•;, increase in Risk­
adjw;1ed &,count rate 

5~; !ncrc:i_se in Fair 
2,331.80 ,ulucofUnderlying 

Range uf estim.m:s 
forunohscr,uhlc 

in Ul 

7,353.23 

12.00% 

300.76 

Jm·cstmcm 

Increase in th: 
unohson-:,blc input 

5%inm:as:in 
E~pected fumre Cash 

flow 

0.5'0 increase in Risk­
adju.stcd dlmmm ralc 

5% Increase in Fair 
valueon!nd::rl)~ng 

ln,·e;;tmc,u 

Chon~• rn folr Occrca,c In the 
.-"1ue unobm·,·ablc Input 

5\;, Decrease In 
33.69 Espcclci.l foture 

Cash flow 
0.5% Decrease in 

(3.48) Risk~1dju.s1ed 
discount ra1c 

S~• !noreo.5c in Fair 
l 1659 ""Jue c,fUndcrlying 

Investment 

Chlngc in fair Dcorcosc in !he 
.-alu~ unobsor,ahlc input 

5% Decrc«-'c in 
31.5 I Expected future 

Cash/low 

o.s~, D=sein 
(0.55) Risk-adjusted 

discoum rote 

5~< Increase in Fair 
15.04 ,·alucnfUnderlying 

lm·estmen1 

Cl,~ngc in £air 
,·olue 

(33.69) 

351 

(116.59) 

Chan£o in fair 
,-,Jue 

(31.51) 

056 

(150-1) 
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50.2. Financial Instruments not measured at fair ,·nine 

The folkiwing table scL~ nul 1hc fair va]t1es oftioaucial in,1rumen1s not measured at fair value and aM!ysing them by the level in the fair ,·alue hierarchy 
into which each fair value measurement is categorised 

As on :\larch 31, 2023 
Total Carrying 

Amount 
Total fair value Le\'cl l Lc\'el 2 Lenl3 

Financial asseh 
Loans 5,443.67 4,991.20 4,991.20 

Total 5 443.67 4 991.20 4.991.20 

Financial liabilities 
Debt securities 889.88 906.13 906.13 
Subordinated liabili!ies 2,190.60 2,214.! I 2,214.11 

Total 3 080.48 3 120.23 3.120.23 

As on March 31 2022 

Financial assets: 
Loans I0,236.43 9,603.89 9,603.89 

Total J0.236.43 9.603.89 9.603.89 

Financial liabililics 
Debt securities 2,804.43 3,131.63 3,131.63 
Subordinated liabilities 2,153.!8 2,182.55 2,182.55 

Total 4.957.61 5.314.18 5-114.18 

50.J Valuation melhodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value 
Below are the methodolob>ies and assumptions used to detennine fair values for the above financial in.itrumenL~ which are not recorded and 
measured at fair value in 1hc Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below 
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions 
explained in notes . 

.Short term financial assets :ind liabilities 

For financial assets and financial Habililics that ha\·e a short-tem1 maturity {less than twelve months), the carrying amounts arc a reasonable 
approximation of their fair \"alue. Such instruments include: Trade receivables, trade payables and contract liability without a specific maturity. 
Such amounts have been classified as Level 2 on !he basis that no adjustments ha\'c been made to the balances in the balance sheet. Cash and 
cash equivalent ;md Bank balance~ other than cash and cash equivalcnL> have hcen classified as Lc\•c] l. 

Financial assets at amortised cost 

The fair values of financial asseL~ measured at amortised cost arc estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash 
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties' credit risk. In case of floating interest rate 
linked loans, since such loans are subject to reprici11g periodically (less than twelve months), with the interest rate reflecting current market 
price. Hence carrying value of loans is deemed to be cquivalcot of fair value. 

Issued debt 

The fair value ofissucd debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model incorporating the Compnny's own credit risk. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost 

111c fair values of financial liabilities measured at amortised cost arc estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash 
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields. In case of floating interest rate linked borrowings, since such borrowings arc 
subject to repricing periodically (!ess than twelve month.~), with the interest rate reflecting current market price. Hence carrying value of such 
borrowings is deemed to be equi\'alent of fair value. 
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51. Trade rccci\':1blcs 

Prurisinn matrix for Trndc rcccivabfos 

Particulars 
Trade receivables days past 

1-90days 91-180 days 
d.e 

ECLr,1tc 1.39% 14.87% 

Asat Estimated total gross carrying 
March 31, 2023 amount at default 35.69 0.00 

ECL - Simplified approach (0.50) (0.00) 
Net carrying amount 35.19 0.00 

As at Estimated total !,'foss carrying 

March 31, 2022 amount at default 19.91 0.06 
ECL - Simplified approach (0.33) (0.01) 
Net carrying amount 19.58 0.05 

181-365 days 
more than 

Total 
365 days 

67.15% 100.00% 

0.06 0.65 36.41 
(0.04) (0.65) (1.19) 
0.02 0.00 35.21 

0.02 0.14 20.13 
(0.01) (0.14) (0.49) 
0.02 (0.00) 19.64 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the Spcci:il Purpose Financial Statements (Continued) 
(Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

52. Details of the loan taken from Banks and other parties 

Nature of Security and terms of repayment for secured borrowings 
AH Secured long tenn borrowings are secured hy way ofhypotheca(!on ofreceivables i.doans & advances. 

(a) Details of term loan taken from Banks (excluding of Interest accrued on Term loans and EIR impact) 

As at March312023 

(b) 

52.1 

Rate oflncrest 
Month of l\Iamrity/Repaymcnt 

<"'10% >10% Grand Total 

January-25 - 12.50 12.50 
Deccmber-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Nonmbcr-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Octobcr-24 - 12.50 12,50 
Septcmber-24 - 12.50 12.50 
August-24 - 12.50 12.50 
July-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Junc-24 - 12.50 12.50 
May-24 - 12.50 12.50 
April-24 - 12.50 12.50 
March-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Fcbruary-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Jamrncy·-24 - 12.50 12.50 
Dcccmber-23 - 12.50 12.50 
No,·cmbcr-23 - 12.50 12.50 
October-23 - 12.50 12.50 
Scptcmbcr-23 - 12.50 12.50 
Angust-23 - 12.50 12.50 
July-23 - 12.50 12.50 
Jun!!-23 - 12.50 12,50 

May-23 - 12.50 12.50 
April-23 - 12.50 12.50 
Total 275.00 275.00 

As at March 31 7072 - -
Mon1h of Maturity/Repayment 

Raic of lnlcrc~t 
<= 10% >10% Grnnd Total 

;\farcb-2023 14.62 80.69 95.3 l 
Dccember-20.:!2 75.90 !40.61 .:!16.51 
Scptcmhcr-2022 153.13 196.88 350,00 
July-2022 31.25 31.25 
June*22 153.13 196.88 350.00 
May-2022 18.75 18.75 
April-2022 17.86 31.25 49.ll 
Total 4!4.63 696.31 I, !I 0.93 

Details of term Joan taken from SID BI (excluding oflnterest accrued on Term loans and EIR impnct) 

As nt March 31 2023 
Month of J\faturlty/Rcpaymcnt Rate oflnterest 

10.00% to 10.99% Grand Total 
March~24 - -
Dcccmbcr*23 - -
Septcmbcr*23 - -
Jun!!-23 - -
April-23 - -
Total - -
Details oftenn loan taken from SIDBI (excluding oflnterest accrued on Tenn loans and E!R impact) (continued) 
A~ of 31st March-23 ended SIDBI loan repaid since no balances 

As at March 31 7077 - --
Month of Maturity/Repayment 

Rate of Ineres1 
10.00% to 10.99% Grnnd Total 

Mar*20.:!3 52.50 52.50 
Dce-2022 52.50 52.50 
Sep-2022 52.50 52.50 
Jun-2022 52.50 52.50 
Apr*2022 89.00 89.00 
Total 299.00 299.00 
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53 Repayment terffi'i of Secured Non-convertible Debentures ore as follow: 

The debentures arc secured by way ofpari passu charge on an immovable property and standard loan assets to the cxtcnl of 100% of the 
ou1standing amounc of the debentures, unless otherwise stated 

As at March 312023 

Description of Secured Redeemable Non 
R:1tc Issue Date Redemption Date No.ofl\TDs Amount* Con\'crllhlc Debentures (NCD) 

ERFLJPuhlic NCD/Scries VI 9.25% 22-Mar-2018 22-r,far-2028 4,83,173 483.17 
.ERFLJPublic NCO/Series V 8.88% 22-r>lDr-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205 409.21 

892.38 
As at March 31 2022 
Description of Secured Redeemable Non 

Rate Issue Date Redemption Dato No, ofNCDs Amount* 
Convertible Debentures (NCD) 
ERFL1'nhlic NCO/Serie.~ VI 9.25% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,83,173 483.!7 
ERFLPublie NCD!Scrics V 8.88% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2028 4,09,205 409.21 
ERFL/Public NCD/Scrics IV 9,00% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 6,38,802 638.80 
ERFUl'ublic NCO/Series llI 8,65% 22-Mar-2018 22-Mar-2023 2,33,785 233.79 
ERFUNCDI07Nov22 8.50% 07-Nov-2017 07-Nov-2022 1,000 1,000.00 

2,764,97 
*Etcflldi11g af Imere.,1 accrued and £IR impact 

54. Repayment terms of Unsecured non-com·crtib!c rcdccmahlc subordinate debentures arc as follow: 

As at March 31 2023 

ISIN number Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No.orNCDs Amount* 
INE528S08043 9.25% 06-0ct-2017 06-0ct-2027 1,000 1,000.00 
INES28S08035 9.25% 31..Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240 240,00 
INES28S08027 9.95% 10-0ct-2016 09-0ct-2026 120 120.00 
INES28S08019 0,00% 25-May-2015 26-May-2025 140 140.00 

1,500.00 

A~ al Murch 3 ! 2022 

[SIN number Rate lssue Dale Redemption Dale No. ofNCDs Am<1unt* 
rNE52SSOS043 9,25% 06-0ct-2017 06-0cl-2027 1,000 1,000.00 
rNE5:!8S08035 9.25% 31-Jul-2017 31-Jul-2027 240 240.00 
rNE528S08027 9.95% 10-0ct-2016 09-0ct-2026 l:!O 120.00 
INE52RS0801'l 0 OO'i, 25-Ma;-2015 26-May-2025 '" 140_00 

1.500,00 
•£Tdudi11g of Interest acc111ed a11d EIR impact 

55. Repayment terms of Unsecured non-con\'crt!b\c redeemable perpetual dcb~ntures arc as follow. 

As at March 31 2023 

ISIN number Role Issue Dale Redemption Date No. ofNCDs Amount* 
INES28S08050 9.75% 26-Dec-2017 Perpetual 200 200.00 
INES2HSOS06S ID.00% 07-Feb-2018 Perpetual 250 250.00 

450.00 

As al March 31 2022 

ISIN1111mbcr Rate Issue Date Redemption Date No. ofNCDs Amount• 
INE528S08050 9,75% 26-D~c-2017 Perpetual 200 200.00 
INE528S08068 I0,00% 07-Feb-2018 Perpetual 250 250.00 

450,00 
~£tclmling ,,ffmcres/ accrm•d and EIR imp<1c/ 
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56. Capilal Management 

1l1c primary objectives of the Company's capilal management policy arc to ensure that the Company complies with e.~lcmally 
imposed capital requirements from its regulators and maintains strong credit ratings am! healthy capital r.itios in order to support its 
business and to maximise shareholder value. 

(a) The Pillars of its policy are as follows: 

a) Maintain diversity ofsouree; offinancing and spreading the mJturity across tenure buckets in order to minimize liquidity risk. 

b) Maintain investment grade ratings for all its liabilities issuances domestically and internationally by ensuring that the financial 
strength of their balance sheets are preserved. 

c) Manage financial market risks arising from lntcrcst rate, equity prices and minimise the impact of market volatility on earnings. 

d) Leverage optimally in order to maximise shareholder returns while maintaining strength and flexibility of balance sheet. 

TI1is framework is adjusted based on underlying macro-economic factors affecting business environment, financial market 
conditions and interest nllcs environment 

(b) Regulatory Capital 

TI1e below regulatory capital is computed in accordance with RDIIDNBR/2016-17/45 - Master Direction DNBR. PD 
008/03.10.l 19/2016-17 September 01, 2016 (updated time to time) read with RBI/2019-20/170 DOR 
{NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.10.106/2019-20 - Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards dated March 13, 2020 issued by 
Reserve Bank of India on Ind AS financial statements. 

Particulars 

Capital Funds 
Common Equity Tier! (CETI) capita! 
O!her Tier 2 capita! instruments (CETI) 

Total capital 

Risk weighted assets 

CET l Capi1:.il r;11iu 
CET2 Capital ratrn 

Total Capital ratio 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

5,376.21 
1,292.03 

6,668.23 

9,228.9.f 

58.ZS~'o 
14.00% 
72.25% 

As at 
March 31, 2022 

2,106.88 
1,083.35 

3,190.23 

8,644.62 

24.37°{, 
12.53% 
36.90% 
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57. Other Disclosures 

(i) Details of dues to micro enterprise and small enterprise 

Trade Payables mc!udc,; Nil (Pre~ious Year Rs.0.89 million) payable to "Suppliers" registered under the Micro, Small and Medium Entcrpnses Development Act, 
2006. Interest paid hy the company during the year to ·'Suppliers" rcgis1crcd under this Act is Nil (Pre\~ous year: Rs.0.06 million). The aforcmcn1ioncd is based on the 
responses received by the company to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act. 

(ii) Disclosure under regulation 5J(f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 

Particulars As at As at 
March JI, 2023 March 3 ! , 2022 

Loans to advances in the nature of!mms to subsidiaries . 
Loans to advances in the nature of!oans to associates . 
Loans to advances in the nature of!oans to firms/companies in which directors arc interested . 

Investment by the !once in the share of parents company and subsidiary company, when !he . 
company has made a loans & advances in the nature ofloans 

(Hi) Relationship with Struck off Companies 

Below are the transactions \1/ilh the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 

Namo of the struck off company Naturo of transactions Relallonshlp with Balance outstanding Balance outstanding as 
with struck-off the Struck off company, as on March 31, 2023 on March 31, 2022 
Company if any, to be disclosed 

MEDIFIT HEALTH & FITNESS PRIVATE LIMITED Receivables Nono 0.44 
Zedpack Pvt Ltd Receivables None 0.0, 
Sholtz India Pvl Ltd Recelvables None 0.02 
Total 0.44 
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57. Other Disclosures 

(v) Disclosure of Ratios 

Sr. No. Particulars 

I Debt-equity Ratio i,cJc:r n"'" 11 

2 Debenture redemption rcser\'e (Rupees in Crores) 

J Net worth (Rupees in Crores) o,i:,,-,w:c ~J 

4 Net prolil after tax {Rupees in Crores) 

5 Earnings per share (not annualised) 

5.a Basic (Rupees) 

5.b Diluted (Rupees) 

6 Total debts to total assets c,cf.-rm><c 
11 

7 Net profit margin(%) (,cfcrn"'0 ~1 

s Sector specific equivalent ratios as on March 31. 2023 

(a) Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (CRAR) (%) 

(bl Tier I CRAR (%) 

(c) Tier II CRAR (%) 

(d) Stage 3 ratio (gross)(%) (,d"ern,•ldl 

(el Stage 3 ratio (net)(%) !rd'"""'cr,i 

9 Liquidity coverage ratio"•·· 

March 31,2023 March 31.2022 

0.86 1.35 

2.29 6.78 

533.00 497.02 

27.79 ! 8.47 

6.47 4.30 

6.47 4.30 

0.44 0.53 

21.59% I 0.47% 

72.25%, 36.90% 

58.25%, 24.37% 

14.00% 12.53% 

2.81% 2.31% 

2.17°/4, 1.82% 

N.A N.A 

The company being a retail finance company. disclosure of current ratio, long tenn debt to working capital, Bad debts to Account receiYab!e ratio, Current 
liability ratio. Debtors turnover. Inventory turnover. Operating margin are not applicable 

I. Debt-equity Ratio"" Total Debt (Debt Securities.,. Borrowings (other than debt securities)+ Subordinated Liabilities+Sccuritisation liability). Net worth 

2. Net worth"' Share capital+ Share application money pending allotment - Reserves & Surplus - Deferred Tax Asse!s 

3. Total debts to total assets"' Total Deb! i Total assets 

4. Net profit margin(%)"" Ne! profit after tax, Revenue from Operations 

5. Stage 3 ratio (gross) "'Gross Stage 3 loans Gross Loans 

6. Stage 3 ratio {net)"' (Gross stage 3 loans - impainnent loss allowance for Stage 3) Gross Loans 

7. As per RBJ guidelines on Liquidity Risk Management Framework. all non-deposit taking NBFCs with asset size of Rs. 5.000 crore shall maintain the 
required level of Liquidity coverage ratio (LCR) starting December I. 2020 in phased manner from 30% to 100% by December I. 2024. As at March 31. 
2023. the Company's asset size is less than Rs. 5,000 crores and hence minimum LCR maintenance is not mandatory for the Company. 
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57. Other Disclosures 

(iv) Disclosure Large Corporate as per the applicability criteria given under the SEBI circular SEBI/HO/DDHS/CIRJP/2018/144 dated November 26, 2018. 

Initial Disclosure to be made by an entity identified as a Large Corporate 
Sr. No Particulars 

I Name ofthe company 
2 CIN 
3 Outstanding borrowing of company as on tvlarch 31, 2023 
4 Highest Credit Rating During the previous FY along with name of the Credit Rating 

Agency 

5 Name of Stock Exchange in which the fine shall be paid, in case of shortfall in the 
required borrowing under the framework 

Table I 
Product Credit Rating 
Bank Bmrnwings [ICRA] A+/Stablc 
Commercial Papers CRISILAI+ 
Commercial Papers CARE Al+ 
Long Tenn Sub-Debt CRJSIL AA-/Stable 
Long Tenn Sub-Debt [ICRAJ A+/Stable 
Long Tenn Sub-Debt CARE A+/Stable 
Long Tenn NCO CARE A+/Stable 
Long Tenn-NCO CRISIL AA-/Negative 
Long Tenn-NCO BWR AA-/stable 
Long T enn-NCD [ICRA] A+/Stable 
Perpetual - Debt BVvR A+/stable 
Perpetual - Debt ACUITE A+ 
Petpetual - Debt CRISlLA+ 

(iv) Details of incremental borrowings during the year ended March 31, 2023 

Particulars 

2-year block period 

Incremental borrowing done in FY (a) 

Mandatory borrowing to be done through issuance of debt secu1ilies (25% ofa) = (b) 

Actual borrowings done through debt securities in FY {c) 

Shortfall in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities, if any (b) - (c) = (d) 
{lfthe calculated value is zero or negative, write "nil"} 

Quantum of(d), which has been met from (c) (e) 

Sho1tfall, if any, in the mandatory borrowing through debt securities for FY 2022-23{after 
adjusting for any shortfall in borrowing for FY 2021-22 which was carried forward to FY 2022-
23 J (0 ~(b)-[(c)-(c)] 

(v) Details of penalty to be paid, if any, in respect to previous year ended March 31,2022 

Particulars 

2-year block period 

Amount of fine to be paid for the block, if applicable Fine= 0.2% of {(d)-(e)} 

Details 
EDELWEISS RETAIL FINANCE LIMITED 
U67120MH1997PLC285490 
3786.07 
As per Table 1 below 

BSELIMITED 

Name of Rating Agency 
ICRA Limited 
C'RISIL 
CARE Limited 
C'RISIL 
ICRALimited 
CARE Limited 
CARE Limited 
C'RISIL 
Brickwork Ratings 
ICRA Limited 
Brickwork Ratings 
ACUITE Ratings 
CRISIL 

Details 

FY 2022-23, FY 2023-24 

300 

75 

0 

0 

0 

75 

Details 

FY 2021-22, FY 2022-23 

Nil 
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57. Other Disclosures 

{vi) Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar or Companies (ROC) 

No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period by the company 

{,ii) Compliance with number of layers of com1ianies 

The provision of this act shall not be applicable as the company ,s a non-banking financial company as defined in the Re~erve 
Bank of India Act, 1934 {2 of 1934) which is registered with the Rescn•c Bank oflndia and considered as systemically i1nportm1t 
non-banking financial company by tho., Reserve Bank oflndia as per the exceptions prescribed under clause (S7) ofscclion 2 of the 
Act read with Companies (Rcstric1ion on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 

(viii' Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium: 

(A) During the year, the company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any od,cr pcrson(s) or cntity(ics), induding 
foreign entities (fnlcrmediarics) with the under~tanding that the Jntcm1cdiary shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or in\"est in other persons or entities iden1ilied in any manner whatsoc\"cr by or on behalf of the 
company (Ultimate Bcncliciarie;) or 

(ii) providc any guarantee, security ur the !ikc to oron bchalfofthc Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(B) During the year, the Company has nol received any fund from any pcrson(s) ur cntity(ics), including foreign cnti1ics (Funding 
Party) with the undcr~tanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any m.1nner whatsoc\·cr by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party(U!timatc Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guaramee, security or the like to or on behalf oflhc Ultimate Beneficiaries 

(ix) Details ofBenami Property held 

There arc no proceedings which have hecu initiated or peudiog against the company for hnlding any bcnami property under the 
Bcnami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 198S (45 of 1988) nnd mks made Then:undcr 

(x) Undisclo~cd income 

Th~ Compan} w1!11w1 ha\ :m} 1ransuc1iun \lhich not rccorJcJ m the book, 0L1cctmnts 1hm has been surrcnJcrcJ or dischJscd as 

income during the ycnr in !he tax assessments under 1hc Income Tax Act, l 961 

(xi) Rounding of amounts 

All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest million as per the requirements 

i 
' 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(i) Foreign currency 

The Company has not undertaken any foreign currency transaction during the year ended March 31, 2023 (Previous year: Rs Nil). 

(ii) Investments 

Sr.No Particulars As at 
March 31, 2023 

Value of Investments 

(i) Gross value oflnvestments 
(a) In India 3,172.87 
(b) Outside India -

(ii) Provisions for Depreciation 
(a) In India (57.47) 
(b) Outside India -

(iii) Net value oflnvcstments 
(a) In India 3,115.40 
(b) Outside India -

Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on innstmcnts 

(i) Opening balance (5.92) 
(ii) Add: Provisions made during the year (51.55) 
(iii) Less: Write-off/ Written-back of excess provisions during the year -
(iv) C!osin" balance (57.47) 

(iii) Derivath•es 

(a) Fonvnrd Rate A~recmcnt / Interest Rate Swap 

As at 
Sr. No Particulars 

March 31, 2023 

(i) The notional principal of sw:ip agreements Nil 
(ii) Losses which would be incurred if eoun!crpurties failed to fulfill their obligations under the Nil 

agreements 

(iii) Collateral required by the applicable NBFC upon entering ioto swaps Nil 
(iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swapss Nil 

M The fair \"aluc of the swap book@ Nil 

As a! 
March 31, 2022 

1,546.90 

-

(5.92) 

1,540.98 

(5.92) 
-

(5.92) 

Asut 
March 31, 2022 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Nil 

Nil 
Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including i1iformation 011 credit and market risk and the acco1mti11g policies adopledfor recording the swaps 
shrmld also be discfosed. 

! Examples of co11ce11tratio11 could be exposures lo particular industries or swaps with higflfy geared companies. 

8: Ift/ze nvaps are linked to specific assets, liabilities, or commitme/1/s, the fair value would be the estimaled a11101111/ that the applicable NBFCwould 
receive or pay to remrinate the s,•.-ap agreemellts as 011 the balance sheet dare. 

(b) [;\:change Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives 

Sr. No Particulars Amount 

(i) Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR derivatiws undertaken during the year (instrumentwisc) Nil 

(ii) Notional principal amount of exchange traded JR derivatives outstanding as on March 3 l, 2023 (instrument-wise) Nil 

(iii) Notional principal amount ofcxchange lrnded IR derivatives oul~tanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) Nil 

(iv) Mark-to-market value of exchange traded IR derivatives outstanding and not "highly effective" (instrument-wise) Nil 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(c) Qualitatin Disclosures 
The Company has a process whereby periodically all kmg term contract~ are assessed for material foreseeable losses. At the year end, the Company has 
reviewed and ensured that adequate proYision as required under any law/ accounting standards for material foreseeable losses on such long term contract~ has 
been made in the books of account. The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts during the year. {Previous year Rs. Nil) 

(d) Quantitath•e Disclosures 

Sr.No Particulars 
Current Interest Rate 

Derh·ath'cs Dcrh•atives 
(i) Derivatives (Notional Principal Amount) Nil Nil 

For hedging Nil Nil 
(ii) Marked to Market Positions 

a) Asset(+) Nil Nil 
b) Liability(-) Nil Nil 

(iii) Credit Exposure Nil Nil 
(iv) Unhedgcd Exposures Nil Nil 

(iv) Asset liability management 

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

As at March 31, 2023 

Buckets Deposits 
Ad\•anccs 

I"'·estmcnts* Borrowings 
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency 

(Gross) Assets Assets 

I day to 7 days 49.62 23.63 
8 day to 14 days 14.06 
15 days to 30131 days (One 11100th) 83.77 96.40 
Over I month upto 2 months I 18.86 12.50 
Over 2 months upto 3 months 1,477.34 12.50 
Over 3 months upto 6 months 593.97 24.06 52.28 
Over 6 months upto 1 year 541.59 154.07 473.26 
Over I year uptu 3 years 770.68 ..J.13.13 
Over 3 years upto 5 years 363.02 783.61 2,702.38 
Over 5 years 1.635.14 2,331.80 

Total 5,648.05 3,293.53 3,786.07 

*Including securities held for trnding 

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities 

A'1 at March 31, 2022 

Bucket~ Deposits 
Advances 

Investments* Borrowings 
Foreign Currency Foreign Currency 

tGross) Assets Assets 

I day to 7 days 52.82 
8 day to 14 days 956.76 62.44 
15 days to 30/31 days (One month) 281.16 129.Sl 
Over I month upto 2 months 671.3 I 13.77 18.75 
Over 2 months upto 3 months 480.43 402.50 
Over 3 months upto 6 months 941.99 4.56 448.59 
Over 6 months upto ! year 3,444.82 31.96 2,716.45 
Owr I year upto 3 years !,568.75 
Over 3 years upto 5 years 72.24 1,240.22 371.28 
Over 5 years 2,248.94 300.76 2,582.38 

Total 10,719.22 1,591.27 6,731.90 

"'Including securities he!d for trading 

M Capital to risk assets ratio (CRAR) 

Particulars 
As at As at 

Sr.No 
March 31, 2023 March31,2022 

(i) CRAR(%) 72.25% 36.90% 
(ii) CRAR- Tier I capital(%) 58.25% 24.37% 

(iii) CRAR - Tier II Capital (%) 14.00% 12.53% 

(iv) Amoum of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital 1.731.84 1.694.54 
(Raised during the year: Nil, Previous year Nil) 
(Discounted value of subordinated debt considered for the purpose of Tier II capita! R~. 
I .1 :!0.00 !'l·ln, Pr_,,-IDus Y-'ar Rs. ! ,053.99 Mn,) 

M Amount raised by issue ofpcrpclual debt instruments 458.76 45R.M 
(Rai~~d <luring the yeur: Nil, Previous y~ar Nil) 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Coutim,ed) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 
(,·i) Direct assignment & Securitisation 

(a) Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect ofsecuritisation transactions as required under revised guidelines on sccuriti7..ation transactions issued by RBI 
vide circular no.DNBS. PD.No.301/3. l 0.01/2012-13 dated August 21, 2012 

Sr.No Particulars As at As at 
!\larch 31, 2023 March 3 l, 2022 

I No. ofSPVs sponsored by the NBFC for securitisation transactions 4 I 
2 Total amount ofsccuritiscd asset~ as per books of the SP Vs sponsored by the NBFC 1,309.54 314.47 
3 Total amount of exposures retained by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the date 

ofbalance sheet 551.52 53.46 
a) Off-balance sheet exposures 

• First loss -
- Others -

b) On-balance sheet exposures 
- First loss 106.47 22.01 
- Others 445.05 31.45 

4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR 
a) Off-balance sheet exposures -

i) Exposure to own sccuritisations - -
- First loss - -
- Others - -

ii) Exposure to third party seeuritisations - -
- First loss - -
-Other:; - -

b) On-balance sheet exposures -
i) Exposure to own securitisatio11s -

- Fim loss - -
- Other:; - -

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations - -
- First Joss -
-Others -

"'Only !he SPY~ relating to outstanding sccuritisation tran~aclions may be reported here 

(bJ Disclosures in the notes to the accounts in respect of assignmcm transactions 

Sr.No Particulars As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

I No. ofSPVs sponsored by the NBFC for assignment transactions 62 10 
2 Total amount of sccuritiscd assets as per books of the SP Vs sponsored by the NBFC 2,000.12 1,573.29 

3 Total amount of exposures retaine<l by the NBFC to comply with MRR as on the <late 511.52 194.48 
of balance sheet 

a) Off-balance sheet exposures 
- First loss -
-Others -

h) On-balance sheet exposures 
- First loss -
- Others 511.52 194.48 

4 Amount of exposures to assignment transactions other than MRR -
a) Off-balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own sccuritisations 
- Firnt loss 
- Others 

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations 
- First loss -
-01hcr:; -

b) On-balance sheet exposures 

i) Exposure to own securitisations 
- First loss 
-Others 

ii) Exposure to third party securitisations 
- First loss 
- Others 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Contillued) 
(Currency; Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 
(c) De1ails of Financial Assets sold to Securi1isation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction during the year 

Sr, No Partkulars 

(i) No. of accounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) ofaceounts sold to SC/ RC 
(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect ofaceounts transferred in earlier years 

M Aggregate gain/ (loss) over net book value 

(d) Details of Assib'Tlmcnl transactioos undertaken during the year 

Sr.No Particulars 

(i) No. ofaccounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) ofaeeounts sold to SC/ RC 

(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 
(v) Af!crC!!ate l!ain / {loss) over net book value 

(c) Details of Securitization transactions undertaken during the ycar 

Sr.No Particulars 

{i) No. of accounts 
(ii) Aggregate value (net of provisions) ofaccounL> sold 
(iii) Aggregate consideration 
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred in earlier years 

M Af!1..>re1rnte 1tain / loss over net book value 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

14 25 
942,55 393.49 
982.11 370.84 

" 

39.56 (22.65) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

2 33 
793.90 314.24 

793.90 282.82 

" 

" {3 l.42) 

For the year ended For the year ended 
!\larch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

376 358 
166.74 282.82 
166.74 314.47 

" 

" 31.65 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued) 
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulator3· Disclosures 

(vii) Details of non-performing financials assets purchased/ sold 

A. Details of Non ncrfonninl! financial assets nurchascd: 
Sr. 
No Particulars 

(a) No. of accounts purchased during the year 
(b) Aggregate outstanding 
(a) Of these, number of accounts restructured during the year 
(b) Aggregate outstanding 

B. Details ofNon oerforming financial assets Sold: 
Sr. 
No Particulars 

(a) No. of accounts sold 
(b) Aggregate outstanding 
(,) Aggregate consideration received 

(viii) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect & exposure to capital market 
a) Exposure to real estate sector, both direct and indirect 

Sr. 
Particulars 

No 
A Direct exposure 
(i) Residential mortgages -

Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential property that is or will be occupied by the 
borrower or that is rented 

(ii) Commercial real estate -

Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real estates (office buildings, retail space, 
multipurpose commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings, multi-tenanted commercial 
premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, 
etc). 

Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitised exposures -
- Residential 
- Commercial real estate 

B Indirect exposure 

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing 
Finance Comnanics (HFCs) 

Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 
Nil Nil 

For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
14 25 

942.55 393.49 
982.11 370.84 

As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1,171.65 1,480.77 

1,686.93 2,957.30 

- -
- -

- -

2,858.58 4,438.07 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Conti11uetl) 

(Cunency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 
b) Exposure to capital market 

s,. 
No Particulars 

i) direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible debentures and units of equity-
oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in corporate debt 

ii) advances against shares / bonds/ debentures or other securities or on clean basis to individuals for 
investment in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and 
units of equity-oriented mutual funds 

iii) advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or 
unil'> of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as primary security 

iv) advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateml security of shares or 
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the 
primary security other than shares/ convertible bonds/ convertible debentures/ units of equity 
oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances 

v) secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers 
and market makers 

vi) loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares/ bonds/ debentures or other securities 
or on clean basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of new companies in 
anticipation of raising resources 

vii) bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/ issues 

viii) Undenvriting commitments taken up by the NBFCs in respect of primary issue of shares or 
convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds 

ix) Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading 
x) All exposures to Alternative Investment Funds: Category I 

Total Exposure to Capital Market 

(ix) Movements in non performing adrnnces: 

As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

- -

- -

- 727.47 

- -

- -

- -

- -

- -

2,331.79 300.76 
2.331.79 1,028.23 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the details of movement of gross Stage III loans, Net Stage III an dECL 
s,. 

Particulars 
As at Asat 

No March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

i) Net NP As to net advances(%) 2.22% 1.83% 

ii) Movement of NP As (Gross) 
a) Opening balance 248.06 1.561.18 
b) Additions during the year 990.04 204.65 
c) Reductions during the year (1,079.64) (1,517.77) 
d) Closing balance 158.46 248.06 

iii) Movement of net NPA 
a) Opening balance 195.25 1.281.37 
b) Additions during the year 909.59 174.50 
c) Reductions during the year (982.06) (1,260.62) 
d) Closing balance 122.78 195.25 

iv) Movement of provisions for NP As (excluding provision on Stage I & II loans) 
a) Opening balance 52.81 279.81 
b) Additions during the year 80.45 30.15 
c) Reductions during the year (97.58) (257.15) 
d) Closing balance 35.68 52.81 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11tinued) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(x) Details of single borrower limit and group borrower limit exceeded by the Company: 

During the year ended 31 March 2023 , the Company's credit exposure to single borrowers and group borrowers were within the limits 
prescribed by the RBI, except exposure to below entities. (Previous year: Nil) 

GMR Bannerghatta Properties Private Limited 

The above loans was disbursed within the limit of Single Borrower Limit (SBL) and Group Borrower Limit (GBL) as defined in RBI Master 
Direction 'DNBR. PD. 008/03.10.119/2016-17 Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit 
taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September l, 2016 as amended. During the year, the 
limit was breached due to change in the basis of the computation of SBUGBL limit based on the RBI circular RBI/2021-22/112 
DOR.CRE.REC.No.60/03.10.001/2021 on Scale ased Regulation and defined based on net owned fund which was earlier based on owned 
fund. The Company has taken the necessary steps to bring down the exposures of above borrower within applicable limit. 

(xi) Unsecured Advances 

The company has not taken any charges over the rights,licences,authorisation etc against unsecured loan given to borrowers. 

(xii) Fraud Reporting 

There were no instances of fraud identified and reported during the year (Previous Year Nil) as required in tenns of Chapter II paragraph 5 of 
Monitoring of frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016. 

(xiii) Remuneration of Directors 

The company has not entered into any transaction with non-executive directors during the year (Previous Y car Rs. Nil) except disclosure 
made in table below: 
Details of transaction with non executives directors 

Name of Directors Nature of transaction For the year For the year 
ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 3 l, 2022 
Mr. Vinod Juneja Sitting fees 0.60 0.26 
Mr. Sunil Phatamhekar Sittinl.!; fees 0.44 0.22 

(xiv) Net profit or loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policy 
There arc no prior period items (previous year Rs, Nil) and there arc no changes in accounting policies during the year. 

(xv) Details of 'provisions and contingencies' 

Break up of 'provisions and contingencies' shown under the head expenditure For the year For the year 
in statement of profit and loss. ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31. 2022 
(i) Provisions for depreciation on investment 57.47 5.92 
(ii) Provision towards NPA (Stage III loans) (17.08) (226.99) 
(iii) Provision made towards income tax 12.63 23.73 
(iv) Provision for Standard Joans (Stage I & II loans) (261.38) 83.04 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued) 
(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

{x"i) Draw down from Reser\'es 
The Company has drawn Rs. Nil (Previous Year Nil) from the debenture redemption reserve and transferred to retained earnings on 
redemption of debentures till March 31, 2023. Further, pursuant to the amendments in the Companies Act, 2013, debenture redemption 
reserve is not required to be created for debentures issued by Non-Banking Finance Companies (including Housing Finance Companies) 
rct,'lllatcd by Reserve Bank oflndia. 

(xvii) Concentration of deposits, advances, exposures and NP As 

A) Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs) As at Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total Deposits to twenty largest depositors NA NA 
% of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to total Deposit taking NBFC NA NA 

B) Concentration of advances Asat Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Total advances to twenty largest borrowers 3,033.67 7,060.21 
% of advances to twenty largest borrowers to total advances 53.71% 65.86% 

C) Concentration of exposures (includes Off balance sheet exposure) 
Total exposures to twenty largest borrowers/ customers 3,141.83 7,060.21 
% of exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to total Exposure 54.51% 65.53% 

D) Concentration ofNPAs 
Total exnosures to too four NP As 115.18 94.13 

E) Intra group exposures As at As at 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

l) Total amount of intra-group exposures 480.87 3,655.73 
ii) Total amount of top 20 intra-group exposures 480.87 3,655.73 
iii) Percentage of intra-group exposures to total exposure of the NBFC on borrowers/customers 5.38% 29.70% 

F) SectorMwisc NP As As at As at 
% ofNPAs to total advances in that sector March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

l Agriculture & allied activities 0.00% 0.00% 
2 MSME 1.88% 7.81% 
3 Corporate borrowers 0.58% 1.42% 
4 Services 2.13% 0.39% 
5 Unsecured personal loans 0.00% 0.00% 
6 Auto loans 0.00% 0.00% 
7 Other oersonal loans 13.74% 6.29% 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

G) Sector-wise loans breakup 

As on March 31, 2023 
Total Gross NPAs % of Gross 

Sectors Exposure* NP As to total 
exposure in 
that sector 

I Agriculture and Allied Acti 48.03 - -
2 Industry (Micro and Small 3,690.50 116.47 3.16% 
2.1 Micro and Small 452.89 67.60 14.9% 
2.2 Medium 37.18 - 0.0% 
2.3 Large - - -
2.4 Others 3,200.43 48.87 1.5% 

3 3. Seniccs 1,478.66 31.48 2.13% 
3.1 Transport Operators - - -
3.2 Computer Software - - -
3.3 Tourism, Hotels and Restaura 324.93 - -
3.4 Shipping JO.OJ - -
3.5 Professional Services 483.09 8.32 1.7% 
3.6 Trade 157.46 0.74 0.5% 
3.6.1 Wholesale Trade (Other than 2.64 0.32 12.2% 
3.6.2 Retail Trade 154.82 0.42 0.3% 
3.7 Commercial Real Estate - - -
3.8 Non Banking Fiancia!s Comp - -
3.9 Aviation 21.78 - -
3.10 Other Scr\'ices 481.39 22.41 4.7% 

4. Personal Loans 430.85 10.51 2.4% 
Housing (Including Priority - - -

4.1 Sector Housing) 
4.2 Consumer Durables - - -
4.3 Credit Card Outstanding - - -
4.4 Vehicle Loans - - -
4.5 Education - - -
4.6 Advances against Fixed - -

Deposits 

4.7 Advances to lnd1v1duals - -
against share, bonds, etc. 

4.8 Loans against ,gold jewellery - - -
4.9 Micro finance loans/ SHG lo· - - -
4.10 Other Retail Loans 430,85 10.51 2.4% 

5 Others, if any (Please speci - - -
Total 5,648.05 158.46 2.81% 
•mc!udes 011 balance sheet and off-balance sher/ exposure 

As on March 31, 2022 
Total Gross NP As % of Gross 

Exposure* NPAs to total 
exposure in 
that sector 

60.09 - -

2,862.73 200.60 7.01% 
979.28 91.59 9.4% 
195.32 33.77 17.3% 

- - -
1,688.14 75.25 4.5% 

7,011.62 27.10 0.39% 
- - -
- - -

359.81 0.27 -
9.97 - -

688.35 4.10 0.6% 
145.08 1.59 1.1% 

12.56 0.29 2.3% 
132.52 1.30 1.0% 
149.22 - -
259.16 - -

22.70 -
5,377.34 21.13 0.4% 

784.78 20.36 2.59';,'o 

- - -

- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -
- - -

- - -
- - -
- - -

784.78 20.36 2.6% 

- - -
10,719.22 248.06 2.31% 
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58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xviii) Customer complaints 

1) Summary information on complaints received by the NBFCs from customers and from the Offices of Ombudsman 

For the year For the year 
Particulars ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

1) Compliants received by the NBFC from its customers 
1 No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year - -
2 No. of complaints received during the year 100 118 
3 No. of complaints redressed during the year 98 118 

3.1 Of which, number of complians rejected by the NBFC 4 -
4 No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 2 -

5 Number ofl\Iaintainable complaints received by the NBFC from office of the 17 13 
Omnbudsman 

5.1 Of 5, number of complaints resolved in favour of the NBFC by Office of Ombudsman 17 13 
5.2 Of 5, number of complai11ts resolved through co11ciliatio11/mediatio11/advisories i:~sued by - -

Office of Ombudsman 

5.3 Of 5, number of complaints resolved after passing of Awards by Office of Ombudsman - -
against the NBFC 

6 Number of Awards unimplemented within the stipulated time (other than those - -
appealed) 

2) Top five grounds of complaints received by the NBFCs from customers 

Grounds of Number of Number of % increase/ Number of Of 5, number 
complaints complaints complaints decrease in the complaints of 

pending at received number of pending at the complaints 

the during the complaints end of the year pending beyond 
beginning year received over 30 days 

of the previous 
the year year 

1 2 3 4 5 6 
FY2022-23 
Loans and advances - 100 85% 2 2 
FY2021-22 
Loans and advances - 118 157% 0% -
* Grouuds of complains arc basis 011 //,e grormds us specificd ill Smlc Based Reg11/atio11s isrned by the Reserve Da11k of /11dit1. 
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58. Regulator)' Disclosures 

(xix) Details of ratings assigned by credit rating agencies 

As at March 31, 2023 

(a) Instrument catenory CRISIL ICRA CARE 

i) 
LT-NCO, LT• LT-NCO, LT- LT-NCO and LT-

Long term instruments Sub Debt and Sub Debt and S b D b 
Perp-Debt BLR u ct 

CRISILAA-
ICRA CARE Rating & 

A+/Stable A+/Ncgath•e 
A+/Ncgath'c 

Amount 6860,00 30101.70 5250.00 

ii) Short term instruments CPs-ST CPs-ST 

Rating CRISILAI+ NA CARE AI+ 

Amount 5000.00 NA 5000.00 

(b) the migration of ratings during the year are given below: 

(a) 

(i) Acuite revised the long tenn rating A+ from AA- on 5th August 2022. 

(ii) Brickwork changed the outlook Stable to Negative on 10th October 2022. 

(iii) CARE revised the outlook Negative from Stable on 06th October 2022. 

(iv) ICRA changed the outlook Negative to Stable on 24th June 2022. 

As at March 31, 2022 
Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE 

LT-NCD, LT- LT-NCD. LT-
LT-:..;"CDand LT. i) Long tenn instruments Sub Debt and Sub Debi and 

Sub Debt BLR BLR 

CRIS!LAA· ICRA 
CARE A+/Stab!e 

Rating /Negative A+/Negative 

Amount 1,202.00 3,020.17 525.00 

ii) Short term instruments CPs-ST CPs-ST 

Rating CRIS£LAI+ NA CARE Al+ 

Amount 200.00 NA 500.00 

(b) The migration of ratings during the year are nil. 

Brickworks Acuitc 

LT-NCD and 
Perpetual Debt Perp-Dcbt 

BWRAA-& ACUITE 
A+/Ncgativc A+/Ncgath·c 

1500.00 1000.00 

NA NA 

NA NA 

Brickworks Brickworks Acuite 

LT-NCO Pc!Jlelual Debt Pe!Jlelua! Debt 

BWR AA-/stable BWRA+/stable 
ACUITEAA-

/Negative 

50.00 100.00 100.00 

NA NA NA 

NA NA NA 
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Noles to the financial st:1tcments for year ended March 31, 2023 (C11111i1111e1f) 
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5ll. Rcgutatury lli~dnsur'-'S 

(,,) Disdmure nf Restructured Accounts 
(as r'-'quircd by Rill guidelines under rercrence DNBS. CO. PD. No. 367 / 03.IO.0I / 2013-14 dated J111111ary 23, 2014 read with RBI drc11lnr IUU/2019-20/160 DOR.No.BP.BC.34/21.04.048/2019-20 dated February 11, 2020 & RBI/2020-21/17 
llOR.No.lW.UCf.Wl.114.048/2020-21 dated August 6, 2020). 

T\'nc of R••slr11ct11ring Und••r CllR Mechanism Under Sl\1E Dcht Rcstructnri1w l\lechanism 
Sr No Asset Classinca1ion Suh-

llctails Stamlnr ~tandard Uoohtfu Loss Total St:rndard 
I Re~tru<:turetl ;,ccrnrnts as on 18I April, No. ofborrowcrs . . . . 

2022 (Opening figures) (refer note I) Amount 011Mnnding . . . . 
Provision thereon . . . . 

2 Fn:;h rcstnJctunng Juring the yc,1r No. of borrowers . . . 
(refer nolc 21 Amount ouMumling . . . . 

l'rovision thereon . . . 

3 Upgradations ofrcstniclurcd accoums No. of borrowers . . . . 
lo Stant!anl cah,gnry Amounl oulstanding . . . . 

fOVISIOll 1 icrcon . . 
4 llc.structurct! m.lrnnccs which cuscs to 

allrnct higher provisioning and/ or No. ofborrowcrn . . 
ut!ditimml risk weight al 1hc end of the 
financial year and hence need not he Amnont outstanding . . 
shown ns rcstrnc1un;J 51andnrd 

aJ,unccs nl the hc!_!mnmg ol' the ncx! Provision thereon 
filmncrnl year 

. . . . 

s Dtm11gradations ofrc.,tructured No, ofborrowcr.s . . . 
accounts during lhc FY Amount nutslanding . . . . 

Pro\'ision thereon . . 

6 \Vrilc-offa ofrcslrudurcd uccoun\s No. ufburrowcrs . . 
during lhe FY 22-23 Amoum ourntanding . . 

l'rovisio11 thereon . 

1 Rcstruch1rcd :iccu1m1s ~son J ls1 Mar, No. (lfborrowcrs . . 
2023 {C'l(lsmg Cig11rc,;) Amouot outst;,nding . . 

Provision thereon . . 

Note. 
l Excluding the figures ofSland:ml Restructured Advances which Jo not atlract higher provisioning or risk weight (ifapp!ieable) 
2. Amo um outstanding of fresh restructuring during the year is the amount outstanding as on the dace ofrc.~tructuring. 
J. The ;1bove table excludes the recoveries nmt!c on rcstruclurcd accounts. 

Suh-
standard lloubtfu Loss Total 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. 

. . 

. . 

Slandard 
82 

1,976.98 
199.56 

{16} 

(9ll2.47) 

(106.08) 

(5) 
(250.10) 

(22.53) 

(lit) 

(25.35) 
(I0.72) 

43 
719.06 

60.22 

Others Tntnl 
Suh- Suh-

standard Doubtful Loss Total Standard standard Uoubtful 
16 . '" " 16 

69.19 . 2,046.17 1,976.98 69.19 
15.43 . . 214.99 199.56 15.43 

. 

. . 

. . . 

. . . 
. 

. . . 

(4) (2) (22) (16) (4) (2) 

(194.53) (31.09) (l,2011Jl8) (9112.47) {194,53) (31.09) 

(13.06) (3,97) (123.12) (106.08) (13.06) (3.97) 

I 4 (5) I 4 
213.24 36.116 0.00 (250.10) 213.24 36.116 

16.38 6.15 (22.53) 16.38 6.15 

(8) . (26) (18) ,,, 
(7.00) (32_15) (25.35) (7.00) 
(5.85) {16.57) (I0.72) {5.85) 

5 2 50 43 5 2 
110.90 5.nt ll05.73 719.06 110.90 5.78 
12,119 2.18 . 75.30 60.22 12.89 2.18 

Loss 

. 

. 

. 

4. Abu,·c tlisclosurc nlso mcluJcs loan uccounls which arc restructured under RBI circular m1 'Micro, Smali and Medium En1c1Jlriscs (MSMEJ sce1or - Res!ructurmg of Advances' dated January J, 2019 which are rcnecting un<lcr 'Sub-StandnrJ {i.e. Stage Ill) cmcgory as per 
classilical1<lll under lnd ,\S 

Total 

" 2,046.17 
214.99 

(22) 

{1,2011.011) 

(123.12) 

O.Oll 

(26) 
(32.35) 
{16.57} 

50 
805.73 

75.30 
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SH. Rei:ulntory 1)1,dosun•.s 

(n) lli.,clniurc of Rc.,trudurcd Accounts 

(as required by ltHI guideli11cs under reference DN8S. CO. PD. No. 367 / 03.10.01 / 2013-14 dated Jnnunry 23, 2014 read with RIii circular IUJl/2019-20/160 DOR.Nu.8P.8C.34/2l.04.04812019-20 dated Fcbruury 11, 2020 & RBl/2020-21/17 
DOR.Nn.Bl'.IICl-1121.114.048/2020-21 tfated August 6, 2020), 

Ty 1e nf Restructurini: Under CDR l\ledmnism Under Si\1F, Debt Rcstruct11rln1: l\fcch:mism Others Total 
Sr No Asset Classiflc11lio11 Sub- S,h- S,h- Sub-

llctails Standard standard Doubtfu Lu~s Tulal Stnndnrd ~fandard lloub1ru Loss Tolal Standard standard Doubtful Loss Total Standard standard Doublful 
I Rcslruclurc<l accounts ns on 1st April, No. ofborrowcrs 55 7 62 55 7 

2021 {Openiui; fii;ure~) (re for nolc J) Amount outstnndini; 1,054.49 92.31 1.146.80 1,054.49 92.31 
Provision thereon 123.0! 16.58 139.59 123.01 16.58 

2 Fresh n:stmduring t!nring 1hc yc11r No. ofborrowcrs 56 56 56 
(refer note 2) Amount outs!an<ling - 740.89 740.89 740.89 

Provi~ioll thereon 47.06 47.06 47.06 

3 Upgradations ofrcs1mcturcd acc<>ll!HS No. ofborrowcr.; - - I {I) I {I) 
to Slnndard c:11ci;ury Amount outstan<ling - 70.82 (70.82) 70.82 - 70.82 

rovmon 1 1crco11 - 9.K7 (9.H7) 9.K7 - 9.87 
4 Rcstruclmcd advnnccs which cc,1se.~ 10 

atlract higher prnvisioning and/ or No. ofborrowcrn - -
a<lditiorn1! risk \\Cll!h! al lhc cn<l of the 

(8) (8) (8) 

financial year 1111d hence need not be Amount outstandini; - - - - 17!.24 0.86 
172.10 171.24 0.86 shown as rcslmclUrc<l slaindard 

a<lvanccs nl lhe bei;11m1ni; of the ncxl 
Provision thcrcou - - 34.19 3.42 financial year 

37.61 34.19 3.42 

5 Downgradations nfrc~trncturc<l No. ofborrowcrs (!3) 13 - (!3) 13 
accounts <lurmg !he FY Amnunt nutstandini; (51.7!) 51.7! (51.7!) 51.71 

l'rovision thereon (9.10) 9.10 1).10 9.10 

6 \Vrilc•ollil ofrcstrudurc<l nccoun!s No. ofborrowcrs - - - (9) (3) - (12) (9) (3) 
durini; 1hc FY 21-22 Amount ouL1landing - - - - - (8.75) (4.87) - (13.62) (8.75) (4.87) 

Provision thereon - - - (5.47) (3.80} (9.27) (5.47) (3.80) 

7 Rcstrucmrcd accounts as on 3 !st Mar, No. ofbnrrowcrn - - - 82.00 16.00 98.00 82.00 16.00 
2022 (Clus1ng figure~) Amount olllslanding - 1,976.98 69.19 2,046.!7 1.976.98 (,9.19 

Provision thereon - - 199.56 15.43 214.99 199.56 15.43 

Note. 

I. Exdn<lini; 1he figure., ul"Stun<lar<l Rcsiructure<l A<lvanccs which do not attract higher provisioning or risk wcii;ht (ifopp!icablc) 
2. Amounl oulslamlini; offrc~h rc.~tructunng during the year is lhc amount outstanding a,; on the date ofrcstrnclurini;. 
3. The almvc rnhle excludes the recoveries mmlc on restructured accounts. 

Loss 

-1. Abo\·c disdosurc also i11dudcs luan accounts which arc rcs1rudured un<lcr RBI drcul;1r un 'Micro, Snm!l und Mc<liurn Enterprises {MSME) scc1ur - Rcstmctmini; of Advances' <lmc<l January J, 2019 which urc reflecting un<lcr'Sub-Stan<lar<l (i.e. Stage Ill) category as per 
classification under Incl ,\S 

~:;~\ ~□~ ,c.:io '\ <::J" • li 
--;'( \ 

1': ./:.? ,) 
Sl ,~·u ~~ ~\<>¾1 
~'ad~l 

~-~ 

Total 

62 

1.146.80 

!39.59 

56 
740.89 

47.06 

(8) 

172.JO 

37.61 

(12) 

(13.62) 
(9.27) 

98.00 
2,046.17 

214.99 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti11ucd) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xxi) :llicro, Small and i\lcdium Enterprises (:'\ISME) sector - Restructuring of Ad\·anccs 
{as required by RBI guidelines under reference RBI/201B-19/100 DER.No.Br .BC.18/21.04.048/2018-19 dated January 01, 2019) 

Particulars For the year ended 
March 31, 2023 

No of accounts restructured 
Amount (Indian rupees in millions) 

(xxii) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil) 

(xxiii) Detail of fin:mcing parents company products -Nil (Prc\'ious Year - Nil) 

{xxh·) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators - Nil (Previous Year - Nil) 

(XX\') Ownership O\'crseas Assets (for those ,,ith joiut ventures and subsidiaries abroad) 
There arc no overseas assets owned by the company (Previous year Nil) 

(xxvi) Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company 

38 
582.90 

For the year ended 
March3],2022 

77 
880.40 

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit taking non-banking financial Company as required in tenns of paragraph 18 of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial 
Company- Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company tRcscffe Bank) Directions, 2016. 

Liabilities side: 

!Particulars 
Amount ontstandinii Amount O\'crduc 

Ant Asot As at Asat 
J\lan:h 31, 2023 Mardi 31. 2022 March 31 2023 March 31, 2022 

I) Loans and advances availed by NBFC inclusive of interest accrued 
thereon but not paid 

(,) Debentures: 
(other than those foiling within the meaning of Public deposit) 

(i) Secured 889.88 2,804.43 
(ii) Unsecured 2,190.60 2,153.18 

(b) Deferred credits . 
(t) Tenn loans 266.39 !.400.]8 
(d) iiitcr-corporatc loans and borrov.ing . 
(t) Commercial paper . . 
(0 Other loans . 

(i) Loan from related parties 0.17 
(ii) Bank overdraft 355.76 374.11 
(iii) Inter Corporate Deposits 83.28 

Assets side: 

2) Break up ofloans and advances including bills receivables 
(other than those included in (3) below) 

(a) Secured 3,160.67 6,028.04 
(b) Unsecured 2,487.38 4,691.18 

3) Break up of leased assets and stock on lure and other assets counting 
towards AFC activities 

a) Lease assets including lease rentals um/er sundry debtors: 
(i) Financial lease . . 
(ii) Operating lease . 

h) Stock on hire mcluding hire ehnrgcs under sundry debtors 
(i) Assets on hire . . 
(ii) Repossessed assets . . 

c) Other loans counting towards asse1 financing Company acti\1ties 
(i) Loans where assels have been repossessed . 
{ii) Other loans . 

I 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year cntlcd March 31, 2023 (Co11tbmed) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

Note to the balance sheet of a non-deposit takmg non-banking financial Company as required in tern1s of paragraph 1 S of Master Direction- Non-Banking Financial 
Company- Systernatical!y Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions "016 

' -
Particulars Asat '"'' 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 
4) Break up of investments 

Current inwstments: (including securities held for trading) 
(a) Quoted: 

(i) Shares: Equity -
Preference - -

(ii) Debentures and bonds 178.13 50.29 
(iii) Units of mutual funds - -
(iv) Government securities - -
M Others - -

{bl Uuquoscd: 
(i) Shares: Equity . . 

Preference . 
(ii) Debentures and bonds 
(iii) Units of mutual funds -
(iv) Government sccuri1ics . 
{v) Others (pass through certificates) -

Long-term investments (ncl of provision) 

(a) Quoted: 
(i) Shares: Equity . 

Preference . 
(ii) Debemures and bonds . 
(iii) Units of mutual funds . 
(iv) Government secmities . 
(Y) Others . 

(bl Unquoted: 
{i) Slnires: Equity 

Preference . 
{Ii) Dehcnmrcs and bonds 
{Iii) Umts of mutual funds 
{iv) Government sccurilies 
(v) Others : Pass through ceni!icates 

Security receipts 783.61 1,240.22 
Units of Ahernati\-e ln\"estments Fund (AlF) 2,331.79 300.76 

5) Borrower group-v,ise classification of assets financed as in (2) and (3) above 

Amount net of provisions 
Secured I Unsecured Total 

P:irticulars As at As,< "'" As"' Asal Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 l\1:irch 31, 2023 March3!,2022 l\111rch 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

I Related panics0 

(a) Subsidiaries - . . -
(b) Companies in the same group . 302.70 3,604.80 302.70 3,604.80 
(cl Other related panies . . . 

2. Other than related parties 3,051.95 5,625.81 2,089.01 1,005.83 5.140.97 6,631.64 

Total 3,051.95 5,625.81 2.391.71 4,610.62 5,443.67 l0,236.43 

6) Investor grnup-wisc classification of all investments (current and long-tenn) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted) 

Particulars Market ,,aJuc/brcak up or fair \"a\uc or Book value 
NAY (net of provisions) 

Asat As"' "'" Asat 
March 31, 2023 March 3 !, 2022 March 31, 2023 MarchJl,2022 

l) Related panics 
{a) Subsidiaries 
(bl Companies in the same group 
(c) Other related parties 676.61 851.63 676.61 851.63 

2J Other than related pamcs 2,616.92 739.M 2,616.92 739.64 
Total 3,293.53 1.591.27 3,293.53 1,591.27 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Continued) 
(Currency Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

7) Other infonnation 

s,. 
Particulars 

No 
{,) Gross non-perfonning assets 

I) Related parties 
2) Other than related parties 

(b) Net non-pcrfonning assets 
I) Related parties 
2) Other than related parties 

(c) Assets acquired in satisfaction of deb1 

Note. 

Asat 
March JI 2023 

. 
158.46 

122.78 

J. As defined in paragraph 2( I )(xii) of the Non-Banking Financial Compnay Acceptance of public deposits(Rescrvc bank) Direction, 1998. 

(xxvii) Disclosure on perpetual debt 

For the year For the year 
Particulnrs ended ended 

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 

Amount of funds raised through Perpetual debt Nil Nil 
instrument during the year 

Asal Asat 
Particul:1rs M:1rch 31,2023 MarchJl,2022 

Principal amount omstanding as at year cm.I. 450.00 450.00 

Percentage of the amount of Perpetual debt of1he 8.37% 14.15% 
amount of its Tkr I Cupital 

Unnaid interest nn Pcmctual dcht . 

(x:>.\'iii) There are no amount due and outstanding to be credited to in\·estor education & protection Fund as at March 31 2023 and at March 3 l, 2022 

(xxb.) Offhalanc ,heet SPV sponsored -NIL (Previous year NIL) 

Asa\ 
Murch 31, 2022 

248.06 

195.25 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the linrmcial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11li11ued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in mi\Hons) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures 

(xxix) Prudential Floor for ECL 

As at March 31, 2023 

In tcm1s or the requirement as per RBI notification no. RBl/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No. l 09/22. I 0.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 on Implementation of Indian Accounting Standards, Non­
Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs) arc required to create an impainncnt reserve for any shortfall in impainncnt allow:mces under Ind AS 109 :md Income Recognition. Asset Classification and 
Provisioning (IRACP) nonns (including provision on standard ussets). 111c impainncnt allowances under Ind AS 109 miide by the Company exceeds the total provision required under IRACP (including 
standard asscl provi~ioning), as at March 31, 2023 and March 3 l, 2022. Accordingly, no amount is required to be transferred to impainncnt reserve. 

Gross Carrying 
Loss Allowances Difference between 

Asset classification as (Provisions) as Net Carrying Provisions rc11uircd Ind AS 109 Asset Classification as per RBl Norms 
per Ind AS 109 

Amount as per Ind 
rcr1uircd under Ind Amount as per IRACP norms provisions and AS 

AS 109 IRACP norms 
I 2 3 4 5=3-4 6 7=4-6 

Pcrformin~ Assets 

Standard 
Stage I 4,502.00 82.08 4,419.91 17.99 64.09 
Stage 2 987.59 86.28 901.31 54.50 31.79 

Subtot:il 5,489.59 168.37 5,321.22 72.49 95.88 

Non~l'crforming Assets (NP A) 

Subst:mdard Stage 3 110.80 20.73 90.07 19.95 0.78 

Doubtful - up to I year Stage 3 30.31 10.73 19.57 10.16 0.57 
I to 3 years Stage 3 17.36 4.22 13.14 7.17 (2.95) 
More tlum 3 ycari; Singe 3 - - - -
Subtotal for doubtful 47.66 14.95 32.71 17.33 (2.38) 

Loss Stage 3 - - -
Subtot:11 fur NPA 158.46 35.68 122.78 37.28 (1.59) 

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which Stage I f 16.00 0.28 115.72 - -
arc in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered under current 

Stage 2 Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning - - -
(IRACP) norms Stage 3 0.04 0.04 - -

Subtotal I 16.04 0.32 115.72 - -

Total Stage 1 4,618.00 82.36 4,535.63 17.99 64.37 
Stage 2 987.59 86.28 901.31 54.50 31.79 
Stage 3 158.51 35.73 122.78 37.28 (1.55; 
Total 5,764.09 204.37 t 5,559.72 109.77 94.61 



Edelweiss Rct:1il Fin:mcc Limited 
Notes to !he lin:111cial statements (Continued) 
{Currency :Indian rupees in millions) 

58. Regulatory Disclosures (Continued) 

(xxx) Prudential Floor for ECL (Continued) 

As at March 3 ! , 2022 

Asset Cl:mificntion as per RBI Norms 

I 

Performing Assets 

Standard 

Subtotal 

Non-Performing Assets (Nl'A) 

Substandard 

Doubtfol - up to I year 
I to 3 years 
More than 3 years 
Subtotal for doubtful 

L-Oss 

Subtotal for NP A 

Other items such as guarantees, loan commitments, etc. which 
arc in the scope oflnd AS I 09 but not covered under current 
Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning 
(IRACP) norms 

Subtotal 

Total 

Gross Carrying 
Asset classification as 

per Ind AS 109 
Amount as per Ind 

AS 

2 3 

Stage I 7,469.23 
Stage 2 3,001.94 

10,471.17 

Stage 3 194.46 

Stage 3 32.00 
Stage 3 2.17 
Stage 3 l 9.43 

53.59 

Stage 3 -

248.05 

Stage I 55.55 

Stage 2 -

Stage 3 0.04 

55.59 

Stage I 7,524.78 
Stage 2 3,001.94 
Stage 3 248.09 
Total 10,774.81 

n 

Loss Allowances Difference between 
(Provisions) as Net Carrying Provisions rc11uircd Ind AS 109 

required under Ind Amount as per IRACP norms provisions and 
AS 109 IRACP norms 

4 5 =3 -4 6 7=4-6 

40.36 7,428.86 29.86 10.51 
389.61 2,612.34 I 14.14 275.46 
429.97 10,041.20 144.00 285.97 

47.84 146.62 30.66 17.18 

2.84 29.1S 7.70 (4.86) 
0.19 l.98 1.62 (1.43) 
1.94 17.48 13.81 (11.87) 
4.98 48.62 23.14 (!8.16) 

- - - -

S2.82 !95.23 53.80 (0.98) 

0.14 55.41 - 0.14 

- - - -
- 0.04 - -

0.14 55.45 - 0.14 

40.50 7,484.27 29.86 10.65 
389.61 2,612.34 114.14 275.46 

52.82 195.27 53.80 C0.98) 
482.93 I0,291.88 197.80 285.13 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11tillued) 

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions) 

(xxxi) Disclosure on liquidi1y risk 

As required in tcm1s of paragraph 3 of RBI Circular RBJ/2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD) CC. No.102/03.10.00!/20!9•20 dated November 4, 2019 on 
Liquidity Risk Management Framework for Non-Banking Financial Companies and Core Investment Companies. 

a) Funding Concentration based on significant counterparty (both deposits and borrowings) 

Number of significant counterpartics'" 

A.mount of borrowings from significant countcrpanics 

% ofTotal deposits 

% ofTotal liabilities'"* 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

12 

2,553.76 

NA 

51.29% 

• "Significant countcrparty" is defined as a single counterpany or !,'TO Up of connected or affiliated counterpanies accounting in aggregate for more than 
1 % of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities 

"'* "Total liabilities" refers to total external liabilities (i.e. excluding total equity). 

b) Top 20 large deposits 

The Company being a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India, does not 
accept public deposits. 

e) Top JO Borrowings 

A.mount ofBorrowings from top 10 lenders 

% of Total Borrowings 

d) Funding Coneentrnlion hnsed on significant instrument/product* 

Market Borrowings 
Non Con,·ct1iblc Debentures 
Petpetual and Sub-ordinated Debentures 

Other Borrowings 
Tenn Loans 
Cash Credit Lines 
Others 

Asat 
March 31, 2023 

2,402.80 

67.62% 

As at March 31, 2023 
Amount 

889.88 
2,190.60 

266.39 
355.76 

83.45 

% of Total Liabilities** 

17.87% 
44.00% 

5.35% 
7.15% 
1.68% 

* "significant instrument/product'' is ddined as a single instrument/product of group of similar instruments/products which in aggregate amount to 
more than 1 % of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities. 

** "Total liabilities•· refer;; to total extcmu! !iubilities (i.e. excluding total equity). 

c) StnckRatios 

Commercial papers as a% of total public funds* 
Commercial papers as a% of total liabilities 
Commercial papers as a% oftotal ussets 

Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a% of total pubhc funds 
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity ofless than one year) as a% of total liabilities 
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity ofless than one year) as a% of total assets 

Other short-term liabilities*., if any as a % of total public funds 
Other short-term liabilities••, if any as a % of total liabilities 
Other short-term liabilities**, ifany as a % of total assets 

* "Total public funds" refers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borrowing other than debt securities and Subordinated liabilities. 
*• '"Other short-tcnn liabilities" refers to the borrowing in short term in nature .. 

As at 
March 31, 2023 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

11.60% 
8.82% 
4.25% 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
Notes to the financial statements for year ended March 31, 2023 (Co11ti11ued) 
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f) Institutional seH1p for liquidity risk management 

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted the Asset Liability Management Committee and the Risk Management Committee. 

The Asset Liability Management Committee, inter alia 

• Implement and administer guidelines on Asset-Liability Management approved by the Board and its revision, if any: 

• Monitor the asset liability gap and O\'Crcomc the a.~sct-liabiliry mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc.; Stratcgizc action to mitigate risk associated 
with the asset liability gap; 

• Develop risk policies and procedures and verify adherence to various risk parameters and prudential limits; review the risk monitoring system and 
ensure effective risk management; and 

• Ensure that the credit and investment exposure to any puny / Company / group of parties or companies docs not exceed the internally set limits as 
well as statutoiy limits as prescribed by Reserve Bank oflndia from time to time. 

• Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity Management 
Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario. 

• the Company has ensured maintenance of a Li<1uidity Cushion in the form of Mutual Funds and liquid fixed deposits with banks, etc. These assets 
carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period oftime. A comfortable liquidity cushion is maintained of the borrowings. These 
would be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing to honour our commitments as a going concern. 

• There are available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on notice which further augment the available sources of funds. 

59. Details of Resolution plan implemented under the Resolution Framework for COVID-19 related stress as per circular dated August 6, 2020. 
Format B - for the year ended 31 March 2023 

Exposure to accounts Exposure to accounts 
classified as Standard 

Of(A) amount 
classified as Standard 

consequent to Of {A), aggregate debt 
written off 

Of (A} amount paid by consc1111cnt to 
T~·pe of borrower implementation of that slipped into NP A 

during the half 
the borrowers during implementation of 

resolution plan - Position during the half-year the half-year resolution plan - Position 
as at the end of the 

year 
as at tile end of this half-

preYious half-year (A) year 

Personal Loans . . 
Corporate persons* 44.72 . . 44.72 
Ofwhich, MSl'l!Es . . 
Others . . . 

Total 44.72 . . 44.72 . 

*As defined in Section 3(7) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 



Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 
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60. Breach of covenant 

As required in tenns ofparai,>raph B of Section JI of circular RBI/2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.R.EC.No. 20/21.04.0 I 8/2022-23 dated April 19, 2022 -
Disclosure in Financial Statement~- Notes to Accounts ofNBFCs. 

During the financial year ending as on 31 March 2023, there is no incidence of breach of covenant. 

61. Unhedged foreign currency exposure 

There is no any nnhedged foreign foreign currency exposure as on 31 March 2023 (Previous year Nil). 

62. Divergence in Asset Classification and Pro\'isioning 

As required in terms ofpara1,ir.1ph C ofSt:ction II of circular RBU2022-23/26 DOR.ACC.REC.No. 20/21.04.018/20::!2-23 datt:dApril 19, 2022-
Disclosurc in Financial Statements- Notes to Accounts of!\'BFCs. 

Disclosure ofDh-er ,ence for March 21- 2022 
s,. Particulars Amount 
I Gross NP As as on March 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 248.05 

2 Gross NP As as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by the Reserve Bank oflndia/NHB 856.45 

3 Dive~ence in Gross NP As (2-1) {608.40) 

4 Net NPAs as on March 31, 2022 as rer>0rted by the NBFC 195.24 

5 Net NP As as on March 31, 2022 as assessed by Reserve Bank oflndia/NHB 742.80 

6 Divergence in Net NP As (5-4) (547.56) 

7 Provisions for NP As as on Marc~ 31, 2022 as reported by the NBFC 52,81 

8 Provisions for NP As as on March 31, 2022 as assesst:d by Reserve Bank of India/ NHB 113.65 

9 Divergence in provisioning (8-7) (60.84) 

10 Reported Profit before tax and impainnent loss on financial instruments for 1he year ended 254.01 

March 3 I, 2022 

II Reported Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the year ended March 31, 2022 184.69 

12 Adjusted (notional) Net Profit after Tax (PAT) for the ycar t:ndcd March 3 l, 2022 after 184,69 

considering the divergence in pro\'isioning* 

*adjusted Net Profit After Tax Includes al! adjustments made by RB! ie. including :id<litional pro\'ision on fin:incial instrument etc. 

The Company has already made the provision of Rs. 67.50 Mn. in Stage II category on the identified !oan assets which was in excess of provision of 
Rs. 60.84 Mn as required according to IRACP norms, hence there was no P&L impact due to the same for the year ended March 31, 2022. 

Further, the Company has sold tl1e said loan asset to Asset Reconstruction Comp:iny during the financial year 2022-23. 
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Notes to the financial statements for year endetl March 31, 2023 (Co11ti11ued) 

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions) 

64. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to current year presentation. 

As per our report of even date attached. 

For G. D. Apte & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 100515W 

# 
per Mayurcsh V. Zele 
Partner 
Membership no: I 50027 

Place : Mumbai 

Date : May 16, 2023 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 

Phanindranath Kakarla 
Director Director 

DIN: 05124763 DIN: 02076676 

Hitesh Bhadada 
Chief Financial Officer 
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